
 
 

CABINET 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL 
DATE Tuesday, 6th July, 2021 

TIME 1.00 pm 

LOCATION Virtual Meeting – for public access to the meeting follow 

the linc: https://gwynedd.public-

i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/581818  

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS 
 

Members 

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader 

Dafydd Meurig Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing 

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member for Environment 

Nia Wyn Jeffreys Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support 

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People 

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Community 

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Finance 

Catrin Elen Wager Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Municipal 

Cemlyn Rees Williams Cabinet Member for Education 

 

Complete Agenda

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/581818
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/581818


 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Item Submitted 
by 

Officer Page 

1   APOLOGIES 

 

   

2   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST 

 

   

3   URGENT ITEMS 

 

   

4   MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 

 

   

5   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
15 JUNE 2021 

 

  4 - 12 

6   2020-21 ANNUAL REPORT, STRATEGIC 
EQUALITY PLAN 2020-2024 

 

Cllr Nia 
Jeffreys 

Delyth 
Williams 

13 - 
87 

7   EQUALITY AND INCLUSION POLICY 

 

Cllr. Nia 
Jeffreys 

Delyth 
Williams 

88 - 
113 

8   LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND ELECTIONS 
ACT (WALES) 2021 

 

Cllr. Nia 
Jeffreys 

Geraint Owen 
and Iwan 
Evans 

114 - 
131 

9   IMMERSION EDUCATION SYSTEM 
TOWARDS 2032 AND BEYOND 

 

Cllr. Cemlyn 
Williams 

Debbie Anne 
Williams 
Jones 

132 - 
182 

10   PRIMARY, SPECIAL AND ALL-THROUGH 
SCHOOL MEAL PRICES - SEPTEMBER 
2021 

 

Cllr. Cemlyn 
Williams 

Owen Owens 183 - 
185 

11   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN AND 
SUPPORTING FAMILIES 

 

Cllr. Dilwyn 
Morgan 

Morwena 
Edwards  
 

186 - 
189 

12   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT, 
HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 

 

Cllr. Dafydd 
Meurig 

Morwena 
Edwards 

190 - 
196 



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

 
THE CABINET 15/06/21 

 

 
Present- 
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Dilwyn Morgan, Ioan Thomas, Catrin Elen Wager. Cemlyn Rees Williams 
and Dewi Roberts (Local Member) 
 
Also present:   
Dafydd Gibbard (Chief Executive), Morwena Edwards (Corporate Director), Iwan Evans 
(Head of Legal Services), Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Sion Huws 
(Senior Solicitor) and Annes Sion (Democracy Team Leader). 
 
Item 6: Geraint Owen (Head of Corporate Support Department) and Dewi Wyn Jones 
(Council Business Support Service Manager) 
Item 7: Garem Jackson (Head of Education Department) and Gwern ap Rhisiart (Dwyfor / 
Meirionnydd Area Education Officer).  
 
 
1.   APOLOGIES 

 
 The Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.  

Apologies were received from Cllr Gareth Thomas. 
 
 

 
2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of personal interest were received.   

 
 

 
3.   URGENT ITEMS 

 
 There were no urgent items. 

 
 

 
4.   MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 
 There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny. 

 
 

 
5.   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 MAY 2021 

 
 The Chair accepted the minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2021 as a true 

record. 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

 
6.   GWYNEDD COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21 

 
 The report was submitted by Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn.    

 
 
 
 
DECISION 
 
To approve the Gwynedd Council Performance Report 2020/21 and recommend 
the Full Council adopt it at its meeting on 8 July 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted, noting that it was a pleasure to present it. It was 
emphasised that the document was clear and easy to read and provided a clear 
picture of the entire Council’s work. It was explained that one section at the start 
of the report provided a description of the work that had been done at the start of 
lockdown when the Council's work had been restricted due to Covid regulations. 
It was explained that the Council's staff had responded with ease and flexibility to 
address the situation and had worked to create a new way of working. All staff 
were thanked for their willingness to adapt and to respond very quickly and 
efficiently during lockdown.  
 
It was noted that the report highlighted the Council's priorities by emphasising the 
need to continue to discuss the field of sustainable tourism. It was noted that the 
Education Department would continue to improve education provision within the 
county, noting that work had been done at Ysgol Godre'r Berwyn and Ysgol y 
Garnedd and there was a new school on its way in Cricieth.  
 
It was expressed that in light of the housing crisis that the Housing Action Plan 
was in place. It was noted that this plan was ambitious and innovative and there 
was a commitment of £77 million for the plan term.  
 
It was explained that some departments were not visible to the county's residents 
and had been affected by cuts over the years. Attention was drawn to the Public 
Protection Department which had dealt with a number of changes due to the 
Covid-19 emergency. Staff were thanked for committing to the Test, Trace and 
Protect procedure which had highlighted Local Government's ability to do the 
work without wasting money on external companies.  
 
It was expressed that this was the last Annual Report for this term and there 
would be a new procedure in future. It was added that the Council's internal 
performance challenging system would recommence to ensure that the Council 
was looking at its weaknesses and improving continuously. 
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 The staff of the Children and Supporting Families Department were 
thanked for their willingness and flexibility during the time. All the foster 
parents who had been more than willing to step in were thanked. It was 

Page 4



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

added that the department was aware of its challenges in moving forward 
and that the autism plan would be a priority for this year.  

 The staff of the Adults, Health and Well-being Department were thanked 
for their perseverance during a difficult year. It was noted that this year 
had highlighted the strength of the staff. 

 Attention was drawn to one small correction, there were now eight 
improvement priorities, and not seven.  

 The outstanding work at the schools in response to the challenge of 
remote learning was acknowledged. 

 The staff of the finance and information technology department were 
thanked for their work in supporting other departments.  

 The Economy Department staff were thanked for speaking with 
businesses throughout the entire period and for allocating covid grants. 

 
 

 
7.   YSGOL ABERSOCH 

 
 The report was submitted by Cllr Cemlyn Williams   

 
DECISION  
 
The Cabinet, following consideration of the observations received during the 
statutory consultation period and the response of the Education Department to 
those observations 

 
i. Approved issuing a statutory proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 
December 2021, and provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 
January 2022. 

ii. Approved the publication of statutory notices on the proposal in (i) above 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 48 of the Schools Standards 
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted noting that its purpose was to report back following a 
period of statutory consultation on the option to close Ysgol Abersoch and offer a 
place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach.  It was expressed that the decision to 
bring the report to the Cabinet had not been easy but that the department was 
asking for approval to publish a statutory notice to close Ysgol Abersoch, in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 48 of the Schools Standards and 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  
 
It was emphasised that it was very difficult to present this report, but there was a 
duty to ensure the best possible education, experiences and learning 
environment for children. It was expressed that full consideration had been given 
to all possible options for the school. All individuals, pupils, teachers and 
governors were thanked for giving their time to respond to the statutory 
consultation.  
 
It was expressed that the need had arisen to consider the future of Ysgol 

Page 5



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

Abersoch following a reduction in the number of pupils. It was noted that Ysgol 
Absersoch's pupil numbers had fallen in recent years and that 76% of the 
school's capacity was empty and the projections for the coming years had shown 
that the numbers would remain low. 
 
The Head of Education Department noted that back in May 2019, the Cabinet 
had agreed to support a recommendation to commence formal discussions with 
the School Governing Body to consider options for its future following a decline in 
the number of pupils at the school.  Three meetings had been held which was an 
opportunity to explain the need to discuss options, to present and discuss the 
options before reaching a decision on the preferred option.  
 
It was noted that back in September 2020, the Council had conducted a statutory 
consultation process on the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch in August 2021, 
and to offer a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach. The decision was 
confirmed by the Cabinet on 3 November 2020, after the original decision was 
called in and referred back to the Cabinet by the Education and Economy 
Scrutiny Committee.  
 
The Head of Education Department highlighted the main challenges the school 
was facing including the fact that pupil numbers had declined since 2016. It was 
expressed that there were currently eight pupils attending the school on a full-
time basis and two pupils who were attending on a part-time basis. It was added 
that the projections noted that there would be 10 pupils in 2021, and 12 in 2022 
and 2023. It was explained that the data highlighted that there were 21 children in 
the Abersoch catchment-area attending other schools and that three pupils from 
beyond the Abersoch catchment attended the school. It was added that the low 
numbers were placing an additional pressure on budgets. Attention was drawn to 
the fact that the school was receiving additional funding as a consequence of the 
low numbers to secure staff. It was expressed that Ysgol Abersoch received an 
additional £50,000 on top of their budgets which meant that the cost per pupil 
was approximately £17,000 per child compared to an average of £4,000 per child 
in the county.  
 
It was noted that in December 2019, the Cabinet had committed to the Principles 
of Fit for Purpose Education which formed a basis to the department's vision of 
ensuring the education system. It was also said that primary schools followed the 
Gwynedd Education Strategy and that the principles and the strategy had been at 
the root of the entire process.  
 
The Education Officer highlighted the options that had been considered which 
included changing the age range to 3-9 or 3-11 years old.  It was expressed that 
there would be advantages in doing this but that it was not sustainable for the 
future.  It was highlighted that three types of federalisation had been proposed as 
options to ensure a presence within the area, but it was emphasised that this did 
not address the challenge of the decline in pupil numbers. The option of closing 
the school was presented and providing a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach 
which offered consistent opportunities to the pupils and an education of the 
highest quality along with consistency in terms of class numbers. It was added 
that the geographical distance was a fair distance and that parents would be able 
to choose a school for their children.  

Page 6



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

 
Following this a public consultation had been held between 12 January and 23 
February. Consultative documents had been sent via e-mail and hard copies had 
been made available and virtual drop in sessions had been held. 154 responses 
had been received. It was expressed that the majority of responses objected to 
the option to close and the main points were outlined.  
 
It was expressed that a number of responses had stated dissatisfaction with the 
consultation that had been held due to Covid-19 restrictions. It was emphasised 
that in terms of the regulatory requirements, it was not required to hold public 
meetings and therefore the procedure that had been followed was appropriate. It 
was highlighted that concerns had been raised in relation to the timetable and 
that closing on 31 August 2021 did not allow enough time for parents to 
determine which school to send their children to, consequently, the Education 
Department had pushed the date back to December 2021. Attention was drawn 
to the comments that Mudiad Meithrin and the Cylch Meithrin had not had an 
opportunity to be part of the consultation. It was expressed that the department 
had noticed that the e-mail had not been sent to them and the department had 
extended the response time for the Mudiad to 21 April, however, no response 
had been received.  
 
It was noted that a number of observations had been received about the 
alternative options. Attention was drawn to the comment about delaying the 
process to give the school an opportunity to increase the numbers and it was 
expressed that it was not possible to commit to any delay as the numbers had 
fallen consistently over recent years and it was not viable for the future. In 
response to the observations that enquired why the whole catchment was not 
under review, it was explained that a catchment-area review was not part of the 
strategy and this decision had been made in response to specific challenges 
related to one school.  
 
It was explained that a number of responses had noted that too much emphasis 
was being placed on the school numbers and questioned the projections. It was 
explained that the projections were not scientific but the department believed that 
the number would remain low over the next five years. It was also noted that the 
standard of education would fall by moving to another school, but the department 
emphasised that Estyn's response had highlighted that the standard at both 
schools was very similar and there would be no significant difference in the 
children's education.  
 
Attention was drawn to the use of the school building after closure, it was 
expressed that the Council had a policy for the Future Use of School Buildings 
and that legal discussions would be held to ensure that there would be no legal 
obligations linked to the building.  
 
Concerns were highlighted that the path to Ysgol Sarn Bach was not suitable for 
children to walk to the school, but it was noted that a school bus was currently in 
operation and there would be space on the bus for the additional pupils. It was 
explained that the responses had highlighted that the school had an influence 
over village life. It was noted that Ysgol Sarn Bach would be expected to treat 
Abersoch as part of its area and ensure that the close work with the village would 

Page 7



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

continue. It was added that a number of Abersoch pupils attended Ysgol Sarn 
Bach and that links between the school and the village were already established.  
 
It was expressed that there were obvious concerns in the consultation regarding 
the pupil's health and well-being and it was emphasised that it had been a difficult 
time and the transition period would also be difficult. But it was emphasised that 
the department would work with both schools and would work with them on the 
bridging period.  
 
A number of responses had been received highlighting the negative impact on 
the Welsh language and culture as the school was the most important resource 
within the village for the Welsh language. It was emphasised that the school was 
doing good work but that every school was expected to work to promote the use 
of the Welsh language at the school and socially and consequently Ysgol Sarn 
Bach would be expected to continue with the good work being done.  
 
It was noted that responses had asked what would happen to the Cylch Meithrin 
and Ti a Fi if the school was to close. It was expressed that it was out of the 
department's hands but that it could be considered for the future use of the 
building. It was emphasised that on the whole, the children of Ysgol Abersoch 
were unhappy and were raising concerns about the experiences they could lose 
such as visits to the beach and the village and that the pupils of Ysgol Sarn Bach 
did sympathise with this but were also eager to welcome the pupils to their 
school.  
 
The Education Officer drew attention to the alternative options noting that they 
had looked at a Multi-site school and at two types of school federations. It was 
explained that the options could be a successful model if the geographical 
distance was significant.  However, it was expressed that as the distance was not 
extensive it was explained that they were not a solution for the future and would 
not meet the challenges that Ysgol Abersoch was facing.  
 
The Local Member noted that he was very disappointed that it was not possible 
for the Chair and the Vice-chair to join the meeting. He expressed that the report 
was extensive and asked how independent the review was as it had been led by 
the education department. It was emphasised that the response was strongly 
against the decision and that the community was unanimous against closing the 
school. He explained that adding one academic year to include year 3 would 
make a significant difference to Ysgol Abersoch and he asked why the 
department had not taken any steps sooner to solve the capacity problem.  
 
He added that there had been no consideration of the campaign to secure 
housing for local people in the village, and that closing the school before these 
schemes were implemented would be premature. It was explained that the Cylch 
Meithrin and Ti a Fi had succeeded in drawing children in and not enough time 
had passed yet to see whether or not it would make a difference to the numbers. 
It was explained that the school pupils had a close relationship with the village 
and that closure would also close the relationship between the school and its 
community. It was added that a number of families had noted that they were 
eager to turn their second homes into full-time homes after Covid and there was 
a possibility that the numbers would increase. He asked the Cabinet to defer the 

Page 8



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

decision for a year to see whether there would be any changes to the numbers.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 The teachers, pupils, parents, governors and the community were thanked 
for being willing to respond to the consultation.  

 Attention was drawn to the process that had been followed since 2019 and 
that it had been transparent and had followed the correct procedures.  It 
was explained that there would be an impact on the community but that 
children were prepared to move to Ysgol Sarn Bach when they were 8 
years old and there was a connection there already. It was expressed that 
the standard of education for the children of Gwynedd was the priority. 

 It was expressed that the figure of £17,000 per child was striking 
compared with £4,000 across the county. It was highlighted that the 
Language Impact Assessment had been challenged in the responses and 
the department was asked how it responded to this. It was also asked 
what the department would do to ensure contact with Ysgol Sarn Bach 
and the village. The Education Officer noted that the basis of the concerns 
derived from the fact that the department did not compare like for like, but 
it was emphasised that the department believed that the report was 
correct. In terms of the practicality of the work of bringing two communities 
together there would be a need to look at the plan in the language charter 
and take hold of the strategies that had been successful at Ysgol 
Abersoch and continue with them at Ysgol Sarn Bach.  

 It was noted that the responses had highlighted strong feelings about the 
schools and that they needed to be considered. Attention was drawn to 
the impact on the community and the language, however, it was 
expressed that the quality of education and children's well-being was the 
priority. Confirmation was sought that if the school was to close then the 
children's well-being at the new school would be considered. Also, in 
relation to the future of the site, it was explained that the resource was 
important to the community and the community had a strong voice over 
the future of the site. In terms of the move, the Education Officer noted 
that careful planning was needed to ensure that the pupils could have 
experiences at both schools before the school was closed in order for the 
pupils to get to know each other. It was added that specialist services 
would also be available to ensure the children's well-being.  

 It was noted that schools had a role as hubs within their communities and 
as a place for parents to socialise and children to grow roots and see the 
value of having a school at the heart of the community. However, it was 
noted that the fact that a high number of children attended school outside 
the catchment area was striking, and it was asked whether a school with 
one classroom could provide a full solution to the school's problems? The 
department was asked to consider a safe route to Ysgol Sarn Bach to 
draw the community in by linking the village and the new school. It was 
explained that the Council would take an interdepartmental view into the 
possibilities of creating a footpath.  

 The local member was thanked for taking advantage of every opportunity 
to be part of the discussion and for being a voice for the residents.  

 
 

 

Page 9



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

8.   RESPONDING TO THE REPORT "SECOND HOMES - DEVELOPING NEW 
POLICIES IN WALES 
 

 The report was submitted by Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn. 
 
DECISION 
 
To agree the Council's response to the report "Second Homes - Developing 
New Policies in Wales" as set out in section 9 of this report and in particular 
highlighting the need to modify recommendation number 7 - Short-term 
Holiday Accommodation and Business Rates.  
  
The Leader agreed to formally communicate the response to the Welsh 
Government and call on it to adopt and implement the most effective 
recommendations as a matter of urgency in order to respond to the housing 
crisis facing the communities of Gwynedd. 
  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted noting that a need to respond to the "Second 
Homes - Developing New Policies in Wales" report by Dr Simon Brooks, 
which had been commissioned by Welsh Government and Coleg Cymraeg 
Cenedlaethol. It was expressed that Dr Brooks had contacted the Council and 
that a number of recommendations had come from a report submitted by the 
Environment Department to the Cabinet back in December.  
 
It was explained that there were twelve recommendations in the report and 
the Council needed to respond to the report. It was highlighted that the 
Council only disagreed with one of the recommendations, namely 
recommendation 7 - Short-term Holiday Accommodation and Business Rates.  
The need for every dwelling to be counted as a dwelling was stated and that 
they should be forced to pay Council tax and any premium that coincided with 
that dwelling. It was noted that the report was commendable and important 
and the desire to send a message to the Government with the Council's 
response to the report.  
 
The Chief Executive added that the report drew on many sources and that it 
was crucial that the Council should respond as the second homes problem 
was at its worst in Gwynedd.  The steps the Council had already taken to 
tackle the problem were highlighted including adopting the New Allocation 
Policy so that it prioritised local people, charged the Council Tax Premium on 
second homes and invested the additional funding in the Housing Action Plan. 
It was emphasised that the Council was doing everything within its powers 
regarding the situation and had also specifically commissioned work to look 
into the problem. There was support for Dr Simon Brooks' report and it was 
emphasised that a number of the recommendations by the Council in the 
commission work had been included in the report.  
 
It was explained that to make the biggest difference there was a need to 
concentrate on the recommendations that would make a difference and three 

Page 10



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

recommendations were highlighted. The first was Recommendation 7, as it 
had been highlighted as one of the main problems for residents that second 
homes did not have to pay Council tax by moving to small business rates. The 
need to prevent this from happening was emphasised so that they contributed 
to the Council and also the premium could prevent others from purchasing a 
second home. The second priority was to ensure there was a specific use 
class to change a home from a dwelling to a second home that would also 
require planning permission. And the third, that in order obtain evidence for 
the planning applications that a licensing scheme for holiday homes was 
needed to be able to monitor the numbers within communities and then to 
refuse planning applications in communities where the numbers were high. It 
was explained that unless these recommendations were adopted, it would not 
be possible to tackle the problem.   
 
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 It was noted that the Council was in a housing emergency, and the 
Council was looking after Gwynedd residents on a daily basis.  It was 
emphasised that during this last extraordinary year the Council had 
continued to look after residents and had continued to perform 
especially well. It was explained that over the last two years the 
Council had done everything within its grasp to solve the problem but 
that the Council did not have the power to genuinely tackle the 
problems.  It was expressed that this problem was not a new problem 
and that the Westminster Government had been aware of it since the 
1970s, and although Housing had been devolved to Wales, so far the 
only thing they had done was this report.  It was emphasised that the 
report contained all the answers but that it was now time for the 
Government to act.  

 It was noted that Welsh Government had compiled reports twenty 
years ago but had not implemented the recommendations. Back in 
December, it had been expressed that the report was crying out for the 
Welsh Government to act. It was explained that their latest report was 
also a call for action. 

 It was emphasised that there was a need to act as there were 
concerns about where people were going to live today, let alone where 
the children of the county would be living. It was explained that there 
were cases everyday which highlighted the housing crisis that was 
emerging across Gwynedd.  

 It was explained that this was not a new problem and it was asked why 
the Welsh Government had not done something sooner. It was raised 
that the report highlighted too many recommendations and that it was 
possible that the Government might select one that was easy to 
implement, meaning that it would not make a difference.  

 The report was welcomed emphasising that the time for reports had 
ended and that it was now time to act. Organisations were called to 
work with Gwynedd Council to convey the message to the 
Government. 

 It was highlighted that there were second homes in every ward in the 
county and that the problem was now spreading from the traditional 
areas to the underprivileged areas.  

Page 11



THE CABINET 15/06/21 

 It was emphasised that there was a need to be clear that paying 
Council tax was crucial. It was explained that charging the premium 
had highlighted that the Council was doing what it could.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 1.00 pm and concluded at 3.15 pm 
 

 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 12



 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

Date of meeting:  6 July 2021 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Nia Jeffreys 

Contact Officer: Delyth G Williams, Policy and Equality Officer 

Contact Telephone 
Number: 

01286 679708 

Title of Item: 2020-21 Annual Report, Strategic Equality Plan 2020-
24 

 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 
 

1 THE DECISION SOUGHT 

The Cabinet is requested to note the content and approve the 2020/21 Annual       

Report and the 2020-24 Equality Plan.   

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

The intention of the Annual Report is to note the progress made with the Action 

Plan for the 5 Equality Objectives that we are working towards during 2020-21, 

as noted in the Council's Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24.  The Cabinet is 

requested to approve this progress.  Reporting annually is a duty of the 2010 

Equality Act as it is implemented in Wales. 

 

CONTENTS 

The purpose of the Strategic Equality Plan is to reduce inequality between 

people with protected characteristics and people without those characteristics in 

accordance with the Equality Act 2010. The Ensuring Fairness for All Project (i.e. 

the Equality Plan), has been identified by the Cabinet as one of the priority 

projects within the Council Plan. 

 

This is the first Annual Report of the 2020-24 Equality Plan.  The year in 

question, 2020-21, has been very unusual.  As a result of the pandemic, and the 

associated restrictions, we had to look at different ways to achieve a number of 

the activities, such as the engagement work, where it was not possible to do 

much of what we intended to do.  Despite this resulting in some slippage, we are 

confident to be able to deliver the Action Plan within the timetable.  

 

 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 
Guidance was received from the Equality and Human Rights Commission that we 

should assess the suitability of the objectives in our Equality Plan as a result of 

the pandemic.  We have done so and are of the opinion that they are suitable.  

 

The five objectives are: 

 

 Objective 1:  To strengthen and deepen the capacity and commitment of 

Gwynedd Council Staff and Elected Members in the field of Equality, by 

ensuring that they receive the right training. 

 

 Objective 2:  Improve the information we have from and about people with 

protected characteristics. 

 Objective 3: Build on the work already carried out to embed Equality 

Impact Assessments as a tool to ensure better decision-making. 

 Objective 4:  Act to reduce the pay gap between the sexes and identify 

any pay gap based on any other characteristic. 

 Objective 5:  Take action to attract a range of applicants for posts in order 

to increase the diversity of our workforce. 

The report considers these in turn, as in the Plan itself.  In line with guidance, it 

also includes details on how the Council gathers and uses information about 

equality.  It is also important to identify that working on the Plan's Objectives 

alone will not ensure equality, as the principles must be embedded in our 

everyday work.  Therefore, we are looking at examples of the Council's work in 

the field from day-to-day. 

  

4 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE 

DECISION 

The Strategic Equality Plan's Equality Impact Assessment has been updated as 

a result of the new situation and the data around Covid-19. 

 

 The Statutory Officers’ observations 

i) Chief Finance Officer 

 Nothing to add from the perspective of financial propriety. 

ii) Propriety Officer 

I welcome this Annual Report on performance against a duty with is relevant to 

all the Council’s activities. 

  

 

 
  

 

Page 13



Annual Equality Report 
Gwynedd Council  
2020-21

@CyngorGwyneddCouncil

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

01766 771000

@CyngorGwynedd

Page 14



Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-20212

I must admit that the year from April 2020 to March 
2021 has been a very unusual one!   When I brought 
the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan to the Cabinet 
for approval at the beginning of March 2020, little did 
anyone know what was to come.

The pandemic has shown that a great deal of 
unfairness continues to exist in Gwynedd, as is the 
case in the rest of Wales.  Covid-19 has struck some 
people worse than others, including older people 
and people with specific conditions or illnesses.  It 
was also seen that it had a greater impact on people 
from ethnic minority backgrounds, which, according 
to statistics, are more likely to be suffering from 
economic inequality.   

During the last year, a number of other factors became 
apparent, e.g. the work of the Black Lives Matter 
movement, economic problems, growth in mental 
health conditions and loneliness, and the excellent 
way that key workers and volunteers have supported 
communities during the pandemic.

As the importance of equality issues have become more apparent during the year, I am glad 
to say that we have been able to proceed with the work within the Objectives of our Equality 
Plan.  Although we have had to do many things in a different way to what was intended, I 
am pleased to present our Annual Report for 2020-21, which shows the good work that has 
happened, despite the problems. 

We now look forward to a world that is gradually improving because of the vaccine; however, 
we will not forget the lessons learnt during this unique period.

Councillor Nia Jeffreys,
Gwynedd Council Cabinet Member 

for Corporate Support

Foreword

Page 15



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 3

1. Introduction

In March 2020, the Council published the ‘Gwynedd Council Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24’ 
(the Plan) in order to continue with the work of ensuring fairness for all.  This fulfils the public 
sector duties under the Equality Act 2010.  The Act has been designed to reduce inequalities 
between specific groups by asking public bodies to give due regard to the need to:

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that is 
prohibited by the Act.

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not.

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who 
do not.

The Plan looks at fairness in terms of nine protected characteristics, that is:

• Age
• Gender reassignment
• Gender
• Race (including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality)
• Disability
• Pregnancy and maternity
• Sexual orientation
• Religion or belief - including a lack of belief
• Marriage and civil partnership

(Equality Act 2010)

The Plan sets out and describes the work that would form the Council’s priority in this field for 
the four years in question, and we have divided the work into five objectives, namely:

• Objective 1:  Strengthen and deepen the capacity and commitment of Gwynedd Council 
Staff and Elected Members in the field of Equality, by ensuring that they receive the right 
training.

• Objective 2: Improve the information we have from and about people with protected 
characteristics.

• Objective 3: Build on the work already carried out to embed Equality Impact Assessments 
as a tool to ensure better decision-making.

• Objective 4:  Act to reduce the gender pay gap and identify any pay gap based on any 
other characteristic.

• Objective 5: Act to attract a range of applicants in order to increase the diversity of our 
workforce.

Of course, much has happened since the document was approved by the Cabinet on 10 March 
2020.  Although the Covid-19 crisis was looming, and the lockdown about to begin, no-one 

Page 16



Adroddiad Blynyddol Cydraddoldeb Cyngor Gwynedd 2020-20214 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

could have thought that it would have continued to have such an impact for the whole year 
and beyond.  Clearly the crisis has highlighted a number of inequalities and it is important that 
we look at our services in the light of this to ensure that we are acting fairly.

Another influential element during the year was the ‘Black Lives Matter’ campaign following 
the murder of George Floyd in the United States of America.  This highlighted, of course, the 
need to continue to overcome any instances of racial discrimination.

The Welsh Government has also brought into force the Socio-economic Duty which places a 
duty on us as a Council to consider socio-economic deprivation.  This means reducing the gap 
between people who live in poverty and the rest of society.  It means all kinds of poverty, be it 
financial poverty, digital poverty, difficulty in accessing services because of where they live, or 
any other form of poverty.

We have looked at the five objectives of the Plan as a result of these events.  Although the 
Covid-19 crisis has meant that we have to operate differently, e.g. we have often had to work 
online only rather than face to face, we believe our objectives are still appropriate.  Objective 
2 – Seeking People’s Views - is crucial in moving forward and considering how to operate.  
We will ensure that those who are most affected, i.e. people from ethnic minorities, disabled 
people and carers, young people, older people and people living under socio-economic 
disadvantage, are given a proper voice.

Training our staff (Objective 1) is very important as we proceed and we will include information 
about the impact of the Covid-19 crisis and the needs of minority ethnic groups, etc.  This will 
also be the case with our employment objectives (Objectives 4 and 5).  In addition, Objective 3 
- Impact Assessment - will be important going forward and will include the above information.  
In response to the socio-economic duty, we have, as a region,  adapted our approach of 
assessing the impact that changes in policies and services will have.  It will include equality, 
the socio-economic duty and the Welsh language in order to strengthen them and avoid 
duplication.

Although we have not changed our objectives, our working methods and schedules have 
inevitably been adapted during 2020/21.  This means that a number of action points will be 
achieved some months later than originally intended.  There is more information about this as 
we look at the objectives in greater detail below. 

This report outlines, according to objectives, what action points we have committed to in our 
Strategic Equality Plan, what we hoped to achieve during 2020/21 and what we were able to 
achieve in reality.  The report also looks at the type of information the Council gathers in the 
field of equality and shows how equality is embedded in the Council’s day-to-day work.

 

Page 17



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 5

Objective 1:

Strengthen and 
deepen the capacity 
and commitment of 
Gwynedd Council Staff 
and Elected Members 
in the field of Equality, 
by ensuring that they 
receive the right training.

Page 18



6 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

As noted in the Equality Plan, the Council does not believe that all staff members fully 
understand the need to prioritise equality considerations, or are uncertain of how to do this 
properly.  Our training materials too have become dated and we have identified the need 
to reassess them in order to make them more fit for purpose, and ensure that people are 
more willing to complete the training.  Furthermore, we have identified the need for equality 
principles to be incorporated into other relevant training, in order to embed equality deeper 
within the Council’s work.

Our aim in doing this is to ensure that members of the workforce, whatever their roles, 
have a thorough understanding of the field and the confidence to act on their duty towards 
individuals and groups with protected characteristics.  Elected Members will also understand 
and be more confident in their duty to challenge and make decisions.

Action Point 1:

We will create an equality training programme as a core field that will be varied, innovative, 
specific, and of the highest quality.  It will be appropriately tailored for all staff members on 
all levels, along with Elected Members, in order to improve their understanding of their duty 
towards equality. 

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• consider the effectiveness of our current training and discover what would help staff to 
understand more about the field

• work with Council Managers in order to discover which presentation methods would be 
most suitable for the needs of various staff, e.g. front-line staff, managers

• commission training providers who have life experience of the field to provide specialist 
face-to-face training to our staff as required

What did we do?

Unfortunately, it was not possible to undertake any training during the early months of the 
year as a result of the Covid-19 crisis, as our usual face-to-face approaches were not possible 
in line with the new public health guidelines.   It is also fair to say that priorities changed 
during that period.  Services had to give priority to serving the people of Gwynedd through 
the Covid-19 crisis rather than discussing the provision of appropriate training to staff. There 
has therefore been slippage in the schedule for this action.

However, over the past year, we have engaged with staff to identify barriers and the reasons 
why not all staff are completing the training available in the equality field.   Due to the 
Covid-19 crisis, we were unable to undertake any face-to-face engagement activities with 
staff, therefore staff were invited to complete the questionnaire online. The questionnaire 
was launched in March, with the engagement period open for eight weeks.  In addition, we 
undertook work to assess staff’s IT skills and access.

We have also been piloting a range of distance learning techniques creating a DLE (Distance 

Page 19



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 7

Learning Environment) online resource which is much more than ‘e-learning’.  The overall 
vision for the training is that we can create a ‘learning space’ which includes a wide range of 
learning opportunities (including formal learning, modules, Teams sessions, webinars, etc.) 
as well as resources (documents, books, video, audio clips, links to articles) and discussion 
forums (online forums including social media).  Individuals can control and tailor their own 
learning and take responsibility for what to study as well as how and when.  The environment 
is ‘live’ and evolving, growing continuously. 

During 2021/22, we will proceed to develop the programme and learning materials, including 
updating the e-learning module as well as identifying a specialist trainer with first-hand 
experience of the equality field, as was intended in 2020/21.  We know that the same solution 
is not for everyone and that some staff members do not have access to Council computers.  
We will work with the Services to help them with their responsibility to ensure that all 
their employees can benefit from training.  We will do this by preparing various methods, 
appropriate to the Service, such as videos that can be viewed on smartphones, face-to-face 
sessions or the provision of a tablet on loan.

Page 20



8 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Action Point 2:

Elected Members have access to the Members’ Portal, an electronic intranet which contains 
information about training and events relevant to them.  Over the period of the Plan, we will 
update the Portal with training guidelines and information relevant to equality.  We will also 
hold a promotional campaign by using the Members’ e-newsletter, ‘Rhaeadr’, to improve 
understanding about the information available on the Portal.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• Update the Members’ Portal, providing information on equality such as information 
about accessibility or organisations working with disabled people.  We would also 
include information about the Council’s duties, e.g. the need to carry out equality impact 
assessments when making any changes to services or policy. 

• Undertake work to include information on the new Socio-economic Duty on the Members’ 
Portal too.

What did we do?

Parts of this work have slipped due to the need for final guidance on the Socio-economic 
Duty from the Welsh Government before commencing the work.  The publication of the duty 
was postponed from April 2020 to April 2021 and as a result this work was put on hold.  

By working with our partners regionally, we have created a new composite impact 
assessment template (see Objective 3, Action Point 1) and are in the process of adapting it for 
the Council’s use.  

In addition, the newly-designed Members’ Portal will be launched, as the Members’ Intranet, 
in early 2021/22.  The relevant information will be posted on the new intranet during the first 
quarter of the year.

Page 21



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 9

Action Point 3:

‘Ffordd Gwynedd’ is the name given to the ‘way’ we in Gwynedd Council ensure that we place 
the people of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do.  Ultimately, the success of Ffordd 
Gwynedd will be judged on whether an individuals’ experience when they come into contact 
with the Council is a positive one that meet their needs.  In moving forward, we will continue 
to work on strengthening the equality element as part of the Ffordd Gwynedd training.  This 
will also be the case for the Welcome to the Council sessions for new staff members.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• modify the Ffordd Gwynedd training to include more consideration of equality issues, and 

• adapt the Welcome to the Council system to include more about equality 

What did we do?

Work was undertaken to modify Ffordd Gwynedd training, and the new-look training is 
beginning to be rolled out to staff. 

We have also worked on the content of the Welcome to the Council system, and are pleased 
to report that equality is now an integral part of it. 

Page 22



Adroddiad Blynyddol Cydraddoldeb Cyngor Gwynedd 2020-202110 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Objective 2:

Improve the information 
we have from and about 
people with protected 
characteristics.

Page 23



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 11

Putting the people of Gwynedd at the centre of everything we do is a cornerstone to the way 
the Council works and this, of course, includes people with various protected characteristics. 
It is not possible to do this without receiving and acting on the expert opinion of the people 
in question.  Although information has been gathered about the residents of Gwynedd, we 
have identified that we are not doing enough as a Council to ensure that the voices of people 
with protected characteristics are included as a matter of course when making everyday 
decisions.

Our aim in doing this is to acquire a better understanding of the needs and barriers faced 
by people with protected characteristics who receive our services, and we can put that to 
use in order to improve our procedures.  We can use our existing networking groups to take 
advantage of meetings and events that have been organised already.

Action Point 1:

In order to understand any barriers that the residents of Gwynedd who have various 
protected characteristics may face when dealing with the Council, we will conduct a 
comprehensive public survey.  The survey will identify those barriers and what we could 
do to respond.  This work will include a variety of different methods in order to reach a 
cross-section of people, especially those who do not usually participate.  We will ensure 
confidentiality for all participants.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• Complete the aforementioned survey by the end of March 2021. 

What did we do?

Although the Covid-19 crisis meant that our way of working had to be significantly adapted, 
we were able to undertake research on the information we hold from previous surveys.  We 
also succeeded in forming a project plan, mapping stakeholders and liaising with groups and 
organisations to draw their attention to the exercise.

The public survey was open between 22 February and 30 April, therefore it was open for 
anyone to complete for 10 weeks.  The aim of the exercise was to find out if the people of 
Gwynedd faced barriers or unfairness when dealing with the Council.  An online/paper 
survey was also opened with the Gwynedd Residents’ Panel for the same purpose.
In addition, a staff survey was opened, aimed at gaining information for the same purpose as 
the public survey, but also included questions about working for the Council and the training 
available.

We also carried out a comprehensive campaign to encourage individuals to take advantage 
of the opportunity to have their say by producing materials such as video clips, BSL clips, 
paper copies, press statements, articles and web pages to promote the exercise.  Paper 
copies of the questionnaire were produced and promoted for those individuals who did not 
have internet access, as well as easy read copies.

The need to reprioritise resources and look at different ways of working due to the Covid-19 
crisis has led to some slippage in the schedule from 2020/21 to 2021/22.  Because of this, we 

Page 24



12 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

extended the time for which the questionnaire was open to the end of April 2021 instead of 
February 2021.  This allowed more Gwynedd residents to have their say.  Various engagement 
exercises with individuals and groups online or face to face are also planned for the future, 
subject to Covid-19 restrictions.

Page 25



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 13

Action Point 2:

We will work to develop more contact with groups or individuals who have protected 
characteristics, by continuing to work with the Equality Core Group and extending it, and 
making contact with additional groups of people with specific protected characteristics 
in order to continue to receive various views.  We will also undertake further measures to 
ensure that our Residents’ Panel includes a variety of people with protected characteristics, 
by targeting as required.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This is ongoing work, therefore no specific action had been identified for this period.

What did we do?

We have contacted a number of organisations to raise awareness of the Equality Core Group. 
However, communication with some organisations has been challenging during the year for a 
number of reasons including the fact that staff were not in work due to the Covid-19 crisis or 
that individuals had no internet access.  

This work will continue during 2021/22 and we hope that the situation will continue to 
improve and that it will be easier to connect with people.  Also, if the sityation continues to 
improve people should return to work and it will be easier to contact people.

Page 26



14 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Action Point 3:

By working with managers and heads of departments, we will ensure that everyone 
who works for the Council understands the needs of people with specific protected 
characteristics.  We will use the information gathered to improve our services and create 
Equality Impact Assessments. Our Access/Equality Policy will need to be reviewed, whilst 
also considering the operational recommendations of the Equality Core Group.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This action point was ongoing work but we set a goal of reviewing the Access/Equality Policy 
by September 2021. 

What did we do?

The work of addressing this action point is progressing.  The Equality Adviser has been 
assisting managers in adapting services to comply with the constraints of the Covid-19 crisis.  
The Adviser has also been making information available about the impact of Covid-19 on 
different characteristic groups.

It is anticipated that the Access/Equality Policy will be in place by September 2021 as 
intended.

Page 27



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 15

Objective 3: 

Build on the work 
already carried out to 
embed Equality Impact 
Assessments as a tool to 
ensure better decision-
making.

Page 28



16 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Although the number and quality of our assessments have improved during the time of the 
Equality Plan 2016-20, there is room for further improvement.  By using the assessments to 
their full potential, we can ensure that we put all the people of Gwynedd at the centre of 
everything we do as a Council, by giving due attention to equality matters.  This Objective is 
closely linked to Objective 2, as use of the engagement work will be required to undertake 
Equality Impact Assessments.

Our intention in doing so is to ensure that decisions are made on a firm basis at every level 
of the Council as staff and Elected Members fully understand and are able to carry out their 
duties.

Action Point 1:

We will set up specific additional training for relevant staff and Elected Members.  It will focus 
on the advantages of an Equality Impact Assessment and provide guidance and advice on 
undertaking them in order to give thorough consideration to any potential impacts on the 
residents of Gwynedd.  The content of the training will be regularly reviewed in order to 
ensure that it is up to date.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

Set up specific training on assessing the effect of a new/adapted policy or procedure for 
Members.

What did we do?

As with Objective 1 training, the planned completion date has slipped to April 2022 due to the 
need to find new ways of delivery.  We will work to complete this by the end of 2021/22.

Page 29



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 17

Action Point 2:

Over the coming years, we will strengthen arrangements by ensuring that Elected Members 
are increasingly confident to challenge the quality of Equality Impact Assessments as a 
natural part of their work in receiving reports/information as a basis for decision-making in 
the Cabinet, Scrutiny Committees and Performance Challenge meetings.  The above training 
will be essential to ensure that this procedure works well, and we will provide guidelines for 
the various meetings. 

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

Complete the guidelines for Members who are members of different committees by 
September 2020.

What did we do?

There was a slippage to April 2021 in the Welsh Government’s schedule for the publication 
of the Socio-economic Duty.  As a result, because information on the duty needed to be 
included in the guidelines, there was a slippage in this schedule too - from April 2020 to 
April 2021.  The work has then slipped further as we had decided to create a new Composite 
Impact Assessment form based on a new regional form and this was not ready by the end of 
the year.  We will ensure that we complete this work during 2021/22.

Page 30



18 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Action Point 3:

We will continue to work with Council Departments to ensure that due attention is given to 
equality requirements within any process of identifying savings or cuts.  During the period 
of this Plan, we will ensure that timely and high quality Equality Impact Assessments are 
maintained and that they contribute to the process of identifying any plans.  We hope that 
through this, we will be aware of any negative implications that decisions on budgetary cuts 
will have for specific minority groups in Gwynedd, and mitigate them where possible.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This work is continuous and takes place as required.  

What did we do?

As there  was no need to find new savings or cuts during the period in question, no action 
was required on this particular point. However, Council staff and departments have received 
ongoing help and support with impact assessments in other fields.

Page 31



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 19

Objective 4:  

Act to reduce the gender 
pay gap and identify any 
pay gap based on any 
other characteristic.

Page 32



20 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Although the previous two audits have demonstrated that the Council provides equal pay 
to women and men, the average pay gap continues, similarly to every other local authority.  
On the whole, this is due to the fact that women are less likely to apply, and therefore are 
less likely to be offered jobs on higher pay scales within the Council.  We have already 
identified this as a matter of priority that needs to be addressed, which is why the ‘Women in 
Leadership’ project is included in the Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023. 

Although national evidence shows that other wage gaps exist, such as the difference 
between disabled people and the rest of any workforce, it proves difficult to gather enough 
information within the Council as we depend on staff members to provide the information 
voluntarily.  As with every other public organisation, the numbers who do so are low.

Our intention in implementing this goal is to have more women applying for leadership 
positions, to monitor and reduce the gender-based pay gap, and to identify other gaps and 
begin work to mitigate these.

Action Point 1:

Over the next few years, we will focus on encouraging more staff to complete the optional 
equality data questionnaire in order to increase the amount of data we have on our workforce. 
This will allow us to set a baseline, identify gaps in our workforce and to undertake audits 
based on other protected characteristics.  We will employ various methods of doing this 
during the period of the Plan, including an advertising campaign and raising the awareness of 
staff members who are new to the self-service system.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This is ongoing, long-term work therefore no specific work had been identified for this year.

What did we do?

In common with other organisations, the numbers who have provided this information are 
low.  Numbers are rising slowly but despite the extra efforts, the number is still low with just 
over 40% having completed it by the end of the year.  We believe that the main reason is 
that it is optional and that the information we seek is information that not everyone would be 
comfortable sharing.  

We have been encouraging staff to complete the questionnaire to identify the protected 
characteristics of our workforce since the questionnaire was updated approximately three 
years ago.  During the year, we have: 

• published an article in Gair o Gyngor (the Council’s in-house newsletter) 

• ensured that the Chief Executive raised and mentioned it during his live virtual session for 
any Council staff who wished to attend on the 17 December

• encouraged staff members who are new to our self-service system to complete it

Page 33



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 21

We will continue to encourage staff to complete the questionnaire over the next year through 
various means such as:  

• sharing a message twice a year to remind people that the information can be changed, 
e.g. in a situation where a member of staff has got married or has had a long-term illness

• reminding anyone who has not completed it of the need to do so   

• discussing with individual Heads to discover the best methods of reaching their workforce.

Page 34



22 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Action Point 2: 

We will continue to conduct an annual audit on the wage gap between men and women, 
and by collecting the data in accordance with Action Point 1, will work to develop our ability 
to undertake such an audit in relation to other protected characteristics. In addition, we will 
undertake a pay audit every three years in order to ensure that we continue to pay equal 
wages for the kind of work being done.  We will also work towards putting plans in place to 
reduce any gaps that emerge in light of the audit.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• Conduct an audit on the wage difference between men and women (gender pay gap)

• Undertake a gender-based pay audit (equal pay audit)

What did we do?

There has been a slippage in the schedule for conducting both audits.  The intention is that 
we conduct the wage difference audit internally within the Council, whilst as is customary 
and required, we pay an external consultant to complete the gender-based pay audit.  Both 
pieces of work rely to a degree on producing the same data set, and the need to simplify 
the computerised system to produce the information.  There has been some delay on this 
element, which in turn has affected the schedule.  Our intention in the short-term is to 
continue to try and resolve the internal problem while proceeding with the external audit.  We 
hope to be able to achieve this by mid-summer.

Page 35



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 23

Action Point 3:

Work has also been ongoing as part of the Women in Leadership Project (one of the projects 
contained within the Council Plan 2018-23).  We have identified that the number of women in 
management roles in the Council is disproportionately low, given that women form 70% of the 
entire workforce.  The project’s main objective is to increase the number of women who apply 
for and attain leadership positions within the Council by reviewing the conditions and the 
working environment in order to attract more women to undertake these posts in future.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

• Review the conditions and the working environment to ensure that we are innovative in 
encouraging Women in Leadership and identify and seek to remove any barriers that 
could prevent women from reaching leadership and management posts within the 
Council.  

• Implement a work programme that includes introducing a potential development 
programme for women, carrying out an audit of our recruitment and appointment 
methods for managerial posts and creating a forum for female leaders and prospective 
leaders within the Council.

What did we do? 

A series of forums was arranged for Council staff and Elected Members who are women, 
facilitated by some of the Council’s senior female officers.  Topics such as experiences of 
leading and managing during the Covid-19 crisis were discussed and a discussion held on 
preparing for senior jobs.  They were attended by a total of 40 women.  The sessions received 
positive feedback and it was expressed that it would be beneficial to hold more sessions.  

The main messages deriving from these ‘conversation sessions’ have been recorded 
and consequently further activities were held - namely sessions on ‘imposter syndrome’ 
which were attended by a total of 79 staff, and 18 Elected Members.  There are further 
arrangements in the pipeline to introduce a mentoring programme for the Council’s female 
leaders and prospective leaders as part of a programme of developing potential for women 
while the ‘conversation sessions’ have been established as a continuous arrangement.

The work of reviewing recruitment and appointment arrangements for managerial posts has 
slipped during the year but the Project Group has received a presentation on matters to be 
considered further by the Human Resources Manager. 

Page 36



Adroddiad Blynyddol Cydraddoldeb Cyngor Gwynedd 2020-202124 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Objective 5:

Act to attract a range 
of applicants for posts 
in order to increase 
the diversity of our 
workforce.

Page 37



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 25

The Council is one of the county’s largest employers. It is important, therefore, that we 
work towards ensuring that our workforce reflects the Gwynedd working age population 
as far as possible.  The Cabinet has identified this as one of its main priorities for the Plan in 
its initial discussions.  We have already identified a lack of data in relation to the protected 
characteristics within our workforce and, unfortunately, this deficiency creates problems as 
we attempt to take appropriate action.  Therefore, the success of the work outlined above 
under Objective 4 is integral to accomplishing Objective 5.  It should be noted that we have 
no intention to undertake the work in an artificial manner.  Rather, we will seek to highlight the 
opportunities available to people from various backgrounds, in order to ensure that we can 
attract the broadest possible range of applicants.  This will provide us with assurance that we 
find the best person for every job in order to enable us to offer the best service consistently 
throughout the county and to meet the needs of our population.

Our intention in doing so is to ensure greater diversity of applicants for posts, which will lead 
to a workforce that reflects our population.

Action Point 1:

We will use the information that has been gathered from the equality questionnaire (see 
Objective 4, Action Point 1) and will conduct research and engage with the public and our 
staff in order to discover any factors that prevent specific cohorts of people with protected 
characteristics from applying for jobs.  We will also work to discover ways of encouraging 
them to apply, e.g. by advertising jobs on a wider level than the Council’s website alone, in 
order to attract a broader range of applications.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This work is ongoing but we aimed to complete the public survey to identify the barriers 
facing the people of Gwynedd who have different characteristics (in accordance with 
Objective 2, Action Point 1) before the end of the year.

What did we do?

We have begun the work of engaging with staff and the public to understand what prevents 
people with protected characteristics from applying for jobs with the Council as part of 
the work outlined in Objective 2.  However, as explained under Objective 2, the need to 
reprioritise resources and look at different ways of working due to the Covid-19 crisis has led 
to some slippage in the schedule from 2020/21 to 2021/22.

Because of this, it was decided to extend the time for which the questionnaire was open to 
allow the residents of Gwynedd to be able to contribute and have their say.  This also allowed 
more time to reach groups that are often not heard.  We also hope to be able to conduct 
various engagement exercises with individuals and groups online or face to face, subject to 
Covid-19 restrictions. 

Page 38



26 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Action Point 2:

Collaborate with other public bodies within our region such as North Wales Police or Betsi 
Cadwaladr University Health Board in order to address any barriers identified.  This could 
also provide access to a wider range of people, bearing in mind that the equality profile of all 
workforces are unlikely to be the same.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

This work is ongoing, therefore no specific work had been identified for this year.

What did we do?

We planned to collaborate across north Wales to hold events that would encourage people 
from diverse backgrounds to apply for work in the public sector.  The meetings would 
address the incorrect assumptions that some people have about working in the sector and 
provide useful information such as help on how to complete an application form effectively.  
It was not possible to move this work forward as it was being organised by a sub-group of 
the North Wales Public Sector Equality Network and work related to the crisis meant that 
they were unable to meet.  The Network will reconsider its priorities for the future and decide 
whether this work will continue in the same form.

Page 39



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 27

Action Point 3:

Prioritise working towards reaching Level 2 of the ‘Disability Confident’ scheme in order to be 
a ‘Confident Employer’, and look into becoming a Stonewall Champion.

What did we promise to do in 2020/21?

No specific work had been identified for this year.

What did we do?

Work on achieving Level 2 is progressing and it is anticipated that the timetable will be 
reached (September 2022). We have already identified what will need to be achieved to attain 
Level 2 of the scheme, with the actions covering the following themes: 

• Seek to influence other organizations to become disability confident

• Ensure staff have access to bespoke training in the field 

• Continue to take steps to remove barriers that may hinder in-service development for 
disabled staff 

• Further develop the opportunities for disabled staff to provide feedback, by encouraging 
conversations between managers and staff but also by developing specific networks. 

• Further develop how we recruit and appoint disabled staff. 

We have not yet fully completed the task of understanding Stonewall’s membership; that 
work is ongoing, with a decision on whether or not to pursue this particular direction in the 
coming year.

Page 40



Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-202128

Information
In accordance with the guidelines of the Equality and Human Rights Commission, Gwynedd 
Council is required to report annually on the information we gather in the field of equality. 

Monitoring Staff Equality Details 

Because filling the form is optional (in accordance with the guidelines), not enough people 
have completed it.  We have recognised this, and have pledged to work to encourage more 
people to complete it (Objective 4, Action Point 1).  Once we have sufficient information, we 
will be able to identify pay gaps, initially between the genders, then more widely (Objective 4, 
Action Point 2) and see if action is needed to improve the diversity of our workforce (Objective 
5).  This will aim to identify and deal with any discrimination, harassment and victimisation, 
whilst advancing equality of opportunity and creating better relationships between people 
who share a particular protected characteristic and those who do not share it.

The information on the equality characteristics of our workforce can be found in Appendix 1.

Page 41



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 29

Complaints and concerns

The Equality Adviser advises on any complaint made on the grounds of a protected 
characteristic or equality duty.  We also look for patterns annually which will enable us 
to identify and learn lessons.  This ensures that we are able to identify and deal with any 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between people who share a specific characteristic and those who do not.

Most of the complaints and concerns on the grounds of equality this year were allegations of 
racism against the Council or specific officers.  Most were connected to the Covid-19 crisis with 
claims that the Council had not acted appropriately because of their nationality.  Two were 
also received alleging racism on the grounds that they were from a minority  ethnic group, 
including one that went to the Ombudsman.  All these complaints were investigated and found 
to be unfounded because the Council was acting in accordance with legislation or guidance.  
The Council is considers what action needs to be taken as a result of this pattern.

Complaints were also received on the grounds of disability but there were no patterns to be 
identified.

Page 42



Adroddiad Blynyddol Cydraddoldeb Cyngor Gwynedd 2020-202130 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Engagement

Although the Council often engages with the public on all sorts of topics, we have realised that 
we do not have enough specific information about the precise barriers facing the people of 
Gwynedd when engaging with the Council.  Objective 2 recognises and addresses this.  We will 
use the information to assess the impact of our services which meet the three aims of the duty 
(i.e. to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity 
and foster good relations).

Page 43



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 31

Data

The North Wales Public Sector Equality Network, in conjunction with the Public Service 
Boards, created a regional data document in 2019/20 along the lines of the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Is Wales Fairer?’ to create the Equality Plan 2020/21.  It shows that there is a lack 
of information available in some core areas at a county or regional level.  This is likely due in 
part to the low numbers.  But there is useful information that shows how the region or county 
compares with Wales as a whole in areas such as education, housing and socio-economic 
disadvantage.  This information is available to draw up impact assessments that meet the 
three aims of the duty (i.e. to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations).  We are aware, however, that there are gaps 
in this information especially at county level and this is something we will be looking at when 
moving forward.

Page 44



Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-202132

Day-to-day Work
As each one of us possesses at least five protected characteristics, every part of the Council’s 
work contributes towards well-being based on equality.  However, a fair amount of the 
Council’s day-to-day work is also involved with meeting the needs of people with specific 
protected characteristics and responding to the three general duties.  Although things have 
been difficult over the last year, the Council has continued to do this, and working with partners 
of all kinds has been central.  The Council is indebted to all the organisations and individuals 
who have been involved in this work, especially all the volunteers who have provided 
invaluable service during the lockdowns.  

Below are examples of the work under the three duties:

a) Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 
is prohibited by the Act. 

The Council has arrangements in place to respond to this duty.  We have policies to prohibit 
harassment and victimisation, e.g. a whistle-blowing policy and a dignity at work policy as 
well as policies to prevent discrimination in the workplace, e.g. a menopause policy and 
transgender policy.  We also of course have procedures to ensure respect and dignity for our 
service users.  The Equality Policy and Access Policy will be updated during 2021/22 in line 
with Objective 2 above.

The impact assessments that are undertaken on changes to policies or projects help us to 
identify and mitigate potential unlawful discrimination.  As we have had to adapt our ways of 
working to ensure safety during the lockdown periods, assessing the impact helped to ensure 
that the changes did not discriminate against people with specific equality characteristics. 

We attempted to make the pages on the Council’s website providing information on Covid-19 
as accessible as possible, by including audio clips in both English and Welsh.  The Council 
also worked with the Recite company to make sure the information on the website was in the 
most appropriate format for them - it was possible to change the text size, change the colour 
and contrast of the text and background.  There was also a screen reader in several different 
languages along with an easy read version.

b) Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a characteristic and those 
who do not.

To enhance the educational opportunities for learners and their families, Storiel in Bangor 
initially used the historical resources they have in the museum to create information leaflets for 
the whole family and to help with home education.
Food poverty can affect some cohorts with equality characteristics more than others, and the 
Covid-19 crisis certainly brought those changes to the fore, as already stated.  The Council was 
pleased to work with a range of partners, companies and other individuals to help distribute 
food in different ways:

Page 45



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 33

• The Council supported the work of food banks during the lockdown by distributing food 
from school kitchens, which would otherwise have gone to waste.  In addition, two of the 
county’s schools, Ysgol Maesincla in Caernarfon and Ysgol Hafod Lon in Penrhyndeudraeth, 
were used as hubs to collect and distribute donations from companies and individuals, 
along with food newly ordered by the Council.  The food was distributed to the Food Banks 
across the county by Adra, the Gwynedd and north Wales social housing provider.  

• The Council was also a key part of the Welsh Government’s scheme to distribute food 
packages to nearly 3,500 people across the county who had to shield and self-isolate, 
ensuring no individual faced any barrier to receiving food due to personal circumstances. 

• For those who did not fall into the Welsh Government’s shielding and self-isolation 
category, but who still could not access food, the Council set up a custom-made scheme 
entitled Neges, in conjunction with Menter Môn, Anglesey County Council and the 
company, Dylan’s.  A weekly food package was distributed to young people who had just 
left care circumstances, homeless people in temporary accommodation, and children and 
their families with extra care needs.

Page 46



Adroddiad Blynyddol Cydraddoldeb Cyngor Gwynedd 2020-202134 Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-2021

Also to ensure the safety of people during the lockdown period, the Council offered support 
to the friends groups who were carrying out invaluable work in their local areas, doing all 
sorts of favours for the residents who were self-isolating, e.g. shopping, fetching medication 
and walking the dog.  The main source of support was to find personal protective equipment 
(PPE) for them, especially at a time when there was a great shortage of it.  Adra distributed this 
equipment too. 

As a means of tackling women’s period poverty, Gwynedd Council was able to run 
campaigns to ensure access to period products with dignity, thanks to a grant from the Welsh 
Government.  It was also a chance to raise awareness of the environmental benefits of reusable 
products.  The work involved diverting the supply that would normally be in libraries, so that a 
free supply was available in the food banks and products from the schools were distributed to 
the pupils who needed them.  There were advertisements on social media sites to encourage 
disadvantaged young people who are not engaged in the mainstream education system to get 
in touch to obtain period products too and distribution continued through Flying Start Centres’ 
six family support centres.

Page 47



Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-202135

To realise its vision of ensuring that every pupil in the county can achieve his or her full 
potential, Gwynedd Council’s Cabinet aims to provide laptops or electronic devices for all 
school pupils in the county.  The intention is to provide pupils from year three upwards with a 
laptop and foundation phase children with a tablet over the next few years.  The scheme is part 
funded in the early years by the Welsh Government.  Year 10 and 11 pupils will be the first to 
receive the equipment, with the process starting during 2020/21.  The programme will then be 
extended to the rest of the pupils in Gwynedd.

Dealing with homelessness is an important part of ensuring equality as some specific equality 
characteristics such as disability and minority ethnicity and homelessness are linked.  The 
homelessness percentage in Gwynedd has increased by almost 40% over the last five years.  
With an increase in Universal Credit cases this year and job losses as a result of the Covid-19 
crisis, demand for this type of accommodation and service is at an all-time high.  As part of 
implementing the Gwynedd Housing Strategy 2019-22, a number of initiatives were undertaken 
to meet the growing needs in homelessness:

• An innovative new housing scheme began in October 2020, Gwynedd Council’s first home-
building project for more than a quarter of a century.  Four eco-friendly units (which use 
90% less energy than traditional homes, keeping costs low for tenants) have been built on 
the site of the old Ysgol Pendalar building in Caernarfon.  Their purpose is to house those at 
risk of homelessness in our communities.

• In a joint scheme between Gwynedd Council and Adra, the north Wales housing provider, 
local older people were offered comfortable and suitable homes in the Llŷn area in 
November 2020.  It involved the development of 28 purpose-built flats on the site of former 
Gwynedd Council buildings at Frondeg, Pwllheli, a convenient location close to the town 
centre.  The development responds to the lack of suitable accommodation for local people 
aged 55 and over and/or anyone with care needs.  

• In December, planning permission was obtained to redevelop the vacant site in Bangor 
into 12 flats with support to prevent homelessness in Gwynedd.  Adra is leading on the 
development, with the building then being managed in partnership by Gwynedd Council 
and North Wales Housing.  

• In January, Gwynedd Council’s Cabinet approved a report seeking permission to borrow 
£15.4 million to buy approximately 100 houses to let at an affordable rent to local people 
over the next six years.

• In order to provide accommodation and opportunities for vulnerable young people to 
develop their life skills, substantial funding has been secured for an innovative regeneration 
scheme to transform two prominent buildings on the Maes in Caernarfon.  The £950,000 
scheme is being led by Gwynedd Council and the young people’s support charity GISDA 
with funding from the Welsh Government.  It will create four apartments for up to five 
vulnerable young people, training space and offices for GISDA.  The existing training café 
will be extended to support more young people to develop their skills in order to increase 
opportunities to join the local workforce.  The project supports the Council’s efforts to 
ensure that the young people of Gwynedd have access to the support they need from 
GISDA’s experienced workers so that they can live independently and achieve their full 
potential in their communities.

To help maintain the well-being and mental health of their pupils, at the end of 2020, the 

Page 48



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 36

Council’s primary schools began using a series of daily videos through the medium of Welsh.  
The videos were prepared by Leisa Mererid, a yoga and mindfulness teacher, and were funded 
by Hunaniaith - Gwynedd’s language initiative. 

To start 2021 in a positive way, supporting mental well-being after a difficult year for all, creative 
activities were offered online by Gwynedd Council’s Well-being Team and the Arts Council of 
Wales.  The ‘Well-being for Me’ project is based on the ‘five ways to well-being’, which are five 
actions that contribute positively to mental well-being - connect, keep learning, be active, take 
notice and give.   The programme was offered through a closed Facebook group with a small 
team sharing their experiences and ideas for creativity and well-being.  It is not a programme 
of treatment or therapy but rather a programme to inspire and share ideas that may support 
the people of Gwynedd.  

Due to safety measures during the crisis, the Council has had to significantly adapt its ways of 
working.  We have sought to ensure that we do so in the most appropriate way for people with 
various needs.  Here are a couple of examples:

• Following some months of closure due to the first lockdown, the Library Service was 
restarted at the end of June in safe ways that were suitable for all.  The library had to be 
contacted in advance to order books and the library then contacted the users when the 
books were ready for collection.  Recognising that this would not be suitable for everyone, 
home delivery of books was also arranged.  Because the Home Library Service, which 
works in a slightly different way, is more suitable for some people, it was also possible to 
re-establish it later.

• At about the same time, live online sessions for young people started because Youth 
Services were unable to meet face to face.  100 young people enrolled within the first 

Frondeg development, Pwllheli

Page 49



Annual Equality Report Gwynedd Council 2020-202137

week alone.  The sessions are run by Gwynedd youth workers who are trained to run online 
sessions with young people.  

c) Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those who do not. 

The Council celebrated Carers Week on 8-14 June 2020 in a different way from the usual. 
Instead of meetings across the county, a series of videos were posted on social media to 
celebrate and recognise the valuable contribution of carers.  It is estimated that there are 
approximately 12,500 carers in Gwynedd.  These are the people who look after a family 
member or friends (they are sometimes called unpaid carers) and they are often hidden carers.

Black History Month in September 2020 also had an added poignancy this year following the 
death of George Floyd and the ‘Black Lives Matter’ campaign.  Gwynedd Council asked people 
to send inspirational stories, pictures and memories of black people, and of other minority 
ethnic communities, which have enriched our communities in many ways.  These will be 
collated electronically and retained as a basis for future initiatives to celebrate the diversity of 
Gwynedd.

Although it was not possible to attend an event on this occasion, Gwynedd Council marked 
Holocaust Memorial Day on 27 January 2021 by posting a message on social websites.  We 
believe that this day needs to be commemorated more than ever.  The day is an opportunity 
for communities to reflect on how all of us can make a better, safer future for all by learning 
from the past.  It is important to remember that a range of people were affected including 
Jews, Jehovah’s Witnesses, gay men, gypsy and Roma people and disabled people.

Dementia Go is a physical activity programme for people affected by dementia, including 
those who have been diagnosed and their carers, family and friends.  With the advent of the 
Covid-19 crisis, face-to-face sessions had to end including 13 exercise classes throughout 
Gwynedd, community sports events, outdoor pursuits, dances, awareness sessions and 
special events.  The team responded to the crisis by offering ongoing support to members 
including online activities with a new user-friendly website.  It included support activities, and 
put people in touch with services and organisations in Gwynedd that can help and support 
them.  To convey all the different aspects, the team, in consultation with their members, chose 
a new name - Gwynedd Dementia Active.  The website was funded by donations from families 
in memory of loved ones and the Council is extremely grateful to receive them.

Blaentroed is an exciting and innovative project to offer a period of work and training for 
unemployed young people in Gwynedd, and offer an opportunity for local businesses to 
receive help at no cost as they reopen and recover.  The aim of the project is to add value 
to the Welsh Government’s £2bn Kickstart scheme, which aims to create thousands of job 
opportunities for young people for six months, without the need for the employer to contribute 
any money.  But as it can be difficult for smaller businesses to take advantage of the scheme 
and there are so many small businesses in Gwynedd, a partnership was established between 
social enterprises in Nantlle, Ogwen and Bro Ffestiniog along with Gwynedd Council and Grŵp 
Llandrillo Menai to make it easier for young people and local businesses to get involved.

Gwynedd Council, on behalf of several stakeholders, is developing a nomination to attempt 
to secure world heritage site status for the slate landscape of north-west Wales, which 
includes six key areas.  Alongside this, the Council has secured funding from the National 
Lottery Heritage Fund Great Place Scheme, Snowdonia Partnership Fund and Gwynedd Rural 

Page 50



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 38

Innovation Fund, to create the ‘LleCHI’ Scheme which focuses on community engagement, 
local empowerment, improving destinations, community regeneration and pride.  A recent 
example of its work in primary schools is the artwork of Ysgol y Felinheli pupils on a flood 
defence wall in the village.  At secondary sector level, 15 young people from the Welsh 
Slate areas have come together, in conjunction with the National Slate Museum, to gain a 
wealth of diverse experiences such as becoming Young Ambassadors for the World Heritage 
Application.  Other experiences include creating blogs, designing a logo, a virtual meeting with 
an assessor for the World Heritage Site application, and asking international goalkeeper Owain 
Fôn Williams how the quarrying landscape of Dyffryn Nantlle inspires his artwork.

Page 51



 
 

Appendix 1 

2020-21 Employment Information 

The Council has a duty, according to the Equality Act 2010, to provide employment 

information annually.  This is the information for 2020-21. 

 

1. Details of the workforce in general 

41.3% of the Council's staff have completed an optional equality questionnaire, 

and the figures below are based on these, unless noted otherwise.   The 

information about the equality characteristics are as follows: 

Gender:  

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Female 71.2 29.4 

Male 27.9 11.5 

Other / I think of myself in another way 0.1 0.1 

I prefer not to say 0.8 0.3 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

Nationality or National Identity: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Scottish 0.3 0.1 

Welsh 89.1 36.8 

Northern Irish 0.1 0.1 

British 5.7 2.3 

English 2.9 1.2 

Other 1.0 0.4 

I prefer not to say 0.9 0.4 

Total 100.0 41.3 

Race: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

White 98.1 40.5 

Black - Caribbean  - - 

Black - African 0.04 0.02 

Black - Other - - 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers - - 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 0.04 0.02 

Mixed - White and Black African - - 

Page 52



 
 

Appendix 1 

Mixed - White and Asian 0.1 0.03 

Mixed - Other 0.1 0.1 

Asian - Indian - - 

Asian - Pakistani 0.04 0.02 

Asian - Bangladeshi 0.1 0.03 

Asian - Chinese 0.04 0.02 

Asian - Other 0.2 0.1 

Other 0.3 0.1 

I prefer not to say 1.0 0.4 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

Sexual Orientation : 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Bisexual 0.2 0.1 

Gay Man 0.5 0.2 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 0.3 0.1 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 95.9 39.6 

Other 0.3 0.1 

I prefer not to say 2.8 1.2 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

Religion: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Atheist 2.2 0.9 

Buddhist 0.1 0.03 

Christian 57.4 23.7 

No Religion 32.6 13.4 

Muslim 0.1 0.1 

Jewish - - 

Hindu - - 

Other 2.3 0.9 

I prefer not to say 5.3 2.2 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



 
 

Appendix 1 

Marital Status:  

Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No  40.6 16.7 

Yes 55.9 23.1 

I prefer not to say 3.5 1.5 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

 

Disability : 

Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No  95.4 39.4 

Yes 2.1 0.9 

I prefer not to say 2.5 1.0 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

 

Gender Identity: 

Has your sexual identification changed from 

when you were born?  

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No 97.1 40.1 

Yes 1.4 0.6 

I prefer not to say 1.5 0.6 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

Age: 

 % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

16-19 0.4 0.2 

20-24 4.3 1.8 

25-29 10.0 4.1 

30-34 10.8 4.5 

35-39 11.7 4.8 

40-44 12.8 5.3 

45-49 13.4 5.5 

50-54 14.3 5.9 

Page 54



 
 

Appendix 1 

55-59 12.5 5.2 

60-64 6.4 2.6 

65-69 1.7 0.7 

70-74 0.2 0.1 

I prefer not to say 1.5 0.6 

Total 100.0 41.3 

 

 

2. Nature of the Posts 

There is only a need to note a gender equality characteristic here.  

 

a) Numbers employed according to posts: 

Analysis not available 

 

b) Numbers employed according to salary scale: 

 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I prefer 

not to say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Basic Scale (BS) 31.3 7.0 0.04 0.3 38.7 16.0 

Officers (O) 15.7 9.2 0.04 0.3 25.3 10.4 

Senior Officers 

(SO) 

10.8 6.8 0.04 0.2 17.8 7.3 

Senior Managers 

(SM) 

0.4 0.8 0.04 - 1.2 0.5 

Chief Officers 0.1 0.2 - - 0.4 0.2 

Teachers 

(Including 

unqualified and 

supply) 

9.5 2.3 - - 11.7 4.8 

Headteachers / 

Deputy 

Headteachers 

1.9 0.9 - - 2.9 1.2 

Soulbury 1.6 0.6 - - 2.1 0.9 

Total 71.2 27.9 0.1 0.8 100.0 41.3 

Page 55



 
 

Appendix 1 

c) Number employed according to salary range: 

 

Based on the salary of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) persons, and not necessarily the 

actual salary they receive.  

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other 

/ I think 

of myself 

in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

£10,000 - £19,999  31.4 7.0 0.04 0.3 38.7 16.1 

£20,000 - £29,999  14.4 6.9 - 0.2 21.4 8.8 

£30,000 - £39,999  20.1 9.8 0.1 0.2 30.1 12.4 

£40,000 - £49,999  2.8 2.3 0.04 0.1 5.3 2.2 

£50,000 - £59,999  2.1 1.2 - - 3.3 1.3 

£60,000 - £69,999  0.4 0.5 - - 0.8 0.3 

£70,000 - £79,999  0.1 0.2 - - 0.2 0.1 

£80,000+  0.1 0.1 - - 0.2 0.1 

Total 71.2 27.9 0.1 0.8 100.0 41.3 

 

ch) Number employed according to contract type 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Fixed Term 2.1 0.7 - - 2.7 1.1 

Casual 4.2 1.1 - - 5.3 2.2 

Permanent 64.9 26.1 0.1 0.8 92.0 38.0 

Total 71.2 27.9 0.1 0.8 100.0 41.3 

 

d) Number employed according to work patterns 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Full-time 37.3 23.6 0.1 0.6 61.6 25.4 

Part-time 33.9 4.3 - 0.2 38.4 15.9 

Total 71.2 27.9 0.1 0.8 100.0 41.3 

Page 56



 
 

Appendix 1 

3. People who have applied for jobs with the authority during the past 

year 

Note: these are applicants who have applied for a job on-line only - it does not include 

those who have made a paper application It includes people who are already employed 

with the Authority as well as external applicants. A person may have applied for more 

than one post and may therefore appear twice in the data.  

 

Gender Number 

Female 1,791 

Male 996 

Other / I think of myself in another way 6 

I prefer not to say 17 

Total 2,810 

 

 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish 3 

Welsh 2,322 

Northern Irish 4 

British 268 

English 103 

Other 87 

I prefer not to say 23 

Total 2,810 

 

 

Race Number 

White 2,699 

Black - Caribbean  1 

Black - African  18 

Black - Other 1 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers - 

Asian - Indian 13 

Asian - Pakistani 2 

Asian - Bangladeshi 4 

Asian - Chinese 7 

Asian - Other 15 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 7 

Page 57



 
 

Appendix 1 

Mixed - White and Black African 6 

Mixed - White and Asian 4 

Mixed - Other 9 

Other 4 

I prefer not to say 20 

Total 2,810 

 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 29 

Gay Man 33 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 23 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 2,641 

Other 11 

I prefer not to say 73 

Total 2,810 

 

Religion Number 

Atheist 51 

Buddhist 13 

Christian 1,165 

No Religion 1,322 

Hindu 6 

Jewish 3 

Muslim 13 

Other 67 

I prefer not to say 170 

Total 2,810 

 

Marital Status:  Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No  1,818 

Yes 901 

I prefer not to say 91 

Total 2,810 

 

Disability : Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number 

No  2,653 

Yes 87 

I prefer not to say 70 

Total 2,810 

 

Page 58



 
 

Appendix 1 

 

Has your sexual identification changed from when you were born?  Number 

No 2,771 

Yes 17 

I prefer not to say 22 

Total 2,810 

 

Age Number 

16-19 79 

20-24 602 

25-29 549 

30-34 409 

35-39 374 

40-44 224 

45-49 179 

50-54 164 

55-59 119 

60-64 45 

65-69 7 

70-74 - 

75+ - 

I prefer not to say 59 

Total 2,810 

 

4. Council employees who have applied for a different post within the 

authority 

Part of the above figures. 

 

5. Council employees who have made an application for training and the 

number who were successful 

Of the 2,904 staff members who requested training, 3 members of staff were 

unsuccessful with one of their requests for training.  It is not possible to analyse 

these 3 cases further due to the risk of identifying individuals.   

 

 

 

Page 59



 
 

Appendix 1 

6. Council employees who have completed training successfully 

2,904 members of staff completed training during the year, be that traditional 

training or an e-learning module.  Of these 1,392 had completed the equality 

questionnaire. 

Gender Number 

Female 1,025 

Male 352 

Other / I think of myself in another way 4 

I prefer not to say 11 

Total 1,392 

 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish 3 

Welsh 1,237 

Northern Irish 1 

British 80 

English 48 

Other 11 

I prefer not to say 12 

Total 1,392 

 

 

 

Race Number 

Asian - Pakistani 0 

Asian - Chinese 1 

Asian - Indian 0 

Asian - Bangladeshi 1 

Asian - Other 2 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 0 

Mixed - White and Black African 0 

Mixed - White and Asian 2 

Mixed - Other 2 

White 1,362 

Black - Caribbean  0 

Black - African 1 

Black - Other 0 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers 0 

Other 6 

I prefer not to say 15 

Total 1,392 

 

Page 60



 
 

Appendix 1 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 6 

Gay Man 8 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 5 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 1,323 

Other 6 

I prefer not to say 44 

Total 1,392 

 

 

Religion Number 

Atheist 28 

Buddhist 1 

Christian 784 

No Religion 470 

Muslim 0 

Jewish 0 

Hindu 0 

Other 35 

I prefer not to say 74 

Total 1,392 

 

Marital Status:  Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No 558 

Yes 781 

I prefer not to say 53 

Total 1,392 

 

Disability : Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number 

No  1,329 

Yes 22 

I prefer not to say 41 

Total 1,392 

 

Has your sexual identification changed from when you were born?  Number 

No 1,350 

Yes 16 

I prefer not to say 26 

Total 1,392 

 

Page 61



 
 

Appendix 1 

Age Number 

16-19 5 

20-24 60 

25-29 139 

30-34 157 

35-39 168 

40-44 188 

45-49 206 

50-54 193 

55-59 167 

60-64 75 

65-69 13 

70-74 0 

I prefer not to say 21 

Total 1,392 

 

7. Staff members who have been part of the complaints procedure, either 

as a complainant or as the person the complaint was made against 

10 individuals have been part of the complaints procedure.  Of these, only 3 had 

completed the equality questionnaire. It is not possible to analyse further due to 

the risk of identifying individuals.   

 

8. Staff members who have been through the disciplinary procedure 

56 cases of disciplinary have occurred during the year.  Of these, only 16 had 

completed the equality questionnaire. It is not possible to analyse further due to 

the risk of identifying individuals.   

 

9. Staff members who have left the Council's employment 

477 individuals left the Council's employment during 2020/21. Of these, 121 

completed the equality questionnaire. 

Gender Number 

Female 70 

Male 50 

Other / I think of myself in another way 0 

I prefer not to say 1 

Total 121 

 

Page 62



 
 

Appendix 1 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish 1 

Welsh 106 

Northern Irish 1 

British 8 

English 3 

Other 1 

I prefer not to say 1 

Total 121 

 

 

Race Number 

Asian - Pakistani - 

Asian - Indian - 

Asian - Bangladeshi - 

Asian - Chinese - 

Asian - Other - 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean - 

Mixed - White and Black African - 

Mixed - White and Asian - 

Mixed - Other - 

White 119 

Black - Caribbean  - 

Black - African - 

Black - Other - 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers - 

Other - 

I prefer not to say 2 

Total 121 

 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 3 

Gay Man - 

Gay Woman / Lesbian - 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 112 

Other - 

I prefer not to say 6 

Total 121 

 

 

Page 63



 
 

Appendix 1 

Religion Number 

Atheist 4 

Buddhist - 

Christian 62 

No Religion 41 

Muslim - 

Jewish - 

Hindu - 

Other  6 

I prefer not to say 8 

Total 121 

 

Marital Status : Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No  51 

Yes 66 

I prefer not to say 4 

Total 121 

 

Disability : Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number  

No  113 

Yes 3 

I prefer not to say 5 

Total 121 

 

Has your sexual identification changed from when you were born?  Number 

No 114 

Yes 1 

I prefer not to say 6 

Total 121 

 

Age Number 

16-19 1 

20-24 10 

25-29 15 

30-34 11 

35-39 7 

40-44 8 

45-49 8 

50-54 7 

55-59 16 

60-64 21 

Page 64



 
 

Appendix 1 

65-69 12 

70-74 3 

I prefer not to say 2 

Total 121 

 

Page 65



                     
 

 
 
 
 
 
The Council is required (under the Equality Act 2010) to consider the impact that any 
change in any policy or procedures (or the creation of a new policy or procedure) will 
have on people with protected equality characteristics.  The Council also has 
additional general duties to ensure fairness and to foster good relationships.  
Therefore, a timely assessment should be made before any decision is taken on any 
relevant change (i.e. that affects people with a protected characteristic).   
 
The Council is required, under the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards 
(Section 44 of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011), to consider the impact 
that any change in policy or procedure (or creating a new policy or procedure), will 
have on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and to ensure that the 
Welsh language is not treated less favourably than English. Therefore, this document 
ensures that these decisions safeguard and promote the use made of the Welsh 
language. 
 
Since 1 April 2021, the Council has a duty to give due attention to addressing socio-

economic disadvantage in strategic decisions.  See below specific questions that 

address this duty, which asks us to consider how we reduce socio-economic 

disadvantage in strategic decisions. 

 
 

1) Details  
 
1.1.  What is the name of the policy / service in question?  
 

 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 
 

      
 
1.2  What is the purpose of the policy / service that is being created or 

amended?  What changes are being considered?  
 

 
The purpose of the Plan's implementation is to reduce inequality between people with 
protected characteristics and people without those characteristics in accordance with 
the duty under the Equality Act 2010 and the Cabinet's wishes.  
 
When the Equality Plan was prepared, we were unaware of what was to come, i.e. the 
Covid-19 crisis. It must now be acknowledged that things have changed, and that 
timetables have slipped as services have closed down or faced different demands on 
their time.  We also have to consider very different ways of implementing the objectives 

 

Assessing the Impact on Equality 

Characteristics, the Welsh language and the 

Socio-Economic Disadvantage  
 

Page 73



which, in turn, has a further impact on the timetable.  The 2020-21 Annual Report 
provides details on this 
 
Something that has become increasingly apparent to everyone because of the virus is 
the importance of considering the needs of people with different characteristics.  We 
must ensure that we act appropriately in order to include everyone as we proceed with 
the Objectives.   
 
Another factor that has arisen during this period is the Black Lives Matter protests.  We 
must ensure that we as a Council look at our procedures in order to ensure fairness for 
all.  Welsh Government is also consulting on a Race Equality Action Plan and 
Gwynedd Council appreciates the opportunity to look at our procedures and ensure 
fairness for people from minority ethnic groups. 
 
This Socio-Economic Duty came into force at the beginning of April, so it is included in 
this Equality Impact Assessment.  This is particularly important because of the 
economic problems that are emerging as a result of the pandemic.  Brexit will also 
affect this duty. 
 
This is the assessment that provides an overview of the Plan as a whole.  Separate 

impact assessments have been developed for each of the Objectives and they are 

being updated as needed. 

 

          
 
1.3  Who is responsible for this assessment?  
 

 

 Dewi Jones, the Council's Business Support Manager and Project Leader for 
Plan Implementation 

 Delyth G Williams, Policy and Equality Officer, Project Manager and Objective 3 
Lead 

 Carey Cartwright, Organisational Learning and Development Manager and 
Objective 1 Lead  

 Siôn Gwynfryn Williams, Communication and Engagement Manager and 
Objective 2 Lead  

 Eurig Williams, Human Resources Advisory Services Manager and Objectives 4 
& 5 Lead 

 

 
 
 
1.4  When did you commence the assessment? Which version is this? 
 

 
This is the 5th version and it is being made in July 2021 
 

 The work was commenced on 27 February 2019, when an initial draft was 

prepared 

Page 74



 Version 2 was commenced on 26 September 2019 in order to prepare the Plan 

for engagement. 

 Version 3 was commenced on 11 February 2020.  This is the version submitted 

to the Cabinet, in order for them to make a final decision to approve the Plan. 

 The assessment was amended further in July 2020 (Version 4).  This was the 

first amendment when implementing, but more importantly, this is the first 

amendment because of Covid-19, which has changed so much of our way of 

working. 

 This version coincides with the making of the 2020-21 Annual Report, which is 

the first Annual Report in the four-year period which explains the unavoidable 

changes made due to the pandemic, and addresses Black Lives Matter and the 

Socio-economic Duty. 

 
 

     
 

2)  Action 
 
 
2.1  Who are the stakeholders or partners whom we will have to work with to 

carry out this assessment?  
 

 

 The Public, especially people with specific protected characteristics 

 Organisations who support or represent people with specific protected 
characteristics, including the Equality Core Group 

 The Council’s Staff 

 Cabinet Members and Elected Members of Gwynedd Council. 
 

 
 
2.2  What steps have you taken to engage with people with protected 

characteristics, regarding the Welsh language or with communities (either 
due to location or due to need), who are living with a socio-economic 
disadvantage? 

 

 
Two initial sessions were held with the Equality Core Group in order to form a draft 
plan. Then, a wider consultation was undertaken on the draft between 16 December 
and 7 February, through a paper questionnaire (including easy-read) and on-line. 
Around 150 organisations were informed about the consultation.  A number of 
meetings were also held with two specific groups. 
 

We are also using information from the Council's other consultations when moving 
forward. 
 

 
 

Page 75



2.3 What was the outcome of the engagement? 
 

.   
The Equality Core Group supported the direction of the plan, as did the responses to 
the consultation. 
  
A number of useful observations were received as part of the consultations. As we 
move forward to implementation, we will consider the relevant comments to the various 
Objectives: 
  
Objective 1  

 It is important to ensure that the right people train 

 Need something every 2-3 years but it should not be a 'tick box' exercise. 

 Need to raise awareness of 'hidden' disabilities 

 Need to accept the 'social model' 

 A list of Elected Members' training attendance should be published (similar to 
attendance in the full Council / meetings) 

 Improve people's understanding that everyone has characteristics 

 Understanding as opposed to awareness of equality  

 The training must be tailored 

 Train people so that they can teach others about access etc. 

 Secure resources 

 Secure feedback e.g. mystery shopper 

 Need to be mindful of the costs 

 This should be happening already 

 Management courses for female employees 

 Specialist courses for managers to support the objectives 

 Help employees to spread equality throughout the population of Gwynedd. 
  

Objective 2  

 Need to improve understanding of people's real needs – not a 'tick box' exercise 

 Learning from others e.g. BCUHB 

 Concern about the privacy and sensitivity of the characteristics – will the Council 
deal with this appropriately? 

 Being aware of prior knowledge 

 Measure the use of public services by minority groups 

We will also use the information we received about various Council services during the 
engagement as a starting point for consultation. 
  
Objective 3  

 Raise awareness of the importance of an impact assessment – raise it to the 
same status as Safety Assessments. 

 Could we have a designated person who is responsible for this in every 
department? 

 It should not be a tick box exercise 
 

Objective 4  

 Need to look at what obstacles are causing a pay gap e.g. do we need a more 
flexible 'flexi' system? 

Page 76



 Disabled people might not be able to work full-time 

 We must ensure that this does not ultimately cause job losses 

 Need to identify the reasons behind the pay gap 

 Recognise the possibility that it might be reduced 'artificially' by gender self-
identification 

  
Objective 5  

 Why is the 'Disability Confident' Scheme not happening until September 2022? 

 Improving access in general 

 Remember the Access to Work Scheme 

 Want to ensure jobs for local people 

 The right person should be obtained for the job, regardless of their protected 
characteristics 

 Need to pay disabled people, rather than getting them to do voluntary work 

 A feeling that those who do not speak Welsh are marginalised from job 
opportunities within the Council. 

 Looking at the make-up of groups and committees in terms of equality 
characteristics 

 An opportunity for older people to share experiences with younger employees 

 More flexibility within the workforce 

   
In general  
  

 Too much focus on the Council staff instead of the people of Gwynedd – where 
is the equality for young people and older people in it? 

 Need to ensure that it will still be possible to deliver the plan whatever the 
political and social situation may be 

 Equality between areas in Gwynedd 

 Remember that equity is just as important as equality and that there are 9 
characteristics. Not promoting some characteristics more than others. 

 A need for a detailed action plan with measurable targets. 

 How will Brexit affect equality? 

 

 
 
2.4  On the basis of what other evidence are you acting? 
 

 
The main sources of information used in drawing up the Equality Plan are 'Is Wales 
fairer? 2018’ (the latest state of the nation report by the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission). This is as important as we move forward. 
  
The Regional Data Document provides us with more local information. 
  
The Report of the Equality and Human Rights Commission on the response of Welsh 
Authorities to the General Duty 

  
The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board's Well-being Assessment  
  

Page 77

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2018-is-wales-fairer-welsh.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2018-is-wales-fairer-welsh.pdf
https://www.llesiantgwyneddamon.org/cy/


Information about the impacts of Covid-19 e.g. 
 
COVID-19 BAME Socio-economic Sub Group Report  
 
Evidence in Welsh Government's consultation document on the Race Equality Action 
Plan. 
  

 

 
 
2.5  Are there any gaps in the evidence that needs to be collected?  
 

 
There are gaps in the data that is available locally, seemingly due to low numbers. We 
will need to see whether it is possible to access, or gather this information. 
 
We are also gather information on people's views of our services by implementing 
Objective 2. 
 

 
 
3)  Identifying the Impact  
 
 
3.1  The Council must duly address the impact that any changes will have on 

people with the following equality characteristics.  What impact will the 
new policy/service or the changes in the policy or service have on people 
with equality characteristics?  There is also a need to consider the impact 
on the socio-economic disadvantage and on the Welsh language. 

 

Characteristics What type 
of 
impact? * 
 

In what way?  What is the evidence? 
 

General Positive The aim of the Plan is to ensure that awareness 
regarding the needs of people with protected 
characteristics is deeply rooted within the Council's 
work. As everyone has characteristics such as race, 
age and gender this will ensure that services are 
improved for all of the people of Gwynedd. Having 
said that, more attention will need to be given to some 
cohorts than others of course, and so they will benefit 
more. 
  
We will conduct Equality Impact Assessments on the 
different projects within the Plan and the consultation 
and information-gathering work noted in the Plan is at 
the heart of this. 
  

Page 78

https://llyw.cymru/adroddiad-grwp-economaidd-gymdeithasol-covid-19-pobl-dduon-asiaidd-lleiafrifoedd-ethnig


The changes to our way of living and working due to 
Covid-19, particularly the lack of meetings and the 
opportunity to meet with people, will make it more 
difficult for us to contact and engage with individuals.  
It was inevitable for us to have to change our methods 
of working and change our timetables (as noted in 1.2, 
and which is discussed in greater detail in the 2020-21 
Annual Report), which will mean that we will take 
more time to gather the information and make the 
changes.  This could lead to a delay before 
implementation, which will have an unavoidable 
impact on users with protected characteristics.  We 
have assessed whether the Objectives, or the actions, 
needed to be changed, as published in the Equality 
Plan, because of the issues arising during this period.  
We feel that our Objectives and actions remain valid.  
The information we gather during the engagement will 
be very useful, moving forward, and the work in the 
other four objectives, impact assessment, training and 
employment, is very important.  We will adapt the 
work in line with the latest data. 
  

Race (including 
nationality)  

Positive / 
negative / 
none   

Some respondents to the consultation have identified 
some race matters relating to the Welsh language. It 
is felt that the Council's language policy discriminates 
against non-Welsh speaking people from minority 
groups (i.e. most of them being immigrants either from 
England or from other countries). 
 
We acknowledge that this is a concern for them, but 
we also note our statutory duty to give an equal status 
to, and protect the Welsh language as a minority 
language in Wales. 
  
The effects of catching Covid-19 is much worse for 
some people, particularly black people or people from 
Pakistani or Bangladeshi origin. We ensure that the 
methods we use when doing the work take this into 
account. 
  
Brexit will also affect this characteristic, including 
more hate crime. 
  
The Black Lives Matter movement places an 
additional emphasis on this characteristic and we 
welcome Welsh Government's campaign to address 
this through its Race Equality Action Plan. 
 
Welsh Communities have felt under pressure due to 
the difference in the restrictions across UK nations 

Page 79



and then due to the situation of the housing market. 
This has caused tensions, which could be perceived 
as racial tensions. 
  

Disability  
 

Positive Disability-related issues have been identified in the 
consultation. We will address them within the Services 
and as part of the work on the Action Plan. 
  
The Plan will be positive for people with this 
characteristic, as is highlighted in General (above). 
  
It was noted that the pictures in the document were 
too bright; therefore we promised to provide a black 
and white version as well as other formats. This had 
not happened when the Plan was published as this 
was at the beginning of the Lockdown and there were 
other work priorities because of Covid-19. 
  
The Council is accepting the social model of disability. 
  
Covid-19 is a major factor to consider with this 
characteristic as people with particular conditions are 
affected much more if they catch Covid-19.  The 
Covid-19 crisis has affected the Council's plans to 
work in different ways, but we intend to operate like 
this as we move forward. 
 
We must also acknowledge that the crisis has affected 
disabled people in a number of different ways.  This 
has resulted in loneliness, having to receive services 
in alternative ways and major anxiety. 
 
The crisis has also led to an increase in mental health 
problems in people within the community in general.  
This will place major pressure on our services moving 
forward, and our engagement work will be of 
assistance to identify how this affects people. 
  

Sex/Gender 
 

Positive The contribution of women in the working world and 
as representatives has been raised in the 
consultation. This is addressed further in the 
implementation of the Action Plan. The Plan will be 
positive for people with this characteristic, as 
highlighted in General (above). 
  
Statistics indicate that women are more likely to 
undertake caring roles, whether for children or for 
disabled or older adults.   The crisis has increased this 
a lot.  We will look for the effects of this as we move 
forward. 

Page 80



  

Age Positive  Age-related issues have been identified and we are 
addressing these issues within the services and when 
implementing the Action Plan.  The Plan is positive for 
people with this characteristic, as is highlighted in 
General (above). 
  
Covid-19 has a major impact on this characteristic.  
Older people are much more likely to be affected 
worse, compared with young people.  They are also 
less likely to use technology such as social websites, 
and an alternative way of contacting them will be 
needed. Therefore, this has caused loneliness, 
anxiety and mental health problems and we will be 
looking for the impacts of this moving forward. 
  

Sexual 
orientation 
 

Positive  Matters relating to sexual orientation have been 
identified in the consultation and we will address them 
within the services and when implementing the Action 
Plan. The Plan will be positive for people with this 
characteristic, as is highlighted in General (above). 
  
There is nothing to add regarding Covid-19 at present 
  

Religion or 
belief (or non-
belief) 

Positive  One responder to the consultation has identified that 
some religion issues relate to the Welsh language. 
The responder felt that the Council's language policy 
excluded non-Welsh speakers, which could include 
people from some religions. We would argue that this 
is a race matter, and not a religion matter. The Plan 
will be positive for people with this characteristic as 
highlighted in General (above). 
  
There is nothing to add regarding Covid-19 at present. 
  

Gender 
reassignment 
 

Positive  Matters relating to gender reassignment have been 
identified in the consultation. This will be addressed 
further when implementing the Action Plan. The Plan 
will be positive for people with this characteristic, as is 
highlighted in General (above). 
  
We assume that people who wish to receive medical 
treatment have been affected as all types of 
treatments have been stopped over the past year. 
  

Pregnancy and 
maternity 
 

Positive  The Plan will be positive for people with this 
characteristic, as is highlighted in General (above). 
  
Pregnant or post-natal women during this period have 
been affected greatly by the fact that their partners 

Page 81



have been unable to participate in full in the medical 
process.  They have also experienced loneliness as 
they have not been able to mix with family, friends or 
professionals in the usual way. 
  

Marriage and 
civil 
partnership 

Positive / 
negative / 
none  

The Plan will be positive for people with this 
characteristic, as is highlighted in General (above). 
  
There is nothing to add regarding Covid-19 at present. 
  

The Welsh 
language 

 There was some objection to the decision to consider 
Language as part of Equality amongst some of the 
responders as they felt that it gave less equality to 
people who do not speak the language.  We 
acknowledge that this is a concern, but on the other 
hand, given that 65% of the population of Gwynedd 
are Welsh speakers, the Council is operating a 
Language Policy which ensures that "All residents of 
the county can use the Council's services through the 
medium of Welsh and English, and that firm actions 
are taken to ensure that the user's choice of language 
is noted and respected at all times". The ability to 
implement this policy consistently across the whole 
county, and ensure that individuals can access a 
service in Welsh if they wish (in accordance with the 
requirement under the Welsh Language (Wales) 
Measure 2011) means that consideration must be 
given to the Welsh language when recruiting and 
developing services. It must be remembered that any 
Welsh speaker who is appointed to a post will 
necessarily be able to provide that service in English 
also. 
  
The Welsh language will be given consideration 
alongside the other factors. Also, see Race, above. 
 
The period has reduced the opportunities that people 
have to use the Welsh language.  Within the Council, 
some services were suspended for a period and have 
returned in different, more non-contact methods, 
which has affected this.  An increase in the use of 
technology will also affect the use made of the Welsh 
language. 
  

Socio-
Economic 
Disadvantage 

Positive The evidence shows that the crisis has increased 
socio-economic disadvantage, particularly financial 
poverty, digital poverty and the impact of living in the 
countryside. 
 

Page 82



There will be a need to see how this affects people 
locally over the next period. 
 

 
 
3.2  The Council has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to contribute 

positively to a fairer society through advancing equality and good 
relations in its activities in the fields of age, gender, sexual orientation, 
religion, race, transgender, disability and pregnancy and maternity. The 
Council must duly address the way any change impacts on these duties.   

 

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act 

 

Does it have 
an impact?* 

In what way?  What is the evidence? 

Eliminate 
unlawful 
discrimination, 
harassment 
and 
victimisation 
 

Yes Evidence in the comments about operational matters 
expresses concern about some of our services. The 
Action Plan of the individual Objectives deals with this by 
playing their part to improve how we operate. 
  
We are in the process of gathering information that will 
inform us whether any discrimination, harassment or 
victimisation is happening, in order to act on it. 
  
The Black Lives Matter movement has highlighted 
further that hate crime and discrimination still exists, but 
this is not the only hate crime that is happening. 
Therefore, it is important that we consider this duty 
seriously when we consider the 5 Objectives separately. 
  

Promote equal 
opportunities 
 

Yes  The aim of the Plan is to work towards ensuring fairness 
for all. Evidence from our consultation shows that we 
have work to do to this end. Therefore, we are gathering 
further evidence, in line with the Plan's Action Points, 
and are implementing the outcome. Also, we have 
Action Points that are beginning the work.  
  
This need is even more critical due to Covid-19. We will 
need to ensure that our operational methods are suitable 
for all in the "new normal".  
  

Building good 
relationships 
 

Yes Good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not comes from 
ensuring fairness for everyone. 
  
By delivering the Action Plan, and taking positive action 
towards some characteristics, we will ensure that our 
services are fair. This is particularly important because 
of the Covid-19 crisis, as it affects people in different 
ways. 
  
There is also additional work to be done when 
considering the Black Lives Matter movement and of 

Page 83



course, what has been said about hate crime is also 
important here. 
  

 
 
3.3  How does your proposal ensure that you work in accordance with the 

requirements of the Welsh Language Standards (Welsh Language (Wales) 
Measure 2011), to ensure that the Welsh language is not treated less 
favourably than the English, and that every opportunity to promote the 
Welsh language is taken (beyond providing bilingual services) and 
increase opportunities to use and learn the language in the community? 

 

 
We will address this in the more detailed assessments on the 5 Objectives 
 
 

 
3.4 What other measures or changes can you include to strengthen or 

change the policy / custom to have a positive impact on people's 
opportunities to use the Welsh language, and to reduce or prevent any 
detrimental impacts that the policy/practice can have on the Welsh 
language? 

 

 
See 3.3 
 
 

 
 
3.5  How does the proposal show that you have given due regard to the need 

to address inequality due to socio-economic disadvantage? (Please note 
that this relates to closing the inequality gap, rather than improving 
outcomes for everyone only). 

 

 
The Plan is working to improve the deprivation gap by identifying the barriers faced by 
people with specific protected characteristics when involved with the Council, and then 
working to mitigate them.  Work in Objective 5 to improve the diversity of our 
workforce, and work with partners to do so, will make a difference.  Objective 4 
ensures that we reduce any pay gaps, which will also help.  Of course, doing better 
impact assessments (Objective 3) will ensure that our services are suitable for all, as 
will training our workforce (Objective 1).  We will look at this in further detail in the 
individual impact assessments as we move forward. 
 

 
 
3.6 What other measures or changes can you include to strengthen or 

change the policy / custom to show that you have given due regard to the 

Page 84



need to reduce disproportionate outcomes as a result of socio-economic 
disadvantage, in accordance with the Socio-Economic Act? 

 

 
We will use the information we gather when moving forward with the work to identify 
any other measures or changes that will be highlighted and we will proceed to act on 
them. 
 

 
 
4)  Analysing the results  
 
4.1  Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any 

of the above?  What is the reason for this? 
 

 
The aim of Gwynedd Council's Strategic Equality Plan is to have a significant, positive 

impact on the lives of the people of Gwynedd who use our services, and also our staff.  

We have used the relevant observations that were received during the engagement to 

improve the Plan.  The operational matters will be passed on to the services. It will also 

be necessary to consider additional factors such as Covid, Brexit and Black Lives 

Matter as we move forward. 

 

 
4.2  Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, negative impact on any 

of the above?  What is the reason for this? 
 

 
It is a shame that the timetable has had to slip as it has not been possible to act as 

soon as we had hoped.  This will mean that it will not be possible to improve services 

within the expected timetable. 

 

 
4.3  What should be done?  
 
Select one of the following: 
 
 

Continue with the policy / service as it is robust 
 

X 
 

Amend the policy to remove any barriers  
 

 
 

Suspend and abolish the policy as the harmful impacts are too great 
 

 
 

Continue with the policy as any harmful impact can be justified  
 

 

No further steps at present, it is premature to decide, or there is insufficient 
evidence at present. 

 

Page 85



 

 
 
4.4  If you continue with the plan, what steps will you take to reduce or 

mitigate any negative impacts?  
 

 
Equality Impact Assessments on all objectives are positive at present; however, we will 
use them to identify any negative impact. 
 

 
 
4.5  If you are not taking any further action to remove or reduce the negative 

impacts, please explain why here.  
 
 

 
Not relevant 
 

 
 
5)  Monitoring 
 
5.1  What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 

policy or service (action plan)?  
 

 

 We have created separate impact assessments for the 5 Objectives in order to 
gain a better understanding of the matters arising.   

 We have also created Action Plans for the 5 Objectives and these are reviewed 
regularly by the Project Group.  The Cabinet Member for Equality reviews them 
each quarter. 

 

 
 

Page 86



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

Date of meeting:  6 July 2021 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Nia Jeffreys 

Contact Officer: Delyth G Williams, Policy and Equality Officer 

Contact Telephone 

Number: 

01286 679708 

Title of Item: Equality and Inclusion Policy 

 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

1 THE DECISION SOUGHT 

The Cabinet is requested to approve the document  

2 THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

Having an Equality and Inclusion Policy is not a statutory need; however, it 

is one of the Actions we introduced in our Statutory Equality Plan 2020-24, 

approved by the Cabinet on 10 March 2020.  

This Policy replaces our Equality / Equal Opportunities Policy and our 

Access Policy, which is now very dated.  

 

3 INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of the Equality and Inclusion Policy is to set principles that 

will assist the Council to ensure fairness for all and place the citizens of 

Gwynedd at the centre of our work.  It is a tool that provides guidance on 

how we will act to ensure that as many people as possible can have full 

access to our services and are considered as we do our work.  

In accordance with our duty under the 2010 Equality Act, the Policy 

provides guidance on how to give due attention to the eradication of 

discrimination, harassment and persecution, be it against service users, 

members of staff or members of the wider community.  

It is also intended to ensure that we work to foster equal opportunities and 

a good relationship between people with protected characteristics and 

those who do not share those characteristics.  

The responsibility of each member of staff towards ensuring equality for all 

is underlined, regardless of their role. 

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



Also, the Policy addresses our responsibilities under the new socio-

economic duty that has been in force since the beginning of April 2021. 

We have considered the needs of different groups when drawing up the 

policy, as noted in the Equality Impact Assessment.  The assessment 

shows that the Policy will have a positive impact on all protected 

characteristics. 

 

4 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING 

THE DECISION 

The Equality Impact Assessment that accompanies the Policy uses 

information from a number of previous consultations.   

 

 The Statutory Officers’ observations 

i) Chief Finance Officer 

I am satisfied that adopting the new Equality and Inclusion Policy would 

not create new expenditure commitments for the Council.  I support the 

decision sought. 

 

ii) Propriety Officer 

This Policy sets out a range of practical principles to support this key duty 

across Council services. It is also acknowledged that in addition in specific 

areas detailed guidance and provisions operate 

  

 

 

 

Page 88



 1  

Equality and Inclusion Policy 

 

 

Introduction 

 

Gwynedd Council has identified ensuring fairness for all as a priority. It also prioritises 

addressing poverty. These two priorities relate closely to each other because people 

who have certain specific equality characteristics tend to be statistically poorer than 

those who do not have that characteristic. For example, a family with a disabled 

member would, on average, be poorer than a similar family without a disabled 

member. The aim of this policy is to outline some of the steps that need to be taken in 

order to act on these priorities. 

There is also a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to reduce inequality between people 

who share protected characteristics and people without those characteristics.  The 

protected characteristics are: 

 Age 

 Gender 

 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality 

 Disability  

 Gender reassignment 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Sexual Orientation 

 Religion or belief - including non-belief 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

(Equality Act 2010) 

The socio-economic duty of the Equality Act 2010 was implemented in Wales on 1st  

April 2021.  When making strategic decisions, relevant public bodies are required to 

give due attention to the need to reduce inequalities in terms of outcomes arising 

from socio-economic disadvantage. This means not only improving everyone's 

situation, but also taking specific action to reduce the gap between socially and 

economically disadvantaged communities and individuals and the rest of society. 

 

Part A – Commitment 

 

1. To promote equality in accordance with the duties of the Equality Act 

2010 (the general duties and the Wales specific duties) 

 

1.1 The Council will give due regard to the eradication of discrimination, 

harassment and persecution, be it against service users, members of staff or 

Page 89



 2  

members of the wider community.  We commit to do so in our day-to-day 

work, and in changing any policies or procedures.   

 

1.2  The Council is working to develop an awareness of the needs of specific 

groups and individuals in order to promote equal opportunity and eradicate, or 

reduce, any disadvantages people may experience in relation to their equality 

characteristic. This means satisfying the needs of people from protected 

groups where these are different to those of other groups.  Where their 

participation is disproportionately low, we also encourage people with 

protected characteristics to participate in public life. 

 

 1.3 Gwynedd Council welcomes its responsibility to promote good relations 

between the various communities and groups of people who have protected 

characteristics, tackling discrimination and promoting understanding. This can 

include taking steps to satisfy the needs of people from equality groups where 

these are different to other people's needs. This could also mean treating 

some groups more favourably than others, provided that this does not 

contradict other provisions within the Act. 

 

1.4  In addition, the Council is acting in accordance with the specific duty to 

produce and publish a Strategic Equality Plan every four years, including 

objectives for that period, with an objective relating to pay difference every 

time.  There is also an action plan that outlines the specific work the Council 

plans to undertake during this period to promote equality.  A financial report 

will be published annually to report on progress. 

  

1.5  Relevant equality information will be gathered in order to steer our work, 

which will occasionally be published.  The equality characteristics details of 

our workforce are published annually.   

 

1.6  Please see below for the Council's intentions in terms of engagement, impact 

assessment, training and procurement, which are also specific duties. 

 

 

2. Implementing the socio-economic duty 

 

2.1  The definition of socio-economic disadvantage is living in less favourable 

social and economic circumstances than others within the same society. It is 

not limited to financial poverty.  Research shows that there is a higher risk of 

disadvantage in rural areas if access to services is included when measuring 

poverty. 

 

 

Page 90



 3  

2.2.  When acting in response to this duty, it is important to consider groups who 

have common experience.  For example, this can include people who have 

been homeless or those who have experience of one of the Council's 

services.  People who share one or more of the protected characteristics 

would also be a community of interest.  

 

2.3  Consideration must also be given to communities of place; people who share 

a connection due to where they live, work, visit or spend a considerable 

amount of time for other reasons. Socio-economic disadvantage has no 

respect for urban-rural boundaries, and many aspects of daily life can 

intensify that disadvantage. It is important to consider hidden poverty in 

smaller communities. Living costs and access to transport, education and 

employment can have a greater negative impact on rural populations.   

 

2.4  It is important to give attention to intersectionality when considering the 

above. This means the way factors such as gender, race, sexuality, disability 

and class intersect and lead to additional disadvantages e.g. a young black 

woman would experience any disadvantage that women, black and minority 

people and young people experience in any given situation. 

   

2.5  What matters here is reducing inequality of outcomes. This means the 

measurable differences between the outcomes for those who have 

experienced socio-economic disadvantage and those of the rest of the 

population. It is important that we as a organisation use data and the voice of 

residents to identify where we can have the greatest positive impact. 

 

2.6  We will use our Equality Impact Assessment procedure to identify the socio-

economic impacts of our strategic decisions.  This will allow us to identify 

evidence and improve our policies and procedures, and to give decision 

makers the information to ensure that due attention is given to socio-

economic disadvantage. 

  

 

3. Responsibility for acting on our equality duty 

 

3.1  The Council Cabinet has prioritised equality and has nominated a lead 

member for the field. Members have a duty to ensure that equality is 

embedded throughout the democratic process, by ensuring that these issues 

are given due consideration. 

 

3.2  It is the responsibility of all departments and services to identify any factors 

that affect people or groups who have one or more equality characteristics, 

and to act accordingly, in their day to day work or when making changes to 

policies or services. They must also consider socio-economic disadvantage in 

Page 91



 4  

strategic matters. This includes undertaking an equality impact assessment 

(see point 4) when making relevant changes. 

 

3.3  Above all else, however, the Council's expectation is that staff members 

should treat their colleagues and the public with respect and dignity.  This 

includes ensuring that every individual is treated according to his or her 

needs. Staff have a responsibility for educating themselves about equality and 

undertaking suitable training. 

 

 

Part B – Actions 

 

4. Impact Assessment, Collaboration and Consultation 

 

4.1  The best way of removing or reducing obstacles for people who have different 

protected characteristics is to ask for their views on the nature of any 

obstacles and how to get rid of them. It is of vital importance to gather a wide 

range of views from people when making changes to policies or services that 

will affect them. 

 

4.2  It is also important to obtain quantitative evidence, such as statistics, 

guidance and local and national data etc., in order to make decisions about 

changes. 

 

4.3  This evidence will need to be used to satisfy the Council's duty to undertake 

Equality Impact Assessments.  Undertaking a Composite Equality Impact 

Assessment must be considered every time there is a change in policy or 

service, when a policy or service is terminated, or when a new one is created.  

If this change has an impact on the people of Gwynedd or staff members, it is 

essential that a full assessment is undertaken.   

 

4.4  It is important to remember that undertaking an Equality Impact Assessment 

is a central part of creating or changing a policy or service, and is not a 

separate process.  Its aim is to provide assistance to ensure that the change 

in policy/service is suitable, effective and sustainable.  It will also be a record 

of the efforts made to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts that could arise 

because of the change.  It is therefore very important that it is completed in a 

timely manner.  Further information on undertaking an impact assessment is 

available on the intranet page here. 

 

4.5  The Council recognises the need to learn and evolve. There is a need to react 

positively to any failure and criticism, and learn from any mistakes. 

 

Page 92

https://cyngorgwynedd.sharepoint.com/sites/CefnogiBusnesCG/SitePages/Asesiad%20Effaith.aspx


 5  

5. Respect and Dignity towards our service users 

 

5.1  The Council is committed to treating every Gwynedd citizen with the same 

respect and dignity, regardless of their background, need or equality 

characteristics. 

 

5.2  Everyone must play their part to eliminate the obstacles that prevent disabled 

people, whatever their impairment, from playing a full role in society and 

effectively receiving Council services. This means that the Council acts in 

accordance with the Social Model of Disability.    

 

5.3  The Council believes that transsexual / transgender individuals have the right 

to equal treatment, to be protected from discrimination, and to receive full 

support from the Council.  The Council acknowledges that there are 

differences between biological gender and gender identity. The Council will 

not discriminate against individuals on a transsexual, transgender or intersex 

basis or any gender reassignment process, that has commenced or been 

completed. 

 

5.4  The Council acknowledges British Sign Language as one of the languages of 

Wales. 

 

5.5 In addition, the Council acknowledges that travellers, such as Gypsies and 

Irish travellers, Roma and New Travellers find it difficult to gain access to 

services for numerous complex reasons. The Council intends to identify these 

obstacles and act on them.  We are also aware that members of the 

community are very vulnerable to race crimes. 

 

5.6  Every member of staff is responsible for ensuring that they do not discriminate 

against anyone - other staff members, service users or other members of the 

public. There is no place for stereotyping or prejudice against any individual or 

group. 

 

5.7 The way in which a member of staff speaks to someone, and the terminology 

used, is of vital importance to ensure respect and dignity.     

 

5.8  All members of staff and elected members are expected to undertake the 

equality training provided for them by the Council. 

 

5.9  Photographs used by the Council on the internet and in its information leaflets 

should show positive images of people with equality characteristics. 

 

Page 93



 6  

5.10  The Council has a duty to encourage people from different backgrounds, and 

with different equality characteristics, to stand in local elections and to 

participate in public life in general. 

 

 

6. Access to Information 

 

6.1  The Council recognises that preparing information that is easy for everyone to 

understand provides access for people to Council services.  We aim to 

provide information in a simple, understandable way and in relevant formats 

to satisfy the requirements of people, according to their needs. 

 

6.2  Any document for the public should be in clear Welsh and English, i.e. day-to-

day language rather than corporate language, and it should not contain jargon 

and abbreviations.  It should be in Arial or a similar font of at least 12 points 

(but ideally 14). Care should also be taken in choosing colour and background 

to ensure that the information is easy for everyone to read. 

 

6.3  Every individual service within the Council has a responsibility to provide 

documents in accordance with individuals' needs e.g. British Sign Language 

(BSL), large print, audio, easy read etc.   

 

6.4  It is important that the Council remembers that there are people living in 

Gwynedd who do not speak Welsh or English as their first language.  Their 

needs must also be considered when preparing information, either by 

translating documents as required or by using different methods of 

communication. 

 

6.5  We aim to use professional interpreters and translators at all times.  This 

ensures quality that allows you to be confident that everyone understands 

each other.  It also ensures confidentiality and dignity in meetings and 

documents that address sensitive issues. 

 

6.6  Ensuring that all members of the public have access to our democracy 

arrangements, that is to see and hear committee discussions and decisions, is 

also vitally important.  As the geographical area is wide, it is necessary to 

modify our historic arrangements of offering public access only in the 

chamber, usually in Caernarfon. The Council will continue to explore various 

ways for the public to have access to the discussions, particularly through the 

medium of webcasting or other electronic arrangements. This of course 

extends our current provision and is more accessible and convenient for 

everyone. This will go hand in hand with facilitating arrangements for 

Members when attending the meetings. 

 

Page 94



 7  

6.7 Anyone who arranges a meeting, a public meeting or event must provide 

additional support, such as communication support (loop, PA equipment, 

British Sign Language interpreter, Palantypist, notary, advocacy, etc.) as 

required.  If possible, it is important to ask those attending what type of 

support they require.   

 

6.8  We will continuously improve accessibility on the Council website 

(www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru) and endeavour to attain AA standard (WAI) 

wherever possible. We will continually improve accessibility on the Council's 

website (www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru) and strive to reach AA standard Web 

Content Accessibility Guidelines version 2.1 (external link) wherever possible. 

 

 

7. Service Provision 

 

7.1  Gwynedd Council puts the people of Gwynedd at the centre of everything we 

do and endeavours to provide the best possible service for our citizens.  The 

main purpose of the document is to ensure that everyone's needs are taken 

into account whatever their protected characteristics and the barriers they 

face. 

 

7.2  The Council acknowledges and accepts its responsibility for services to be 

provided in a consistent and fair manner by staff who are trained and who act 

in accordance with good practice guidance in the equality field. 

 

7.3  We will endeavour to facilitate access to services by identifying, and where 

possible avoiding, any obstacles; be they physical, cultural, or relating to 

perception and lack of information. 

 

7.4  We will improve our services by encouraging timely participation from our 

users who have various protected characteristics, and including the views of 

service users when starting or amending arrangements. 

 

7.5  We will carefully consider any complaints and allegations of discrimination 

and respond thoroughly and promptly in accordance with the Council's 

Complaints Procedure.  

 

7.6  If the Council provides services in buildings that they do not own, they must 

make sure that access is suitable for everyone. 

 

7.7  The Council is taking steps to ensure that its staff, contractors, organisations 

and partners who provide services on behalf of the Council are aware of their 

duty to operate on the basis of equality.  We will include any necessary 

equality considerations as we draw up a specification for awarding contracts.  

Page 95

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/


 8  

We will also monitor the arrangements of any contract to ensure that equality 

and inclusivity matters are respected. 

 

 

8. Council Buildings and Property 

 

8.1  Council property includes a wide variety of buildings and other locations, 

including offices, schools, leisure centres, libraries, car parks, recycling 

centres etc. 

 

8.2  The Council must provide access that ensures that all customers can receive 

an equal service, independently, without having to depend on other people for 

support if it is reasonably possible.  Where this is not possible, the Council will 

seek other appropriate ways of offering a service.  

 

8.3  When considering a building's accessibility, consideration must be given to 

the needs of a varying range of individuals.  It is also important to remember 

that adaptations made for one group may help another group e.g. ensuring 

appropriate physical access for wheelchair users would also ensure access 

for families with prams.  Although physical access is important, we will also 

consider other needs e.g. loop for people with hearing impairments, signage 

that is easily understandable for a range of people, colour contrast for people 

who are partially blind etc. 

 

8.5  All new buildings will be designed in order to provide equal access and 

facilities for all, and the process will include a consultation with users. 

 

8.6  Any improvements or repairs undertaken by the Council on its buildings will 

include work to improve access, looking specifically at access, toilet facilities, 

changing places, communication methods etc., again, with appropriate 

consultation. 

 

8.7  The Council will regularly check that its buildings, especially those used by the 

public, such as Siopau Gwynedd, remain suitable and as accessible as 

possible. It is important to maintain any equipment or improvement that is 

provided, e.g. loop systems, ramps, dropped kerbs etc.   

 

8.8  Alternative arrangements must be made when considering evacuation of the 

building in an emergency. This will form a part of risk assessment 

arrangements and formal risk management. Any arrangements should, as far 

as possible, maintain the dignity of individuals and awareness of the 

arrangements should be raised. 

 

Page 96



 9  

8.9  The Council provides public car parks throughout the county. Sufficient 

accessible parking spaces should be provided for blue badge holders, in 

accordance with legislation.  The Council will also act on health and safety 

matters by ensuring suitable lighting and dealing with plant overgrowth and 

other matters that affect accessibility.  We will consider any other needs that 

are brought to our attention. 

 

8.10  The Council ensures that it provides accessible parking spaces for disabled 

people in its staff car parks, in accordance with legislation.  We also consider 

any other matters, as noted in 8.9. 

 

 

9. Infrastructure and Planning Applications 

 

9.1  The Management and Development Manual (May 2017) outlines when a 

Design and Access Statement (DAS) needs to be submitted with planning 

applications. Among other issues, the DAS submitted with a planning 

application must explain the access policy or approach adopted, and how 

access policies have been addressed in the development plan and also 

explain how specific issues that may affect access to the development have 

been addressed. 

 

9.2  The Building Control department acts to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of Part M of the Building Regulations. Developers are required 

to make a reasonable provision in terms of access and general use of the 

buildings, facilities and hygiene equipment in domestic and commercial 

buildings. 

 

9.3  The Council will take reasonable steps to ensure that all work undertaken on 

pedestrian areas - new areas or areas that are being upgraded - is designed 

to meet everyone's needs, giving special consideration to lighting and access. 

 

9.4  We will ensure that information, e.g. signs, notices etc. are clear, bilingual and 

installed in convenient spots.   

 

9.5  We will continue to ensure that all street and road work is safe and that 

drivers and pedestrians are notified well in advance regarding the nature of 

any obstacles.  Specific attention will be paid to the needs of disabled people. 

 

9.6  In addition, the Council will assess any other needs relating to infrastructure 

work e.g. dropped kerbs and crossings.  It will also ensure safety for all by 

maintaining infrastructure and will seek to incorporate these features into the 

infrastructure if reasonably practicable to do so. 

 

Page 97



 10  

9.7 The Council will also ensure the safety of everyone by undertaking 

inspections and maintaining the infrastructure to the appropriate standard. 

 

 

10. Public Transport  

 

10.1  The Council will make every reasonable attempt to ensure that all new public 

transport systems in the county are convenient and accessible for all 

members of the community. 

 

10.2  It will use all available powers, namely licences etc., to ensure that those who 

provide a transport service, whether a bus or a taxi, are fully aware of the 

additional needs of some groups and that reasonable provision is made for 

them by including the requirements in the Conditions of Contract, and 

monitoring those requirements. 

 

10.3  We will work to ensure that everyone, whatever their communication needs, 

are informed about the services available to them (see above).  This is in 

accordance with the Voluntary Welsh Bus Quality Standard 2016, which aims 

to increase the use of features such as audio-visual systems announcing the 

next bus stop, and accessible information from the timetabling service. 

 

10.4  The Voluntary Welsh Bus Quality Standard also promotes awareness of 

disabilities by offering training to drivers and the Council supports / insists on 

this.  

 

10.5  Welsh Government insists, under the Public Service Vehicle Accessibility 

Regulations 2000 [PSVAR], that all buses used for public transportation that 

have over 22 seats must fully comply, allowing access for wheelchairs from 1 

January 2020.  We will ensure that school and college transport will comply by 

September 2021.  These changes have of course taken hold, and the buses 

used for public transportation have conformed to those regulations for some 

time now. 

 

10.6  It is of vital importance that any new transportation strategies include full 

provisions for all members of society.  This must include all transport 

infrastructures e.g. access to pick-up and drop-off points for all public 

transport vehicles, including specified spaces for taxis that are close to town 

centres etc.  We will ensure this by undertaking an impact assessment and 

consulting with people who have specific protected characteristics. 

 

Page 98



 11  

10.7 The Council is working with the local community transport organisations in 

order to provide a flexible and appropriate public transport service for rural 

Gwynedd. 

 

 

11. Education 

 

11.1  Gwynedd Council provides at least one primary school in each secondary 

school catchment area that is suitable for children with physical impairments 

(designated school). 

 

11.2  If parents wish for their child to attend another school in the catchment area, 

the Council and the school will examine the case individually to see whether it 

is possible to make reasonable adjustments that are suitable for the child. 

 

11.3  Gwynedd Council provides at least one secondary school in each area that is 

accessible for wheelchair users. 

 

11.4  Schools will also take advantage of any opportunity to improve the 

accessibility of schools by undertaking an Accessibility Plan to reduce 

obstacles within the school. 

11.5  Every school has anti-bullying policies in order to protect children with specific 

equality characteristics. 

 

12. Social Care 

12.1 The Adults, Health and Well-being Department and the Children and 

Supporting Families Department are committed to acting in accordance with 

the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.  

12.2  A key principle of the act is to put an individual and their needs at the heart of 

their care, and to give them a voice and control to achieve the outcomes that 

create well-being.  

12.3  Other principles include the need to safeguard individuals from abuse, support 

people to promote their own well-being, and to encourage individuals to 

become more involved in service planning.  

12.4  These principles are compatible with the principles of the Equality Act and are 

fundamental to ensuring fairness for all. 

 

 

Page 99



 12  

13.  Housing  

  

13.1  Our Housing and Property service has committed to ensure that the people of 

Gwynedd have access to a suitable home of a high standard, which is 

affordable and improves their quality of life.  

  

13.2  We will aim to address these objectives by increasing access to affordable 

housing.  

  

13.3  We will provide supported accommodation for homeless individuals and 

families in order to support them to maintain permanent tenancies.  

  

13.4   Also, we will adapt buildings to make houses suitable homes for adults and 

children with disabilities.  

  

  

Part C - Employment  

  

14.1  The Council expresses its commitment to ensuring equality in employment 

and acknowledges its responsibility to ensure equality to all of its employees 

and job applicants, and to foster equal opportunities within the Council.  

 

14.2  The Council is taking positive steps to ensure that nobody employed by the 

Council, or who applies for a job with the Council, is discriminated against on 

the basis of any equality characteristic.  

 

14.3 The Council's staff are entitled to be treated with respect and dignity at work. 

The Council does not tolerate discrimination or hate crime of any sort by the 

system, colleagues, service users or other members of the Council. 

 

14.4  Every employment and training policy and procedure must be reviewed 

regularly and assessed for their impact on individuals who share equality 

characteristics.  This is important in order to ensure that they comply with 

current legislation and that there is no discrimination against any group, 

whether directly or indirectly.   

 

14.5  We inform staff that they have a personal responsibility in the equality field, 

and that they should show this in their relationship with their colleagues and 

by promoting a culture of respect generally.  The Council has a Staff Code of 

Conduct and Dignity at Work Policy, which sets out the expectations of 

everyone who works for Gwynedd Council.  We also provide induction training 

for all new members of staff, in addition to general training on equality and 

Page 100



 13  

additional training on specific aspects.  We also publish useful information on 

the intranet. 

 

14.6  We produce good practice guidance for the specific fields of employment, 

which includes ensuring that equality matters are considered. For example, 

we have published a policy on supporting women who are going through the 

menopause, and we have developed a policy to support trans individuals.  

Our main priorities at this time include: 

 

 Removing any barriers that may be preventing women from developing 

their careers within the Council, with a particular focus on developing 

women in leadership within the organisation. 

 Carrying out pay audits - a gender pay gap audit and an equal pay audit.  

 Taking steps to improve how we recruit new staff to the workforce. 

 

14.7  We use monitoring information to prepare workforce profiles for comparison 

with the Local Employment Area Market, and action plans. Also, we will adopt 

positive steps should it become apparent that the policy is not effective. 

Page 101



                     
 

 
 
 
 
 
The Council is required (under the Equality Act 2010) to consider the impact that any 

change in any policy or procedures (or the creation of a new policy or procedure) will 

have on people with protected equality characteristics.  The Council also has 

additional general duties to ensure fairness and to foster good relationships.  

Therefore, a timely assessment must be made before any decision is taken on any 

relevant change (i.e. that affects people with a protected characteristic).   

 

The Council is also required, under the requirements of the Welsh Language 

Standards (Section 44 of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011), to consider 

the impact that any change in policy or procedure (or the creation of a new policy or 

procedure), will have on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and to 

ensure that the Welsh language is not treated less favourably than English. This 

document therefore ensures that these decisions safeguard and promote the use 

made of the Welsh language. 

 

From 1 April 2021, the Council has a duty to give due attention to addressing socio-

economic disadvantage in strategic decisions. 

 
 
1  Details  
 
1.1  What is the name of the policy / service in question?  
 

 
Equality and Inclusion Policy 
 

      
 
1.2  What is the purpose of the policy / service that is being created or 

amended? What changes are being considered?  

 

 
The purpose of the policy is to ensure that Gwynedd Council acts on its duty to ensure 

accessibility for all. It includes include an Equality Policy and Access Policy, which was 

adopted some time ago by now, and many things, including the Legislation, have now 

changed. It is therefore time to revise it. 

 

          
 

 

Assessing the Impact on Equality 

Characteristics, the Welsh language and  

Socio-Economic Disadvantage  

Page 102



1.3  Who is responsible for this assessment?  
 
 

 
Delyth G Williams, Policy and Equality Officer 
 

 
 
1.4  When did you commence the assessment? Which version is this? 
 

 
04/05/2017.  This is the third version. 
 

     
 
2) Action 
 
 
2.1  Who are the stakeholders or partners whom we will have to work with to 

carry out this assessment?  

 

 
Elected members  

Heads of Service  

Organisations representing people with equality characteristics  

Individuals with equality characteristics  

 

 
 
2.2  What steps have you taken to engage with people with protected 

characteristics?  

 

 
In 2017, a draft of the document was sent to organisations that represent people with 

particular characteristics, but no response was received. Therefore, we have used the 

observations of the specialist group, the Equality Core Group, together with 

observations from other consultations that the Council have conducted in recent years.  

These include the consultations on the Equality Plan and What Services Matter to You, 

which have already taken place.  We had also hoped to get more information from the 

consultation that formed part of Objective 2 of the latest Strategic Equality Plan, but no 

additional information was identified from the first stage.  We have decided to act 

based on the information we have, and review the document regularly. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 103



2.3  What was the outcome of the engagement? 
 

.   
The observations and issues raised in the various consultations confirmed that we are 

on the right track and this sort of Policy is needed.  We took all observations into 

account when creating the document. 

 

 
 
2.4  On the basis of what other evidence are you acting? 
 

 
We have a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to give due regard to the following:  

1. eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation   

2. promote equal opportunity between people who have an equality characteristic 

and people without this characteristic 

3. foster good relations between people who have an equality characteristic and 

people without this characteristic. 

 

Giving due regard to promoting equal opportunities involves  

 eliminating or reducing the disadvantages that people experience because of 

their equality characteristic 

 taking steps to satisfy the needs of people from equality groups where these are 

different to other people's needs 

 encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life  

 

Fostering a good relationship involves tackling discrimination and promoting 

understanding between people who share an equality characteristic and the rest of 

society.  This could mean treating some people more favourably than others, provided 

this does not contravene other provisions of the Act.  

 

The Act was revised recently to include a Socio-economic Duty and we have included 

a chapter on these guidelines.  

 

We also gave consideration to the document titled "Is Wales fairer? 2018" in revising 

the draft. 

 

Consideration was also given to all the data that has emerged in light of Covid-19 and 

the Black Lives Matter movement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



2.5  Are there any gaps in the evidence that needs to be collected?  
 

 
We will use the information gathered from the consultation being conducted on 

Objective 2 of the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 to further revise the Policy in 2022 

(depending on the revised timescale due to Covid-19). 

 

 
 
3)  Identifying the Impact  
 
 
3.1   The Council must duly address the impact that any changes will have on 

people with the following equality characteristics.  What impact will the 

new policy/service or the proposed changes in the policy or service have 

on people with these characteristics?  You are welcome to add other 

characteristics if you wish.    

 

Characteristics What type 
of impact?  

In what way?  What is the evidence? 
 

Race 

(including 

nationality)  

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. The policy addresses many issues relating to 

race e.g. the need to consider different languages and 

being aware of cultural needs. Addressing hate crime, 

stereotyping and discrimination are also matters being 

considered. The policy talks about considering people 

from the gypsy, Roma and traveller race.  

 

Race considerations are particularly important in light 

of the Covid-19 pandemic and the Black Lives Matter 

movement. 

 

The policy is also expected to assist the Council in 

ensuring fairness for our staff and improving diversity 

in our workforce. 

 

Disability  

 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. Accessibility of all kinds is very important for 

disabled people with different impairments, which the 

policy prioritises. 

Addressing hate crime, stereotyping and 

discrimination are also matters being considered. The 

policy is clear that people with all sorts of disability 

Page 105



must be considered, and we should not think that 

accessibility is limited to physical access only. 

The policy is also expected to assist the Council in 

ensuring fairness for our staff and improving diversity 

in our workforce. 

 

Sex/Gender 

 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. Gender issues are addressed in particular in 

the chapter on employment. 

 

The policy is also expected to assist the Council in 

ensuring fairness for our staff and improving diversity 

in our workforce. This is particularly important when 

we consider the fact that data shows that women have 

borne the majority of caring duties during the 

pandemic. 

 

Age Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 
provide services for all and to reduce any existing 
barriers. Accessibility issues are fundamental to older 
people's independence; therefore, the policy 
addresses a number of matters that are important to 
them.  
 
Young people also face stereotyping and 
discrimination, therefore the message that everyone 
should be treated according to their need is also 
important to young people. 
 
The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 
ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 
and improve diversity in our workforce. 
 

Sexual 

orientation 

 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. Staff are expected to treat everyone 

according to their need, which is important to people 

whatever their sexual orientation.  

 

Addressing sex crime, stereotyping and discrimination 

are also important. 

 

Page 106



The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 

ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 

and improve diversity in our workforce. 

 

Religion or 

belief (or non-

belief) 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 
provide services for all and to reduce any existing 
barriers.  
 
Addressing hate crime, stereotyping and 
discrimination are also important. 
 
The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 

ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 

and improve diversity in our workforce. 

 

Gender 

reassignment 

 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. The policy's message that everyone should 

be treated according to their need is especially 

important here.  

 

It talks specifically about the need to treat trans 

people with respect and dignity. 

 

The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 

ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 

and improve diversity in our workforce. 

 

Pregnancy and 

maternity 

 

Positive  The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. Providing equal opportunities for women on 

maternity leave is important.  

 

It is also important to provide for members and the 

public during this time. 

 

The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 

ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 

and improve diversity in our workforce. 

 

Marriage and 

civil 

partnership 

Positive / 
negative / 
none  

The policy is expected to remind staff of the need to 

provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers.  

 

Page 107



Having said this, there is no specific mention in the 

policy about marriage and civil partnership. 

 

The policy is also expected to strengthen the need to 

ensure fairness for our staff according to their needs 

and improve diversity in our workforce. 

 

The Welsh 

language 

 

Positive  It is expected for the policy to remind staff of the need 

to provide services for all and to reduce any existing 

barriers. The policy addresses the need to consider 

language under the race characteristic, e.g. the need 

to consider different languages and being aware of 

cultural needs. 

Also, there is a responsibility on the Council to 
consider the impact of its decisions on the Welsh 
language under the requirements of the Welsh 
Language Measure and Welsh Language Standards, 
and a Language Policy is being implemented to 
ensure compliance with the Standards and that 
services are provided bilingually. 

 
 
 
3.2  The Council has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to contribute positively 

to a fairer society by advancing equality and good relations in its activities 

in the fields of age, gender, sexual orientation, religion, race, transgender, 

disability and pregnancy and maternity.  The Council must duly address the 

way any change affects these duties.   

 

General Duties 

of the Equality 

Act 

 

Does it have 

an impact?* 

In what way?  What is the evidence? 

Eliminate 

unlawful 

discrimination, 

harassment 

and 

victimisation 

 

Yes  The purpose of the policy is to remind staff of the 

need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and 

victimisation. The ways to do this is to equip staff 

with the right information in order to treat people 

according to their need and with respect and 

dignity. 

Promote equal 

opportunities 

 

Yes  Again, this is one of the main purposes of the 

policy. The policy will remind staff of the need to 

promote equal opportunity for all by ensuring they 

have the right knowledge, and to treat people 

Page 108



according to their need and with respect and 

dignity. 

 

Foster good 

relationships 

Yes  By minimising barriers, the policy will promote good 

relationships between people with equality 

characteristics and the rest of society.  The policy 

encourages inclusion of people with equality 

characteristics when providing and altering 

services. 

 
 
3.3 How does your proposal ensure that you operate in accordance with the 

requirements of the Welsh Language Standards (Welsh Language (Wales) 

Measure 2011), to ensure that the Welsh language is not treated less 

favourably than the English, and that every opportunity to promote the 

Welsh language is taken (beyond providing bilingual services) and 

increase opportunities to use and learn the language in the community? 

 

The Council has a Language Policy that is implemented alongside the Equality and 

Inclusion Policy and ensures that the Council provides services and information in 

accordance with the need and requirements of the population in terms of language. 

The principles of the Welsh Language Measure of not treating the Welsh language less 

favourably than English and taking advantage of all opportunities to promote the Welsh 

language, are an essential part of that policy. The Equality and Inclusion Policy relates 

to matters that go beyond the bilingual provision and considers additional needs. 

 

 

3.4 What other measures or changes could you include to strengthen or 

change the policy / practice so as to have a positive impact on people's 

opportunities to use the Welsh language, and to reduce or prevent any 

detrimental impacts that the policy/practice could have on the Welsh 

language? 

 

As the Council's Language Policy stands alone and sets the guidance on going beyond 

the provision of bilingual services to promote and boost the Welsh language, it is not 

considered that changes need to be made to this specific policy to address the need to 

have a positive impact on the Welsh language. The Council's language policy is 

currently being reviewed, and there will be an opportunity to look at improvements and 

opportunities to have a more positive impact when carrying out an assessment on 

those amendments. 

 

 
 

Page 109



3.5  How does the proposal show that you have given due regard to the need 

to address inequality due to socio-economic disadvantage? (Please note 

that this relates to closing the inequality gap, rather than just improving 

outcomes for everyone). 

 
 

 
By ensuring fairness when receiving services. 

 

By improving diversity and fairness across our workforce, we will also be providing 

support to people with specific equality characteristics, who are statistically poorer than 

the rest of society, to obtain better jobs. 

 

 
 
3.6  What other measures or changes could you include to strengthen or 

change the policy / practice to show that you have given due regard to the 

need to reduce disproportionate outcomes as a result of socio-economic 

disadvantage, in accordance with the Socio-Economic Act? 

 

 
We have considered all the factors in creating the policy. 
 
 

 
 
4)  Analysing the results  
 
4.1  Is the policy therefore likely to have a significantly positive impact on any 

of the equality characteristics or the General Duty?  What is the reason 

for this? 

 

 
Yes.  The policy's aim is to remove barriers for people who have any of the equality 

characteristics and to promote equal opportunities.  If all Council employees act in 

accordance with the policy, we can ensure fairness for the residents of Gwynedd. 

 

The policy will also help to secure equal opportunities for our workforce and for those 

wishing to apply for jobs within the Council. 

 
 

 
  

Page 110



4.2  Is the policy therefore likely to have a significantly negative impact on any 

of the equality characteristics or the General Duty?  What is the reason 

for this? 

 

 
No 

 
 
4.3  What should be done?  
 
Select one of the following: 
 
 

Continue with the policy / service as it is robust 
 

X 
 

Revise the policy to remove any barriers  
 

 
 

Suspend and abolish the policy as the harmful impacts are too great 
 

 
 

Continue with the policy as any harmful impact can be justified  
 

 

 
 
4.4  If you continue with the plan, what steps will you take to reduce or 

mitigate any negative impacts?  
 
 

 
N/A.  The aim of the scheme is to reduce or mitigate negative impacts on the people of 

Gwynedd 

 

 
 
4.5  If you are not taking any further action to remove or reduce the negative 

impacts, please explain why here.  
 
 

 
N/A 
 
 

 
  

Page 111



5)  Monitoring 
 
5.1  What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 

policy or service (action plan)?  
 

 
We will review use of the Policy annually. 
 
 

 
 

Page 112



 

MEETING Cabinet 
 

DATE 6 July 2021 
 

TITLE Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 
 

PURPOSE To approve arrangements for Cabinet meetings and address the 
new requirements in Part 3 of the Act. 
 

CABINET MEMBER Coun. Nia Jeffreys 
 

AUTHORS Geraint Owen, Head of Democracy Services and  
Iwan Evans, Monitoring Officer 
 

 

1. DECISSION SOUGHT 

That the Cabinet adopt the arrangements and Protocol to continue with virtual meetings until 

arrangements are revised as noted in the report.    

2. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

Section 47 of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 establishes arrangements which 

allows for remote attendance by members.  The Council is required to adopt and publish 

arrangements.  The relevant part of the work programme can be seen in Appendix A.    

As these arrangements concern Cabinet meetings, the Cabinet is asked to approve the arrangements 

for holding Cabinet meetings.   

3.   Access to the Public 

1. The access rights of the press and public to Cabinet meetings is a basic statutory principle in 

Local Government Legislation. Previously, this was based on ensuring access to the press and public 

to the room/chamber where the meeting was held (excluding Exempt matters). It must be noted, 

although the principles are almost identical, the Cabinet arrangements are in a specific, separate 

system 

 

2. Section 3 of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, adapts this legislation by 

allowing the Authority to hold meetings virtually, i.e. that the access to the press and public is 

provided virtually. This could be via webcasting at the meeting, but it could be via other electronic 

methods, which allow them to speak to hear and see the meeting.    Therefore, where a meeting is 

held wholly through the virtual method, rather than stating the time and location of the meeting on 

the front of the agenda, it must be stated clearly how access can be gained to the meeting.  

 

Holding a meeting 

 

3. In accordance to Section 47 of the Act, the Council must adopt and publish arrangements 

with provision to enable meetings to be held with people who are not all at the same location.   Such 

a meeting could be held purely virtually or as a hybrid meeting which is held at a specific location 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



with provision for remote attendance.  Although a meeting can be held purely in a specific location, 

remote attendance for attendees must be provided for.  The term ‘hybrid’ is used for these types of 

meetings, and it is envisaged that they will be a normal occurrence in the future. 

 

4. This provision has been in place since 1 May this year. As part of the work, the Authority is 

requested to adopt and publish its arrangements for delivering these requirements, and re-

publishing if changes arise. 

 

5.  At present, we continue to hold virtual meetings only.  A specific project has been 

established to develop the necessary technology in order to offer hybrid meetings - meetings that 

allow for remote access and at a specific location.  These developments are progressing.  It will be 

necessary to ensure that the provision is technically easy to use and responds to the requirements of 

bilingualism, voting matters, webcasting, etc 

 

6. This is also subject to Coronavirus regulations that apply to our decisions regarding 

attending offices. 

 

Equality Act 2010 

 

7. The Council is subject to its duty under the 2010 Equality Act to give due attention to the 

need to remove unlawful discrimination, harassment and oppression, along with any other 

behaviours prohibited under the provisions of the Act.  In addition, there is a need to increase equal 

opportunities and foster good relationships between those with protected characteristics and those 

who do not have protected characteristics (the General Equality Duty). In accordance with the 

requirement in Wales, and in order to address this duty, an Equality Impact Assessment has been 

prepared.  It is included in appendix Ch, and has identified no impact which would change the 

recommendation.   

 

8. Therefore, in response to the above requirements, it is suggested that temporary 

arrangements should be established and published, whilst the above developmental work is done.  

The arrangements will need to be reviewed regularly.   A further report on developments will be 

presented to the Full Council meeting in October 2021. 

 

9. The policy includes two options to enable Access to the public in the short-term: 

 Live webcasting 

 Sharing a link for the meeting that will be held as a webinar. 

 

Constitution 

 

10. The Constitution will need to be adapted to reflect this Legislation.  This will include: 

 

1. Changing the definition of Quorum in order to address remote attendance 

2. Amending rights of access to the press and public in order to acknowledge the new 

electronic context and the alternative statutory arrangements 

 

The changes relevant to the Cabinet are reported in Appendix B for your information.   

 

 

Page 114



Interim Arrangements 

 

11. Gwynedd Council Cabinet meetings will continue to hold virtual meetings only during the 

period from May 2021 onwards, until noted otherwise.  Meanwhile, we will continue to develop our 

arrangements for holding hybrid meetings and ensure safety in returning to the chambers.  We will 

review the situation regularly 

 

12. Note that the protocol for virtual meetings has been included in Appendix C of the report 

and is an integral part of the arrangements.   

 

 

Views of the Statutory Officers  

 

The Monitoring Officer 

Co-author of the report. 

Head of Finance 

Nothing to add from the perspective of financial propriety. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

Appendix A  - Work programme 

Appendix B – Ammendments to the Constitution relevant to the Cabinet 

Appendix C – Protocol for Virtual meetings  

Appendix Ch -  Equality Impact Assessment

Page 115



Appendix 1 
(Cncl = Full Council , Cab. = Cabinet , AGC = Audit and Governance Committee, DSC = Democratic Services Committee, SC = Standards Committee)  

Provisions Description Provision in 
Force  

Responsible 
Officer  

Preparation Steps / Resources 
 

Timetable  

Part 3 Promoting 
Access to Local 
Government,  

1. Right to hold formal meetings on a hybrid and 
virtual basis, but a Policy needs to be adopted 

2. Provide remote attendance for members on a 
statutory basis 

3. Incorporate changes in matters such as 
publishing meeting agendas and dealing with 
matters such as publishing decisions 

4  A duty to encourage public participation in 
matters such as decision-making 

6. The requirement to adopt a Participation 
Strategy 

7. The requirement to adopt a Petitions Scheme  
8  Statutory requirement to webcast a range of 

meetings 
 9. The requirement to publish Guidelines to the 

Constitution 
 
 

1, 2, 3 In Force        
1 May 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4- 9 In Force May 
2022 
 
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Support   

Democracy and Language 
Service to lead on matters 
involving remote attendance, 
participation and publishing 
agendas, etc. 
 
Legal Services to lead on 
reviewing the Constitution and 
preparing Guidelines. 

Reporting on 1,2,3 to 
DSC and Cab. June 
2021 with a report to 
Cncl. in July with a 
recommendation of a 
Virtual Meetings 
Policy. 
 
4-7 Report to Cab. 
October 2021.  
 
8 DSC Report October 
2021 with a request 
for resources to the 
2022 bidding round. 
 
9. Draft to the AGC 
Committee October 
2022. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 116



Atodiad B – Appedix B 

Part 5 Cabinet 
5.8.7 Cworwm 
(a) Y cworwm ar gyfer cyfarfod y Cabinet fydd chwarter yr 

aelodau gan gynnwys yr Arweinydd neu’r Dirprwy Arweinydd. 
 
(b) Y cworwm ar gyfer cyfarfod un o bwyllgorau’r Cabinet fydd 

dau.   
 

Bydd presenoldeb yn cynnwys presenoldeb drwy 
ddarpariaeth electroneg sydd yn caniatáu i’r aelod 
glywed a siarad yn y cyfarfod. 

 
Ni fydd unrhyw ddiffyg yn y ddarpariaeth dechnolegol (pa 
un ai yw hynny’n arwain at golli cysylltiad yn llwyr neu’n 
rhannol) yn annilysu unrhyw ran o’r trafodaethau nac yn 
amharu ar unrhyw bleidlais a gymerir.  Caiff y sawl sydd 
yn llywyddu ohirio’r cyfarfod os yw o’r farn fod hynny’n 
briodol. 

 
 

Rhan 5 Cabinet 
5.8.7 Quorum 
(a) The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet shall be one quarter 

of the members including the Leader or Deputy Leader. 
 
(b) The quorum for a meeting of a committee of the Cabinet shall 

be 2. 
 

Presence shall include presence through electronic 
means which allow the member to hear and speak at the 
meeting. 

 
The failure of any technological provision whether that 
leads to a partial or complete loss of contact shall not 
invalidate any part of the deliberations or affect any vote 
taken. Whoever is presiding may postpone the meeting if 
they deem that appropriate. 

Rheolau Sefydlog Mynediad i Wybodaeth 
 
14.3 Hawliau i Fynychu Cyfarfodydd 
Caiff aelodau’r cyhoedd gael mynychu mynediad i bob cyfarfod yn 
amodol ar yr eithriadau i’r rheolau hyn yn unig . 
 

Access to Information Procedure Rules 
 
14.3 Rights to Attend Meetings 
Members of the public may attend access all meetings subject only 
to the exceptions in these rules. 
 

 

 

P
age 117



GWYNEDD COUNCIL 

PROTOCOL FOR VIRTUAL MEETINGS  

1. GENERAL  

 

1.1 This Protocol has been preapared in accordance with Section 47 of The Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (the Act).  That Act provides for attendance 

at local authority meetings, whilst Part 1 of Schedule 4 amends existing legislation in 

relation to arrangements for local authority meetings and documents, including acess 

by the press and public and requiring electronic publication of certain meeting 

documents.  

1.2 From 1 May 2021, local authorities will be required to make arrangements to ensure 

their meetings are capable of being held virtually, partially virtually or as physical 

meetings.  Section 47 does not prescribe how meetings are to be held, and this is a 

matter for each authority 

1.3  The Council's Constitution Standing Orders arrangements will be followed when holding 

meetings.  The Protocol is designed to advise and support the Constitution and in 

theevent of a conflict between provisions the Constitution will take precendence.  

1.4    Meeting "virtually" is different and requires an alternative way of working.  Neither the 

way the discussion works nor the environment in which contributions are made is the 

same as in an usual meeting.  The purpose of this Protocol is to guide contributors 

through meetings and give guidance on best practice.  

1.5  T his Protocol provides a procedure for virtual meetings in order to ensure that the 

meetings are held in an appropriate and fair manner and ensures the confidence of the 

public in Gwynedd Council's democratic arrangements over the period of the crisis.  

 

2. PRE-MEETING PERIOD 

NOTICE , AGEDNA AND REPORT 

 

2.1 The Agenda and reports will be published and circulated to members as usual. As 

usual, the date and time of the meeting will be noted on the agenda.  

 

2.2 An electronic invitation to the meeting will be sent which will contain a link to 

facilitate access to the meeting. 

 

2.3 The Notice of the meeting  will also include details of the time of the meetings and 

how members of the public can access the meeting. 

2.4 Members of the press and public will be able to access the meeting through one of 

the following means: 

(a) Live webcast, or 

(b) Webinar facilities, or 

(c) An alternative way in appropriate circumstances. 

Page 118



3. 3. THE DAY OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
3.1 TESTING THE SYSTEM AND PREPARING 

All members and officers will be expected to log-in to the system at least 20 minutes before 

the meeting in order to ensure that the connections are working.  As all 75 members are 

invited to the Full Council meeting, members will be expected to log-in to the system 30 

minutes before the meeting. Capacity to resolve technical problems during the meeting is 

limited. 

 

A Democratic Services Officer will test connections immediately in this period to ensure: 

1. That the provision is working 

2. That all members and officers who are taking part have access to the system 

3. If there is a technical problem, to identify a solution and implement it. 

4. That the translation is working for the non-Welsh-speaking members.  

 

A member of the Democratic Team will act as Host and will manage admittance to the 

meeting.   To facilitate arrangements also, technical support will be available in some 

meetings to act as "Technical Manager" in order to deal with any technical issues. 

The legal officer or other lead officer will confirm that a quorum is present and the meeting 

can start and inform the chair. 

 

A quorum is defined as members who are in attendance (logged into the meeting) by 

electronic means and can speak and be heard at the meeting. 

 

3.2 CHAIR TO OPEN THE MEETING 

The Chair will open the meeting by explaining the procedure and how everything will work in 

a virtual meeting (noting the procedure for allowing local members and third parties to 

speak, proposals, requests to speak from committee members and voting).  Specifically, the 

following must be explained: 

 That requests to speak will be made by "raising" the virtual hand and waiting to be 

invited to speak by the Chair. 

 That microphones must be on mute at all times unless a contributor has been 

invited to speak by the Chair.   The microphone should be muted immediately 

afterwards. 

 Explain the procedure in terms of loss of connection etc.  (explain below) and that 

the rules about being present to listen to the addresses apply.  

 The 'chat' function will not be available during a meeting  

 

3.3 DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS 

 

 Chair to ask if anyone is declaring an interest.  Members to note by using the 

Raise Hand icon, their intention to declare so that the Chair can ask them to 

address the Committee. 

Page 119



 Members to note the item and the reason for expressing an interest (members 

should contact the Legal Officer beforehand for advice in order to facilitate the 

process).  

 If the member declares a prejudicial interest in any item. When the item begins, 

they must "leave" the meeting.   A Democratic Services Officer will ensure that 

this happens by 'moving' the member to a 'waiting room'.  A Democratic 

Services Officer will ensure that the member re-joins at the end of the item by 

inviting them back to the main meeting from the 'waiting room'. 

 

3.4 DISCUSSION 

 

 Members will note their wish to make or second a proposal or amendment or 

otherwise  speak by using the Raise Hand icon.  Members should not unmute 

their microphone until the Chair has invited them to speak.  So as to maintain 

order and assist the Chair, after speaking, every member will need to lower their 

hand by clicking on the Lower Hand icon and remember to mute their 

microphone immediately. 

 The Chair will go through these in turn.  So as to maintain order, members 

should restrict their contribution to one address.  The Chair will maintain 

discretion to allow additional questions.  

 

3.5 PROPRIETY OFFICERS 

 

The Chair must be aware of any requests by a Statutory Officer to draw the Chair's 

attention to either a matter of order or propriety which needs to be drawn to the 

meeting's attention. Therefore, if the Propriety Officer makes a request to speak they 

should confirm whether the officer wishes to speak immediately in relation to a 

point of order or whether they would be willing to wait their turn. If the Chair does 

not see the Statutory Officer's request to speak, the officer will need to interrupt the 

meeting to sort the matter out. 

 

3.6 VOTE 

 Votes can be undertaken in the following manner: 

o Where there is an available electronic voting system with the use of that 

system, 

o By asking every member with the right to vote to express orally how 

they are voting, i.e. in favour of the proposal, against the proposal or 

abstaining their vote. 

o At a meeting of 12 or fewer voting members, the electronic hand 

method may be used for voting if it is available to members and that it is 

possible to see their vote. 

 

o If the vote is tied, the Chair will use his/her casting vote by expressing 

this orally at the Committee and formally announcing the result.  

 

Page 120



3.7 TECHNICAL ISSUES 

 If, at any time during the Committee, that technical issues mean that an audio 

and/or video connection is lost with members or officers, the Chair will adjourn 

the meeting in an attempt to rectify the problem and allow the member to 

continue to take part whether with video and audio or on an audio only basis.    

 Members are required to contact the Technical Manager or Democratic Services 

Officer if they are  having difficulties. As far as is possible, members and officers 

must have an alternative method for contacting them e.g. phone, e-mail or 

other means. 

 If technical issues remain to the extent that members who wish to participate 

are unable to do so, and that this has a significant effect on an item or items or 

the propriety of continuing, the Chair will consider whether an item or the rest 

of the meeting should be deferred until a later date and/or time.  

 

Page 121



                     

 

 

 

 

                     

For help to complete this form see the How to Undertake an Equality Impact Assessment leaflet.  

You are also welcome to contact Delyth Gadlys Williams, Policy and Equality Officer on ext. 

32708 or DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru for further assistance. 

 

The Council’s is required (under the Equality Act 2010) to consider the effect any change in 

policy or procedure (or the creation of a new policy or procedure), has on people with 

protected equality characteristics.  The Council also has a general duty to ensure fairness and 

foster good relations.  A timely Equality Impact Assessment must be undertaken before 

making any decision on any relevant change (i.e. which has an effect on people with protected 
characteristics. 

 

1 Details  
 

1.1 What is the name of the policy / service in question? 

 

 

Remote attendance and Access to the Public Project.     

 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 requires the Council to provide remote 

attendance for elected members and Access to the public to see and hear proceedings at 

public meetings. 

 

       

  

1.2  What is the purpose of the policy/ Service that is being created or 

amended?  What chances are being considered?  

 

Originally, the project aimed to ensure that we were able to   

a) hold virtual meetings (without any physical presence in a meeting room)   

b) ensure that elected members could take part in committee meetings by remote attendance 

should they wish to do so.   

 

By September 2020 the project moved towards ensuring that the public were able to Access 
virtual meetings by seeing and/or hearing proceedings in our main committee meetings as it 

was a Council priority.   

 

Presently, as it is a requirement of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 we 

are working towards  

 Ensuring that elected members are able to take part remotely when a meeting is held 

in a specific location (subject to covid-19 restrictions). 

 Access to the public to see and hear proceedings at public meetings 
 

           

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 122

mailto:DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


1.3 Who is responsible for this assessment? 

 

 

Vera Jones, Democracy Services and Language Manager -  on behalf of the Remote Attendance 

Project Board 

 

 

 

1.4  When did you commence the assessment?  Which version is this? 

 

 

The first assessment was started in June 2020 in preparation for our first virtual meetings due 

to the covid pandemic.   

This is the second version, which includes further developments within the project.  It was 

reviewed June 2021. 

 

      

 2)  Action 
 

 

2.1 Who are the partners you need to work with to undertake this assessment? 

 

 

Councillors 

IT Service 

Property Department 

Staff 

 

 

 

2.2  What measures have you taken to engage with people with equality 

characteristics? 

 

 

 

1. Informal discussions were undertaken with Gwynedd Councillors prior to the 

commencement of our first virtual meetings using Teams and prior to using Zoom – in 

particular non Welsh speakers.   

2. Arrangements for committee meetings (and others) in the future were discussed with 

the Democracy Services Committee on 18/02/2021 and in addition all members were 

asked for comments as part of the satisfaction survey in June 2021.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 123



2.3 What was the result of the engagement? 

 

 

1. The original provision was adapted from Teams to Zoom following comments by 

elected members that the translation provision offered via zoom offered a fairer and 

simpler Service for Welsh speakers and non-Welsh speakers, with all involved 

attending the same meeting and directions much simpler to follow.  The changes were 

made following assurance of the Security issues regarding the technology.   

 

2. A number of members have noted the benefits of virtual meetings, especially with 

regards to   

 Contributing to the carbon reduction agenda by reducing travelling  

 Promoting diversity in Democracy by encouraging the flexibility of remote 

access to virtual meetings and thereby attracting more people who work and 

young parents  

 Using Councillors' time more sensibly by reducing travelling requirements  

 And reducing travelling costs 

 

3. In addition, numerous comments have been made by Councillors in various meetings 

about meeting arrangements in the future, with most noting the need for a 

combination of virtual meetings and hybrid meetings.   

 

 

 

 

2.4 On the basis of what other evidence are you operating? 

 

  

The project was started primarily in response to the covid-19 pandemic and the requirement 

to continue with democratic arrangements whilst adhering to restrictions to stay at home and 

not attend the Office (including the Council chamber). 

 

The restrictions with regards to “work from home where possible” remain in place.  In 

addition, we must respond to the requirements of the Local government and Elections 

(Wales) 2021 Act to  

 Ensure that elected members are able to take part remotely when a meeting is held in 

a specific location (subject to covid-19 restrictions). 

 Access to the public to see and hear proceedings at public meetings 

 

 

 

2.5  Are there any gaps in the evidence that needs to be collected? 

 

 

Consultations with people with additional needs eg sight and hearing impairments to ensure 

that the provision is suitable for their needs.   

 

 

 

Page 124



 3) Identifying the Impact  
 

 

3.1  The Council has to give due regard to the effect any changes will have on 

people with the equality characteristics noted below.  What impact will the 

new policy/service or the proposed changes in the policy or service have 
on people with these characteristics?  You are welcome to any other 
characteristics if you wish 

   
 

Characteristics What type 

of impact?*  

 

In what way?  What is the evidence? 

 

Race (including 

nationality) 

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

The Welsh 

language 

 

Positive a) Virtual meetings 

Positive effect on the Welsh and English language by 

using zoom as the provision for virtual meetings  as 

meetings continue to be held through the medium 

of Welsh with the simultaneous translation Service 

easily available to those who require it.     

 

b) Remote Attendance 

We will need to ensure that simultaneous 

translation service is available to anyone who 

attends a meeting (be it in the location or remote 

attendance).  We are currently working on a hybrid 

solution.   

 

c) Public Access 

Public access is available to the public through 

webcasting, which is available in Welsh and English.   

 

Disability  

 

 

Positive / 

negative / 

none 

Autism – Some may experience a positive effect due to 

lessening anxiety compared with being in a Chamber.  On 

the other hand, it can be a negative experience if the time 

on screen is too long, however individuals are able to 

choose to leave.    

 

Mental Health conditions – it can be a positive experience 

for some who experience conditions such as anxiety by 

making it easier to take part in meetings without the 

camera on and not feeling additional pressure.  It may effect 
negatively without the human contact leading to raised 

anxiety. 

   

Visual impairment – too much screen time could lead to a 

negative effect.   

Page 125



 

Hearing impairment – a positive impact as remote 

attendance allows for the individual to adjust sound levels 

or use earphones to eliminate background noise.  .   

 

Physical impairment – positive effect as the need for a 

specific location and the need to travel are eliminated.   

Sex 

 

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

Age Positive / 

negative / 

none 

It is probable that some may feel a positive effect of remote 

attendance without having to leave their homes.   

 

Sexual 

orientation 

 

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

Religion or 

belief (or non-

belief) 

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

Gender 

reassignment 

 

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

Pregnancy and 

maternity 

 

Positive / 

negative / 

none 

Positive effect for pregnant women and breast feeding 

mothers with remote attendance should they wish, without 

having to travel to a specific location.   

 

Positive effect on parents by reducing the time taken to 

travel to meetings by ensuring parents are able to access 

remotely.   

Marriage and 

civil 

partnership  

Positive / 

negative / 

none  

No impact has been identified 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 126



3.2  The Council has a duty under the 2010 Equality Act to contribute 

positively to a fairer society by promoting equality and good relations in 
its activities regarding the following characteristics – age, gender, sexual 
orientation, religion, race, gender reassignment, disability and pregnancy 
and maternity.   The Council must give due attention to the way any 
change affects these duties. 

  
 

General Duties 

of the Equality 

Act 

 

Does it have 

an impact?*    

In what way?  What is the evidence? 

Abolishing 

illegal 

discrimination, 

harassment 

and 

victimisation 

 

No   

Promoting 

equal 

opportunities 

 

Yes  Virtual Meetings.  Positive effect as there is more 

discipline in virtual meetings with equal opportunity for 

all to speak.  Individuals can also choose to take part 

with their cameras off.   

 

Remote attendance.  Yes, positive effect as above.  

However, until hybrid solution is in place we will not 

know if there are equal opportunities for all or will 

those attending remotely feel ignored.   

 

Access to the public – the new arrangements will lead 
to improved and simpler access to the public to hear 

and view committee meetings ensuring transparency in 

our democratic arrangements.  Individuals will not be 

required to travel to specific locations at a specific time.   

 

On the other hand, there may be a negative effect as the 

provision available is dependent on access to a 

computer and the web.  Individuals without the 

provisions are able to use the computers at their local 

library (subject to covid restrictions).    

 

Encouraging 

good 

relationships 

 

Yes and no Virtual meetings and remote attendance could be 

positive in encouraging good relationships as it enables 

some to participate in meetings who would not be able 

to do so otherwise.   

 

On the other hand, there is a conception that forming 

good and new relations through virtual means could be 

more challenging due to the lack of informal networking.  

Page 127



4)  Analysing the results  

 

4.1 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any of 

the equality characteristics or the General Duty and what is the reason for 

this? 

 

 

As noted above, the changes outlined above have enabled the Council’s democratic 

arrangements, including holding committees who make key decisions, to continue during the 

pandemic.   

 

The changes to enable meetings to be held virtually or hybrid, ensuring elected members are 

able to Access remotely is likely to have a positive impact on a number of the equality 

characteristics  as noted in 3.1 – mainly for pregnant females, breastfeeding mothers and 

individuals with a physical impairment of mental health condition.   

 

In addition, arrangements for ensuring Access to the public through webcasting or other 

means enable more of Gwynedd residence to Access democratic proceedings leading to 

improved transparency.   

 
 

 

4.2 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, negative impact on any of 

the equality characteristics or the General Duty and what is the reason for 

this? 
 

 

 

We acknowledge that there are two sides to every story, with the possible negative effects 

outlined in 3.1 above.   
 

However, the Equality Impact Assessment has not identified impacts which would lead to a 

change in the recommendation.   

 

4.3    What should be done?  

 

Choose one of the following: 

 
 

Continue with the policy / service as it is robust 

 
 
 

Adapt the policy to delete any barriers  

 

 

 

Suspend and delete the policy as the detrimental impacts are too big  

 

 

 

Page 128



Continue with the policy as any detrimental impact can be justified  

 

 

 

 

 

4.4 What steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts? 

 

 

 

Possible negative effects have been outlined in 3.1 above and will receive due consideration as 

the developments proceed.    

 

The work will be reviewed often with updates reported to the Full Council.   

 

 

 

 

4.5 If you are not taking any further action to delete or reduce the negative 

impacts, explain why here. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5)  Monitoring  

 

5.1 What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 

policy or service (action plan)? 

 

 

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) 2021Act clearly states the requirement for the 

Council to publish our arrangements for committee meetings and access to the public.  

Interim arrangements will be presented to the Full Council in July 2021, with a review of the 

arrangements to be presented in October 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version 2 – Reviewed June 2021 

Page 129



 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 
 

Report to the Cabinet 

Meeting Date: 6 July 2021 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams 

Contact Officer: Debbie Anne Williams Jones 

Contact Number: 32489 

Item Title: Immersion Education System towards 2023 and 
Beyond 

1 
1.1 

DECISION SOUGHT 
The Cabinet is asked to approve and implement the vision of the “Immersion Education 
System towards 2032 and beyond”, including the investment of £1.1 million of Welsh 
Government Welsh medium education capital funding to establish new immersion education 
sites in Tywyn and Bangor, as well as improving existing facilities at Porthmadog, in 
accordance with the report. 
 

2 
2.1 

REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED 
The purpose of this report is to present the Education Department’s new vision for an 
immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond for Cabinet approval. To achieve the 
vision, the Cabinet is asked to approve an investment of £ 1.1million of Welsh Government 
Welsh medium education capital grant to ensure a first class learning environment, 
establishing new immersion education sites in Tywyn and Bangor, as well as improving 
existing facilities at Porthmadog.  
 

3 
3.1 

 
 
 

3.2 
 
 
 

3.3 
 
 
 

3.4 
 
 

3.5 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The aim of the Language Centres is to provide an intensive Welsh language course for 
newcomers to enable them to integrate into the bilingual society and participate fully in 
bilingual education experiences.   
 
The first primary Language Centre was opened in Caernarfon in September 1984, and there 
are now three other primary language centres in Dolgellau, Llangybi and Penrhyndeudraeth, 
as well as a Secondary Language Centre that was established in Porthmadog in 2004.  
 
There is no doubt that the Language Centres have been successful over the last few 
decades in ensuring that learners succeed in acquiring the Welsh language and succeeding 
in integrating into Gwynedd’s bilingual education system. 
 
However, the Education Department believes that there is a case for changing the current 
immersion provision in Gwynedd, building on the success of the Language Centres. 
 
The Education Departments new vision for learners who are new learners of the Welsh 
language is that they have: 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.6 
 
 
 
 

3.7 
 
 

3.8 
3.8.1 

 
 
 
 
 

3.8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.8.3 
 
 
 

3.8.4 
 
 

3.9 
3.9.1 

 
 
 
 

 
3.10 

3.10.1 
 
 
 

3.11 
3.11.1 

 
 
 
 

3.11.2 
 

"Access to an excellent immersion education system that provides flexible and sustainable 
learning experiences of a high standard that equips them as independent learners who have 

the information and Welsh language skills to enable them to move forward. 
To provide an effective transition from immersion education to the local school, ensuring a 
high standard of experiences and support through the medium of Welsh, that responds to 

the needs of learners and their families to enable them to succeed and thrive." 
 
The aim is to have an immersion education system that places the needs of learners at the 
centre of our provision.  We would like to see a flexible system, which provides first class 
immersion education for the learners, nurturing their Welsh language skills to enable them to 
succeed and thrive in our schools, becoming confident bilingual speakers.  
 
A detailed copy of the new vision for the immersion education system towards 2032 and 
beyond can be seen in Appendix 1.  
 
Capital Funding 
In order to deliver the vision, purpose, aim and objectives, we hope to invest £1.1m of Welsh 
Government Welsh-medium education capital grant into our immersion education system in 
Gwynedd to ensure a state-of-the-art learning environment, with modern facilities for 21st 
century learners and educators. This capital grant is a 100% grant from the Welsh 
Government, and therefore does not require any match funding from the Council. 
 
This capital investment will facilitate the establishment of two completely new immersion 
education sites in Gwynedd, located in strategic areas of the county and areas of linguistic 
significance, namely Tywyn and Bangor. It is also intended to improve the facilities in the 
Eifionydd immersion education site which again is strategically located in the centre of the 
county. These three immersion education sites will offer primary and secondary provision 
jointly, bridging years 5-9. 
 
It is also intended to relocate the Dolgellau Language Centre to a larger site in order to offer 
the provision to more children, and the Dolgellau site, together with Llangybi and Maesincla, 
will provide immersion education to years 2-4 of primary schools.  
 
As a result of the investment, six sites will offer provision to primary age learners and three 
sites will offer provision for secondary learners, with flexibility between the sites as needed.  
 
Revenue Funding 
It is intended for the Immersion Education System towards 2032 and beyond to be funded 
from three different sources, namely: 

 Education Imrpovement Grant (EIG)  

 Schools (central) 

 Education Department 
 
EIG Grant 
This is the core grant to fund the Immersion Education System, however, as is known, as a 
result of inflation and an increase in costs, this grant alone is not sufficient to fund the 
provision in full. 
 
Schools  
The immersion education system is a specialist service and pivotal to the implementation of 
the Gwynedd education language policy. Consequently, it is intended to ask for a financial 
contribution from the schools which will be a means of ensuring joint-ownership and a fit-for-
purpose immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond. 
 
Based on the 2021-22 budget, the revenue costs of the immersion education system 
towards 2032 and beyond are projected to cost an additional £162,000. 

Page 132



 
 

3.12 
3.12.1 

 
 
 
 

3.12.2 
 
 
 

3.12.3 

 
Education Department 
The Education Department already contributes to the costs of the service, and this 
contribution will continue, through: 

 Match funding for the EIG grant 

 Contributing towards the transport costs to the immersion provision.  
 
The Education Department will be consulting with the Schools Budget Forum on the 
principle that schools contribute financially towards the immersion education system on 28 
June 2021. 
 
Following that, should Cabinet decide to support the new vision for the immersion education 
system towards 2032 and beyond, then Governing Bodies will be consulted in the Autumn 
term on establishing the principle that schools make an annual financial contribution to 
funding the new-look immersion education system from April 2022 onwards.  
 

4 
 

4.1 
 
 

4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.3 
 

 
 

4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.5 
 
 

 
 

4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.7 

4.7.1 
 
 

REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION 

The main case for change and the need for a new vision for the immersion education 
system in Gwynedd can be summarised as follows: 
 
Place the learner's needs at the centre 

 The need for the system to promote the achievement and welfare of Gwynedd 
newcomers to acquire the Welsh language while keeping in contact with their local 
school and peers at the same time. 

 The need for the system to be able to assist parents and carers to understand the 
value of Welsh-medium education to support their children. 

 
Modernise the provision and make it contemporary 

 The need for the system to respond to the needs of the learners and the curriculum.  

 The need to invest in the infrastructure for the system including digital resources. 
 
Working in partnership 

 The need for the Education Department and schools to work in partnership and take 
joint ownership of the immersion education system.  

 The need for the immersion education system to provide guidance, support and 
resources to schools to enable them to support learners to make further progress in 
terms of their Welsh language confidence/skills. 

 
An opportunity to create a first-class learning environment 

 An opportunity to invest £1.1million of Welsh Government Welsh-medium education 
capital grant into the immersion education system, improving the learning 
environment and infrastructure. 

 
New opportunities as a result of COVID-19  

 Blended learning provision i.e. the Language Centres provided blended learning as a 
result of the numerous lockdowns, namely face-to-face teaching at school, live 
learning sessions via Teams, together with work on Google Classrooms. This was 
recognised as excellent practice by Estyn. 

 The schools are asking for immersion education expertise and resources to support 
the Welsh language to be disseminated across the system. 

 
Lessons learnt as a result of the Pilot Scheme 
In the light of the Council's policy of not addressing the inflationary increase of any grant 
funded posts, together with an increase in costs, two years ago, the Education Department 
faced having to restructure the service to meet its budget. 

Page 133



 
 

4.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 

4.7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.7.4 
 
 
 

4.7.5 
 
 
 
 

4.7.6 
 
 
 
 
 

5. 
 

5.1 

 
 
 
 

 

 
On 2 April 2019, a report on the restructuring of the Language Centres was presented to 
Cabinet, where the Cabinet decided to approve transitional funding in order to enable the 
Department to pilot a staffing structure of a teacher and assistant in one Language Centre 
and monitor carefully to find out if it has an impact on the quality of education and children's 
attainment. 
 
On 1 September 2019, we piloted a staffing structure of a teacher and an assistant at the 
Maesincla Language Centre in Caernarfon. A brief and methodology was drawn up for the 
research and a research team was established comprising of the Department's in-house 
staff with expertise in the field of Welsh and Welsh second language teaching, together with 
a freelance consultant and former head teacher of a primary school in Gwynedd who 
received excellence from Estyn.  
 
The research was conducted during the Autumn 2019, along with the Spring 2020 with the 
intention of returning to Cabinet thereafter with the findings of the research which would 
inform the decision on the future structure of the Language Centres. 
 
However, as a result of COVID-19, it was not possible to complete the research as planned, 
as the schools along with all units and centres providing education closed before the end of 
the spring term, with the schools be re-purposed to provide care for vulnerable children and 
the children of key workers. 
 
Although the research period to measure the impact of the pilot at Maesincla was cut short 
by COVID, due to the repurposing of the service in response to the pandemic, it can be 
confirmed that the pilot has now ended, and Appendix 2 presents a summary report of the 
findings of the research undertaken. 

 
 

NEXT STEPS & TIMETABLE 

Should the Cabinet support the new vision for the Immersion Education System towards 
2032 and beyond, the Education Department would work further on the detail for realizing 
the vision, with the intention that the new immersion education system with a £ 1.1million 
capital investment would take effect by September 2022. 

6 
 

6.1 
 
 

 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.3 
 
 

ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION 

A period of engagement on the new vision for the immersion education system towards 

2032 and beyond took place with key stake-holders between 27 May 2021 and 28 June 

2021.  

 

During this engagement period, engagement sessions were held with: 

 Gwynedd Language Centres Staff  

 Teaching Unions and Teaching Assistants’ representatives 

 Gwynedd Primary and Secondary Head teachers 

 Schools Finance Forum 

 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 

 Language Committee 

 Learners 
 
EDUCATION AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AND LANGUAGE COMMITTEE 
COMMENTS 

Page 134



 
6.3.1 

 
 
 

6.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.3.3 

 
 
 

6.4 
6.4.1 

 
 

6.4.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A report was presented to the Education and Scrutiny Committee on the new vision for the 
immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond on 10 June 2021, as well as the 
Language Committee on 22 June 2021.   
 
The report presenting the new vision was accepted by members of the Scrutiny Committee 
and the Language Committee together with a request for the Cabinet Member for Education 
to consider the comments made by the committee members during the discussions, namely:  
 

 Recognition of the Language Centres success over the years in ensuring that 

learners acquire the Welsh language.  

 Agreed with the intention to strengthen accountability as part of the new vision.  

 Supported the intention to equip the school workforce to support learners to make 

further progress in building confidence and acquiring the Welsh language.  

 The proposal to establish an immersion education provision in Bangor was 

supported. 

 The Education Department was asked to provide more detail on the immersion 

education system when available.  

 There was a variety of views on the funding source of the immersion education 

system, with some members supportive of the intention that schools would 

contribute, thus increasing accountability and joint ownership of the system between 

the Education Department and the schools, but others expressed the wish that the 

Council corporately should finance the funding gap due to the fact that the Welsh 

language is one of the Council’s main priorities. 

 
The debate concluded with a unanimous vote in favour of the new vision by the Education 
and Economy Scrutiny Committee and Language Committee, with a request to provide 
more detail on the immersion education system when available.  
 
GWYNEDD LANGUAGE CENTRE STAFF COMMENTS 
A presentation on the new vision was presented to the staff of Gwynedd Language Centres 
on 27 May 2021, with an opportunity to comment by 21 June 2021. 
 
In response to the new vision, staff made the following comments 

 We welcome the capital investment of £ 1.1m to ensure a first class learning 
environment and an increase in the number of immersion education sites. 

 The intention of appointing a head and deputy for the service was welcomed, which 
would lead to a much more effective and efficient service, as well as ensuring 
consistency of service. It will also be a means of ensuring a close partnership 
between the provision and the schools, by being able to respond positively and 
efficiently to the needs of the schools. However, it was noted that staffing each site 
with a teacher and an assistant would be a cause for concern. 

 Concerns were noted about reducing the length of the primary immersion course 
from 12 weeks to 8-10 weeks, as well as reducing the number of days from 5 days to 
4 days a week, in terms of its effect on learners' linguistic progress. 

 Concern was expressed about the challenge of ensuring appropriate support for 
learners when attending school for 1 day each week, although staff agreed with the 
purpose of this 1 day of enabling learners to maintain contact with their local school, 
their peers and ensuring their well-being. 

 Although blended learning offers many possibilities, blended learning brings with it 
many challenges in terms of the technology itself, a suitable and practical space in 
the schools, setting a timetable, as well as inconsistency between learners. Blended 
learning is not the same as the experience of face-to-face learning, especially when 
practicing spoken language and gesture. 

Page 135



 
 
 
 
 

 
6.5 

6.5.1 
 
 

6.5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.6 
6.6.1 

 
 
 
 
 

6.6.2 
 
 
 

6.6.3 
 
 

6.6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Noted concern about the age range of the merger of primary and secondary learners 
of years 5-9. 

 The need for more detail on some elements of the vision was also noted, and that it 
would be beneficial for staff to receive early clarity on some of these issues. 

 
COMMENTS BY HEAD TEACHERS 
A presentation on the new vision was given to Gwynedd’s secondary head teachers on 16 
June 2021, and to primary head teachers on 17 June 2021.  

 
In response to the new vision, the head teachers submitted the following comments:  

 Recognised the challenge of striking the right balance between ensuring intensive 

immersion to enable learners to acquire the Welsh language as quickly as possible, 

as well as enabling newcomers to settle and remain in their schools and create new 

peers.  

 It was noted that there is an opportunity for Language Co-ordinators and Heads of 

Welsh Departments in the secondary schools to contribute their expertise in 

developing the detail for realising the vision for the immersion education system 

towards 2032 and beyond.  

 The proposal to amalgamate primary and secondary learners from years 5-9 of the 

immersion sites was welcomed. 

 The primary head teachers welcomed the vision and investment, and in particular 

the intention to establish new immersion education sites in Tywyn and Bangor.  

 The proposal to co-fund the new system was supported, but the primary sector 

emphasised that this should not happen at the expense of resources in schools.  

COMMENTS BY LEARNERS 
2 focus groups were held with current Language Centre learners on 22 June 2021. 
Representation from years 5 and 6 of Cefn Coch Language Centre and a group of 
Secondary Language Centre learners contributed wonderfully in a session that discussed a 
series of questions in response to a presentation given on the new vision for the Immersion 
Education System towards 2032 and beyond. 
 
Learners answered a series of questions asking their views on the proposal to invest and 
open new immersion sites, the new weekly timetable, primary and secondary learners 
together on one site, and the role of technology in learning Welsh. 
 
All learners (15 of them) made a valuable contribution to the conversation, and it is 
important to note that their language ability is a credit to the current Language Centres. 
 
Below is a summary of learners’ comments: 

 Of all learners (primary and secondary), 8 learners indicated that they agreed with 

the vision. 5 of the secondary indicated a neutral view, with only 1 disagreeing with 

the new vision 

 One learner noted in particular that there were good elements to attending the 

immersion site for 4 days a week, then 1 day each week at the local school, but the 

idea of feeling overwhelmed with unfamiliar school work on the one school day was 

cause for concern. 

 Secondary learners traveling across the county to Eifionydd Secondary Language 

Centre noted that opening immersion sites in Bangor and Tywyn was a good idea. 5 

voted in favor, and 2 indicated a neutral opinion. In the primary focus group this 

change was not one that was of great interest to the learners. 3 of them stated that 

opening new sites was a good idea, 1 remained neutral, while 3 disagreed. 

Page 136



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

6.7 
6.7.1 

 
 
 

6.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.7.3 

 
 

6.8 
6.8.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 Enthusiastic comments were received about the proposal for a week-long timetable 

where learners would spend 1 day each week at their local school from the primary 

learners - this would allow them to continue to make friends and learn the language 

at the same time. In the secondary there was general opposition to the proposal, and 

comments were received stating that it was important to learn the language properly 

before going back to the local school so that they could go straight in to learning the 

rest of the subjects. 

 Secondary learners thought that primary learners were immature and having siblings 

on the same site would be problematic, and having young learners would make it 

difficult for teachers to prepare for everyone. The 7 members of the secondary focus 

group disagreed with the proposal to amalgamate primary and secondary learners. 

In the primary focus group 5 agreed, 2 remained neutral and 1 disagreed with the 

proposal. 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
An equality impact assessment was carried out on the options consulted upon. The 
assessment gives specific attention to various equality elements such as race, gender, 
disability, language, religion or belief and age. See the full report in Appendix 3. 
 
The assessment notes that the proposed options are unlikely to have any negative impact 
onequality characteristics. One of the principles forming the basis for the options for 
restructuringthe service to address the budget shortfall was that the restructuring would not 
affect the availability of the provision for children, i.e. the same number of children would 
access the service. This would ensure the same equal opportunities for children in terms of 
accessing the service. 
 
The Council will follow the usual procedures by supporting and monitoring, in order to 
ensure the compliance of every Language Centre with the equality characteristics. 
 
WELL-BEING ASSESSMENT 
As part of the considerations for activities and projects, the Education Department has a role 
to promote the well-being objectives of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 amongst the county's pupils. Full consideration was given to any impact deriving from 
the proposed options against the seven well-being objectives of the Act, along with the 
Council's well-being objectives, including holding an impact assessment. It was concluded 
that the proposed options enabled the centres to continue to contribute effectively towards 
achieving the objectives of the act. The plan was developed to address the five ways of 
working. 
 
VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 
 
The Monitoring Officer: 
 
“The report highlights the significant work that has gone into this proposal as well as the 
range of engagement in relation to the new arrangements. The input of the Education and 
Economy Scrutiny Committee is also reported. It’s important that the Cabinet in coming to a 
decision gives consideration to this feedback and the results assessment undertaken.”  
 
The Head of Finance: 
 
“I note in part 3.11.1 – 3.12.3 of the report that the Education Department intends to ask 
Gwynedd’s schools to contribute the additional costs of the scheme (estimated to be 
£162,000), and will consult with the Schools Budgeting Forum and school governing bodies 

Page 137



 

 

 
 
 

on this principle.  If the Immersion Education System is a priority for the schools, I assume 
that they will support the request and will agree to contribute to the scheme as 
appropriate.  If not, the Education Department will doubtless cut the coat according to the 
cloth.” 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
APPENDICIES 
 

 APPENDIX 1 - Immersion Education System towards 2032 and beyond 

 APPENDIX 2 - Summary Report: Gwynedd Language Centres’ Pilot Scheme 

 APPENDIX 3 - Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 138



 

 

Immersion Education System  

towards 2032 and beyond  

Page 139



 

 

1 

Foreword 

Cemlyn Rees Williams  

Cabinet Member for Education 
. 
"My vision is to have a Welsh-medium and bilingual education system that puts the 

needs of all our learners at the heart of our provision. 

 

I would like to see a flexible immersion education system, which provides first class 

education and training, supporting new learners to successfully acquire the Welsh  

Language, as well as ensuring high quality provision, experiences and support through 

the medium of Welsh that responds to the needs of the learners and their families, 

and will enable them to develop as independent and confident bilingual learners and 

to succeed and thrive." 

CYMRAEG 2050 

"Welsh medium immersion education is our main method of ensuring 
that children are able to develop their Welsh language skills, and of  
creating new Welsh-speakers." 
 
Welsh Government's aim is... to create a statutory education system 
which increases the number of confident Welsh-speakers. 

 
Welsh Government: Cymraeg 2050 

Page 140



 

 

  

The purpose of the immersion education  

system towards 2032 and beyond is to:  

 Promote the achievement and welfare of Gwynedd newcomers to acquire the Welsh 

language. 

 Support learners who need an additional boost to increase their Welsh language  

confidence/skills at school. 

 Empower and support Gwynedd's schools workforce to implement immersion  

education principles in the Foundation Phase. 

 Provide guidance, support and resources to the Gwynedd schools workforce to enable 

them to support learners to make further progress in terms of their Welsh language 

confidence/skills. 

 Assist parents and carers to understand the value of Welsh-medium education and  

assist them to support their children.  

2 

Page 141



 

 

3 

Our vision is to have an immersion education system that 

places the needs of learners at the centre of our  

provision. 

We would like to see a flexible system, which provides 

first class immersion education for the learners, nurturing 

their Welsh language skills to enable them to succeed 

and thrive in our schools, becoming confident bilingual 

speakers. 

The vision for learners who are new learners of the 

Welsh language is: 

Access to an excellent immersion education system that 

provides flexible and sustainable learning experiences of a 

high standard that equips them as independent learners who 

have the information and Welsh language skills to enable them 

to move forward. 

To provide an effective transition from immersion education 

to the local school, ensuring a high standard of experiences 

and support through the medium of Welsh, that responds to 

the needs of learners and their families to enable them to 

succeed and thrive. 

The Vision 

Our Aim 
Page 142



 

 

4 
Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 

Our Aim 
Page 143



 

 

5 

These are the aims which will provide the foundation for the immersion education  

system towards 2032 and beyond:  

3. CURRICULUM: 

1. An innovative immersion education system, based on expertise and enriching the teaching 

and learning experience as well as encouraging excellence in the field. 

2. The outcomes for all learners lay a solid foundation in Welsh, developing a lifelong interest 

in the languages of Wales and languages of the World, thus making them ambitious, capable 

learners, ready to learn in Gwynedd's bilingual education system and throughout their lives. 

3. A modern immersion education system that celebrates identity, language awareness and  

heritage, developing learners who are principled, knowledgeable citizens ready to be citizens 

of Wales and the world. 

1. TEACHING AND LEARNING 

2. LEARNING ENVIRONMENT 

1. A state-of-the-art learning environment, with modern facilities for 21st century learners 

and educators. 

2. An inclusive learning environment that responds to diverse needs including vulnerable 

learners and learners with Additional Learning Needs. 

3. A learning environment that takes advantage of the latest technology and provides  

learners with a variety of experiences and skills in language acquisition. 

1. A robust and durable immersion education system that can adapt to any relevant changes 

in education. 

2. A fit for purpose contemporary immersion education provision for 2032 and beyond that 

reflects the requirements of the learners and the curriculum. 

3. An immersion education system that works in partnership with schools to support and 

deliver the curriculum. 

Page 144



 

 

6 

Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 

1. An immersion education system that offers excellent pastoral provision putting the needs 

of the learner at the centre. 

2. An immersion education system that ensures access to high quality help and support  

designed around the learner. 

3. An immersion education system that works in partnership with the schools to ensure  

appropriate help and support for the learner, parents and guardians in the context of the 

Welsh language. 

4. SUPPORT FOR LEARNERS 

5. FINANCIAL RESOURCES 

1. An immersion education system that makes efficient use of financial resources, ensuring 

equality of opportunity for all learners. 

2. A viable immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond based on resilient learning 

groups, a budget and a robust business plan. 

3. A system that has taken the opportunity to attract an investment of £1.1m to improve  

immersion education provision through the Welsh Medium Education Capital Grant. 

Page 145



 

 

 Achieving the Aim,  Vision and Objectives 

 

We will invest £1.1m of Welsh Government Welsh-medium education capital grant into our immersion 

education system in Gwynedd to ensure a state-of-the-art learning environment, with modern facilities 

for 21st century learners and educators. 

This capital investment will facilitate the establishment of two completely new immersion education sites 

in Gwynedd, located in strategic areas of the county and areas of linguistic significance, namely Tywyn and 

Bangor. It is also intended to improve the facilities in the Eifionydd immersion education site which again 

is strategically located in the centre of the county. These three immersion education sites will offer  

primary and secondary provision jointly, bridging years 5-9. 

It is also intended to relocate the Dolgellau Language Centre to a larger site in order to offer the  

provision to more children, and the Dolgellau site, together with Llangybi and Maesincla, will provide  

immersion education to years 2-4 of primary schools. 

As a result of the capital investment, six sites will offer provision to primary age learners and three sites 

will offer provision for secondary learners, with flexibility between the sites as needed. 

Consequently, in the new system, it will be possible to offer the provision to more learners. 

 

As a result of the above, the new immersion education  

system in Gwynedd will have six sites, as follows: 

7 

 

Primary and Secondary provision 

Primary provision only 

Immersion 

Education 

System  

Eifionydd 

Site 

Tywyn 

Site 

Bangor 

Site 

Maesincla 

Site 

Llangybi 

Site 

Dolgellau 

Site 

Page 146



 

 

Catchments served  

The following table notes which catchment areas the Gwynedd Immersion Education System sites will 

serve generally. 

 

There will be flexibility between all the sites in terms of accepting learners from different catchment areas 

depending on numbers, particularly those catchment areas which border several sites e.g. Ardudwy and 

Dyffryn Nantlle. 

8 
Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 

Catchments 

areas 

Bangor 

Bl 5-9 

Eifionydd 

Bl 5-9 

Tywyn 

Bl 5-9 

Maesincla 

Bl 2-4 

Llangybi 

Bl 2-4 

Dolgellau 

Bl 2-4 

Dyffryn Ogwen             

Bangor             

Brynrefail             

Syr Hugh Owen             

Dyffryn Nantlle             

Botwnnog             

Glan y Môr             

Eifionydd             

Y Moelwyn             

Ardudwy             

Bro Idris             

Y Berwyn             

Tywyn             

Page 147



 

 

9 

The Provision 

 

The primary and secondary immersion education provision will be a 4 day-a-week provision, for a period 

of 8-10 weeks. This will be a means of ensuring that the immersion provision can be maintained in full for 

the three school terms. 

 

Learners will attend their local school for one day every week, which will be a way for the learners to 

continue contact with their local schools, ensuring continuation of their immersion education in Welsh 

there, as well as having full access to the curriculum. 

For one day a week, when the learners attend their local school, the staff of the immersion education  

system will be available to support the learners in the schools, assist in the other immersion education 

sites, provide support for the learners from a distance, give guidance to the schools to support the  

learners, as well as create and provide resources in response to the need of the Welsh-medium education 

field and immersion education more generally. 

 

For the remaining period in every term where the learners will return to their local schools, the  

immersion education system staff will implement a full programme of blended learning, namely face-to-
face teaching at school, live learning sessions via Teams, as well as distance learning via Google  

Classrooms to ensure additional support for the learners to assist them to make further progress to  

acquire the Welsh language at school. 

 

It will be possible to provide blended learning at any time to learners who still need additional support as 

they return to their local school after spending 8-10 weeks in the immersion education provision. 

 

Modelling the provision  

Learners attend their local school for 1 

day a week for a period of 8-10 weeks 

before returning to their local school full 

time. 

Learners attend the nearby  

Immersion Education provision for 4 

days a week for a period of 8-10 

weeks.  

+ 

Page 148



 

 

Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 
10 

Staffing Structure  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Service 

Deputy 

Teacher 

Assistant 

Page 149



 

 

11 

Funding 
 

The Immersion Education System towards 2032 and beyond will be funded from three different sources, 

namely:  

 EIG Grant 

 This is the core grant to fund the Immersion Education System, however, as a result of inflation and 

 an increase in costs, this grant alone is not sufficient to fund the provision in full. 

 

 Schools 

The immersion education system is a specialist service and pivotal to the implementation of the 

Gwynedd education language policy. 

 Consequently, it is intended to ask for a financial contribution from the schools which will be a 

 means of ensuring a fit-for-purpose immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond. 

 
 Education Department  

 The Education Department is already contributing towards the costs of the provision, and this  

 contribution will continue, by: 

 - provide match funding to the EIG grant 

 - Contribute towards the transport costs for the immersion provision. 

 

11 

Page 150



 

 

Measure of Success: 

We will measure the immersion education system's success specifically by means of the following measure: 

Number / % of new learners reaching Level 2 (speech) at the end of their intense immersion  

period. 
 
We will also measure the success of the immersion education system from the contribution of the system to 

the following outcomes in the Authority's Welsh in Education Strategic Plan: 

 More reception class / 5 year old children educated through the medium of Welsh. (WESP: Outcome 2) 

 

 More pupils continuing to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring from one stage of their  

statutory education to another. (WESP: Outcome 3) 

 

 More learners studying for Welsh (as a subject) qualifications and subjects through the medium of 

Welsh. (WESP: Outcome 4) 

   

More opportunities for learners to use the Welsh language in different contexts in the school. (WESP:  

Outcome 5) 
 

 Increase in the Welsh-medium education provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) 

(WESP: Outcome 6) 

Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 
12 

Page 151



 

 

The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is a statutory document under section 84 of the Schools 

Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the content complies with the Welsh in Education 

Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019. 

   

These WESP outlines the way in which Local Authorities intend to achieve the Welsh Government aims 

and targets in the context of Welsh-medium education. 

 

In Gwynedd, the WESP is interpreted in the context of the County's Education Language Policy. 

The aim of the Language Policy is to ensure that all of the County’s pupils have well-balanced, age-related 

bilingual skills to enable them to be full members of the bilingual society of which they are part. 

Age-relevant bilingualism means that pupils have the appropriate language skills in both Welsh and English. 

  

The purpose of the Immersion Education System is to promote the achievement of new learners to  

acquire the Welsh language through intense immersion provision, together with providing support for 

learners who need an additional boost to increase their Welsh language confidence or skills at school. 
This Immersion Education System provision is central to assisting primary and secondary schools to  

implement the current Language Policy, and also contributes to the success of our learners in the  

Welsh-medium and bilingual education system found in Gwynedd. 

 

The Council's Departments, schools and wider partners are committed to accomplishing all the aims and objectives 

of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan and consequently to supporting Welsh Government's strategy to 

reach the goal of a million Welsh-speakers by 2050, ensuring that there are opportunities at every stage of an 

individual's life to learn Welsh and to learn through the medium of Welsh. 

 

It is a very exciting time for the Welsh language, and I would like to ensure high quality provision, experiences and 
support through the medium of Welsh that responds to the needs of the learners and their families, and will  

enable them to develop as independent and confident bilingual learners and to  

succeed and thrive. 

 

Similarly, I would like to ensure that the entire workforce of our schools are confident bilingual speakers, who  

receive support to nurture their confidence and skills in the Welsh language, and able to transfer those skills  

effectively to teach and learn through the medium of Welsh and bilingually in the classroom." 
  

  

Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams, 

 

Cabinet Member for Education. 
 

  

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP):  

13 

"I am pleased to publish the Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan for 

2022-2032. 

The Plan reflects my vision of having a Welsh-medium and bilingual education system 

that puts the needs of all our learners at the heart of our provision. 

The Plan sets a clear commitment and direction for ensuring that learners in Gwynedd 

attain the highest standards in order to maintain the language, culture and economy 

locally. 

Page 152



 

 

Supporting Welsh Education in Gwynedd 
Page 153



 

 

SUMMARY REPORT:   

Gwynedd Language Centres' Pilot Scheme.  

Supporting Welsh Language Education in Gwynedd 

Page 154



 

 

1 

 

Background 

On 2 April 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet resolved to implement a pilot scheme at 

one Language Centre of a teacher and assistant staffing structure, in order to identify 

whether it affected the quality of the education and the children's attainment.   

 

The brief of the research 

A brief for the research was compiled and was presented to the Education and Economy 

Scrutiny Committee on 10 October 2019 for comment. 

  

The brief denoted the following requirements, with every Language Centre a part of 

the research that would form the basis to measuring the impact of the pilot scheme at  

Maesincla Language Centre.   

 

1.1.  a) The Daily Structure of the Language Centres  

The research team will be required to consider the day-to-day arrangements for 

teaching and learning at every Language Centre, namely at which times during the 

working day does every Centre hold:  

 one learning group with two teachers (maximum ratio of 2:16)  

 one learning group with a teacher and assistant (maximum 2:16)  

 one learning group with one teacher (maximum ratio of 1:16)  

 one learning group with an assistant (maximum ratio of 1:16)  

 two learning groups (maximum ratio of 1:8)  

 other 

 

1.2 The numbers of pupils attending Language Centres can vary up to a maximum of 16 

pupils.  This means that the numbers of pupils in the learning groups at every Centre 

can vary, based on the total number of children, and the research team is asked to give 

due consideration to this as part of the research.  

 

1.3 b) Background Information 

 As well as the general information gathered about every pupil, the research team will 

also consider additional background information about the children and their families 

who have moved to Gwynedd, along with their connection or previous or current ex-

periences with the Welsh language before attending the Language Centre. This infor-

mation will include:  

  When did they move to Gwynedd?   

   Have they lived in Gwynedd previously?  

   Main reasons for moving to Gwynedd?  

   Can any members of the family or the extended family speak Welsh?  

   Do they attend Welsh-medium community activities?  

   Do they believe that it is advantageous for them to learn Welsh?  

   Does the child have experience of the Welsh language before moving to  

 Gwynedd?   

Page 155



 

 

Supporting Welsh Language Education in Gwynedd 

2 

  Does the child have a connection with anyone outside school who is  able to 

 speak Welsh?  

   What does the child hope to achieve from learning the Welsh language?  

 

1.4 This information will be a way of establishing a baseline of the children's 

 backgrounds, ages, school year, their attitudes as well as their previous connection 

 with the Welsh language, which will provide a basis for the research across the 

 Language Centres.  

 

1.5    c) Visits to the Language Centres  

The research team will attend the Language Centres in order to consider, see and 

measure the linguistic progress made by the children during their period at a Centre. 

The Research team will attend the Language Centres at three specific periods during 

the course in order to measure the children's linguistic progress.  

This will be approximately:  

     Primary: Weeks 4, 8 and 12  

    Secondary: Weeks 3, 6, 8 

 

1.6  The Language Centres will draw up criteria based on the course's content regarding 

 the progress and language patterns that the children should have mastered by those  

 agreed key stages during the course.  

1.7 The research team will be required to reach a judgement as to whether or not the 

 children have achieved the expected progress, in discussion with teachers and  

 assistants at the Language Centres, in order to ensure a full context to the judgement.  

1.8   In accordance with the Language Centres' Business Plan, the research team will  

       measure to what extent the Language Centres achieve their purpose by means of the     

       following measure:   

Number / % of children reaching Level 2 at the end of their period at a 

Language Centre and for this to be considered in parallel with:  

 · The daily structure of the Language Centres  

 · Background information and children's profile  

 · Visits to the Language Centres  

Page 156



 

 

3 

2. The Research Team 

2.1.  The members of the research team were appointed based on their experience and  

      expertise in immersion and second language education. The members of the research     

      team were: Dr Diane Jones, Education Officer, Sian Eirug, Secondary Sector Language     

      Strategy Coordinator, and Nia Williams, former Headteacher at Ysgol Morfa Nefyn. ~ 

      Professional and informal input was also provided by Dr Enlli Thomas, School of  

      Education, Bangor University. 

Dr Diane Jones 
Education Officer 

Diane has been an Education Officer with Gwynedd Authority for five years. As a member 

of the Education Department's Management Team, she contributes to, and leads on  

education improvement plans, school estate capital plans and education developments, 

jointly leads on interventions and development plans, and offers guidance and support to 

school leaders in a variety of fields. Her background is in the field of community and  

cultural development, and teaching Welsh to learners of varying proficiency in the  

Secondary and Higher Education Sectors. She gained a doctorate in Welsh Language and 

Literature for her research into drama in Wales. 

Sian Eirug 
Secondary Sector Language Strategy Coordinator  

Prior to taking up her current role as Secondary Sector Language Strategy Co-ordinator 

within the Authority, Sian Eirug was Head of the Welsh Department at a Secondary School 

in Ceredigion, and then Director of the PGCE Course at Aberystwyth University for over 

ten years with responsibility for Welsh as a subject. She taught Welsh as a second language 

to trainee teachers, and contributed regularly to the provision of the Welsh Medium  

Improvement Plan, specialising in bilingual teaching.  

 

She has also contributed on a Masters in Educational Practice course at Cardiff University, 

and was a Peer Inspector with Estyn. She has extensive experience of working as a moder-

ator for WJEC.  

Page 157



 

 

4 

3. The Research 

3.1.   The research into the Language Centres was conducted between October 2019 and 

 March 2020.  However, the unprecedented conditions of the Covid-19 pandemic  

 affected the time-scale originally planned for the completion of the work.   

3.2.  Below is a summary by the research team of their findings, based on their visits to  

 each Language Centre during the Autumn Term 2019 and part of the Spring Term 

 2020. 

 

4. The Findings of the Research 

4.1.  Good practices: 

 It was a pleasant experience for the Research Team to witness the fact that the pupils  

 present at the Centres during our visits enjoyed being there. The collaboration  

 between members of staff at individual Centres to ensure positive experiences for the 

 pupils attending is to be commended, and it was pleasing to testify to the appreciation 

 of the Headteachers of the schools for the work being undertaken there to equip the 

 pupils with Welsh language skills. It is clear that the pupils attending are making  

 progress in their ability to speak and use the Welsh language - there is no doubt about 

 that.  However, the variation that exists within that progress is something that needs 

 further consideration.    

Nia Williams 
Former Headteacher at Ysgol Morfa Nefyn  

Nia was Headteacher at Ysgol Morfa Nefyn for 10 years, before retiring in 2018. Under her 

leadership, the school was awarded the Excellence standard by Estyn on two occasions.  

To conclude a successful career in education, Nia received a 'Finalist' award at the 2017  

Professional Teaching Awards Cymru for her contribution to developing Welsh to a High 

Standard. 

  

As part of her role as Headteacher, she diligently created teaching resources, led and ran 

courses on raising standards in Welsh, especially in oral work, across Wales for various  

organisations such as schools, WJEC and numerous conferences.   

Nia has recently been a Foundation Phase Oracy Coach as part of the Welsh Government's 

'Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers' project.  

Supporting Welsh Language Education in Gwynedd Page 158



 

 

4.2.  Service Structure:  

There are four Primary Language Centres and one Secondary Centre. Although there 

has been evidence of some recent collaboration across the Centres, they operate as 

individual centres. As a result, it is felt that there is inconsistency in the provision  

provided to the county's pupils, and there were examples of the duplication of  

functions, which could be more tightly controlled.  It is believed that this would have a 

positive influence on the effectiveness and efficiency of the provision.   

It was felt that the Centre's staff were not adequately supported on teaching and 

learning issues, e.g. access to the support of Education Officers, teachers in  

Professional Learning Communities and GwE Officers. 

 

4.3.  Admission Procedure:  

The length of time spent in the Centres by the pupils attending them varied. Pupils  

attended the Primary Centres for twelve weeks, and the Secondary Centre for eight  

weeks. The procedure for admitting pupils to the Primary Centres was unclear, and it 

was seen that the procedure reported at the individual Centres varied greatly.  Some 

were there because they were pure latecomers, others were there to get a little 

boost with their reading and writing skills, but were completely fluent in their spoken 

language. Others at another Centre had already attended the Centre during the 

previous academic year, but had returned to school at that time and had received the 

opportunity to come back. One Centre noted that some children went there as they 

were "generally weak" academically. There was no specific procedure for setting a  

baseline for individual learners against which progress could be measured. There was 

no consistent process across the Primary Centres of checking schools' applications 

for learners to attend. It was felt when speaking to the staff of the schools sending 

pupils to the Centres that there was an obvious lack of understanding of the referral 

procedure and in deciding who was eligible to attend or not. Due to the lack of clarity 

in the procedure for admitting pupils to the Centre, it is difficult to reach a firm  

judgement when measuring pupils' progress.   

 

 Due to the variation in the conditions of pupil admission to the Centres, this 

 highlights the need for a more differentiated provision, which appropriately challenges 

 the linguistic and educational ability of the attendees.  

5 

Page 159



 

 

Cefnogi Addysg Gymraeg yng Ngwynedd 
6 

4.4. Staffing Structure:  

There was no clear logic or consistency to the staffing structure of the Language 

Centres. There is no other example within the County's schools of classes being led 

by two teachers, but rather, a teacher and an assistant. In two of the Primary Centres, 

there was a leader and a teacher. At another Centre, one teacher and an assistant (i.e. 

the pilot scheme), and in the other, a leader and an assistant. In the Secondary Centre, 

there was a leader and a teacher. Very good practices of effective collaboration were 

observed in all centres, and no pupil was felt to be at a disadvantage as a result of the 

varied staffing structure of the Language Centres. Some excellent examples of  

collaboration between teacher and assistant were witnessed at one primary centre. 

There were no significant differences observed in the use of assistants and/or  

teachers across the Centres, with some examples of teachers and assistants taking 

learning groups at times, or supporting the learning led by another teacher or leader. 

The teachers' method of grouping and teaching pupils during the day was unclear. 

There were numerous examples in two teacher Centres or in leader and teacher 

Centres, of one member of staff taking all the groups for extended periods during the 

day. It was felt that opportunities were being missed to differentiate on the basis of 

linguistic ability in order to offer further support or challenge as appropriate.   

Page 160



 

 

7 

4.5.  Structure of teaching and quality of learning: 

Although Cynllun y Llan was a structured scheme for the Primary Centres, there was  

significant variation in the way it was used and presented from one site to another. 

There was variation in what was presented orally - some examples of mutations being 

delivered naturally and an example of them not being presented at all in another 

centre. The general feeling, from talking to the Centres' staff, and from observing the 

learning, was that the Scheme had become dated, and it was felt that basing the entire 

teaching programme on an imaginary village as in the Scheme, was irrelevant to the 

experience cycle of those pupils who attended the Language Centres. Certainly,  

effective immersion techniques were practised at times, but it is felt that there is  

undoubtedly a real need to update the context in which the language is presented.  

  

 A similar scheme, namely the Cefyn Cŵl scheme, exists in the Secondary Centre, but 

some subject provision is also tailored there, to give learners who attend elements of 

the Cwricwlwm Cymreig, where themes such as the Welsh Not, the history of the 

Celtic nations, the history of the language, etc. are addressed. It was felt that this was 

good practice that should be emulated at the Primary Centres. However, with the 

Secondary pupils in particular, does their development in their core subjects suffer 

perhaps as a result of missing out on an extended period of mainstream education 

input in their schools?  

  

The aim of the Language Centres is to ensure that the pupils who attend them reach 

Level 2 (Oracy) at the end of their time there in order to cope with the bilingual 

provision provided back in their schools. Good practice was witnessed within the 

context of the Pilot Scheme, but as there is no consistent system used as evidence to 

set a baseline and measure progress, it is difficult to judge whether this is being 

achieved with each pupil. In addition, as the provision does not sufficiently differentiate 

between the needs of individual pupils, it is not possible to know for sure how many 

of those pupils who were pure latecomers achieved Level 2 (Oracy) descriptors in 

Welsh. The reliability of this data is therefore questioned. However, it can be noted 

with certainty that all learners make progress and succeed in acquiring some Welsh, 

but that there is a noticeable variation in that progress for individual pupils in each 

Centre.   

 

 4.6.  After-care:  

It was not felt that there was an entirely clear picture of after-care provision as it was 

not possible to visit during the third term due to the pandemic. A small number of 

learners that had attended the Centre during the Autumn Term was observed, and it 

could be seen that following the educational provision in the class proved challenging 

for some, as did the ability to mix naturally with their peers. Talking to the Centre's 

staff revealed a vague picture of the procedure for offering after-care following the  

Page 161



 

 

Cefnogi Addysg Gymraeg yng Ngwynedd 
8 

pupils' return to the schools. The Primary Language Centres (as a result of the Cabinet 

decision of 2 April 2019) had not yet implemented the new procedure of providing after

-care for learners in the third term directly themselves, however, up to 20 March 2020, 

there was no clear plan in place to respond to this new requirement. It is felt that the 

primary schools could benefit further from the expertise of Language Centre staff by 

sharing good practice and supporting wider groups of children who may benefit from 

the additional boost to their oral skills. This would further strengthen partnership 

working with the primary and secondary schools, and strengthen the sense of  

ownership in the journey of introducing the language to the pupils. Developing the  

current after-care to offer support and form potential Intervention Groups in primary 

schools would have a positive impact on pupils' achievements, and allow them to realise 

the relevance of the language to their wider educational development, instead of  

confining it to within the boundaries of the imaginary village of Llanfairgogoch (Cynllun y 

Llan).  

5. Fields that need further attention:  

It is recommended that the following be carefully considered in order to strengthen  

existing provision: 

1. A clear admission policy and procedure to be established and carefully monitored. 

2. The current structure of provision: are there alternative ways to offer the  

provision that will enable pupils to settle in their schools alongside attending the 

Language Centres? 

3. Reconcile the daily administration of the Centres, e.g. the INSET days of the 

schools in which the Centres are located, the arrangements and times of the taxis 

transporting the pupils. 

4. Reconcile the procedure for reporting on learners' progress.   

5. Share good practice across Centres and schools. 

6. Strengthen the relationship with the primary schools to enable further progress in 

terms of support for language development. 

7. Adopt a method of work planning that identifies clear and timely outcomes to fa-

cilitate the monitoring of progress.  

8. A clear after-care plan. 

9. Strengthen Quality Assurance approaches in aiming for excellence. 

10. Further consider the current termly scheduling structure to ensure comprehensive 

provision, which meets the needs of learners and provides value for money.  

Page 162



                     

 

 

 

 

 

See the How to do an Equality Impact Assessment sheet for assistance to complete this form. 

You are also welcome to contact Delyth Williams, Policy and Equality Officer on, ext 32708, 

or DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru for further help. 

 

 

1  Details  
 

1.1  What is the name of the Plan in question?  

 

Immersion Education System towards 2032 and beyond 

 

       

1.2  What it the purpose of the Plan that is being created or changed?  What 

changes are being considered?  

 

The Education Department has developed a new vision for immersion education provision in Gwynedd. 
 
Learners new to Gwynedd, who do not speak Welsh, will go through a process of language immersion, 
which is, to follow an intensive course of learning Welsh currently run by the Language Centres. The 
existing Language Centres are responsible for immersing learners in Welsh to enable them to acquire 
the language sufficiently to enable them to flourish in our bilingual education system thereafter. The 
immersion system for latecomers to Gwynedd takes place in one of 5 Language Centres located on the 
sites of some of our Primary and Secondary schools. The first primary Language Centre was opened in 
Caernarfon in September 1984, and there are now three other primary Language Centres in Dolgellau, 
Llangybi and Penrhyndeudraeth, as well as a Secondary Language Centre established in Porthmadog in 
2004. 
 
There is no doubt that the language centres have been successful over the last few decades in ensuring 
that learners succeed in acquiring the Welsh language and succeeding in integrating into Gwynedd's 
bilingual education system. 
 
However, the Education Department believes that there is a case for changing the current immersion 
provision in Gwynedd, building on the success of the language centres. 
 
As a result, the Cabinet Member for Education's vision for the Immersion Education System for 2032 
and beyond is:  
 
“My vision is to have a Welsh-medium and bilingual education system that puts the needs of all our 
learners at the heart of our provision.  
 
I would like to see a flexible immersion education system, which provides first class education and 
training, supporting new learners to successfully acquire the Welsh Language, as well as ensuring high 
quality provision, experiences and support through the medium of Welsh that responds to the needs of 
the learners and their families, and will enable them to develop as independent and confident bilingual 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 163

mailto:DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


learners and to succeed and thrive. ” 
 
Learners under the current system attend the primary centres for twelve weeks, and the secondary 
centre for eight weeks. According to a summary report on a recent pilot undertaken at one of the 
County's primary immersion centres, it was noted that the procedure for admitting pupils to the 
primary age centres was not clear, and it was found that the procedure reported in the individual 
centres varied quite a lot. Some were there because they were latecomers to Gwynedd, others were 
there to get a little boost with their reading and writing skills, but were completely fluent in their ability 
to speak the Welsh language. Others at another centre had already been at the centre the previous 
educational year, but had gone back to school at that time and had the opportunity to come back. The 
report details that some learners arrive at the centres because they are "generally weak" in their 
educational ability.  
 
The summary report highlights that there is a clear lack of understanding of the learner referral 
procedure and in deciding who is eligible to attend. Due to the lack of clarity in the procedure for 
admitting pupils to the centres, it is difficult at present to come to a firm judgment when measuring 
pupils’ progress against their ability at the beginning and end of their time at a language centre. 
 
The main cause for change and the need for a new vision for Gwynedd's immersion education system 
can be summarized into the following areas, and are expanded further below (Point 2.4): 
 

• Putting the needs of learners central 
 

• Modernising the provision 
 

• Working in partnership 
 

• An opportunity to create an excellent learning environment 
 

• New opportunities arising from Covid-19 
 

• Lessons learnt 
 

Therefore, by looking at the case for change, our vision for learners that are newcomers is that they 
receive: 
 
“Access to an excellent immersion education system that provides flexible and sustainable learning 
experiences of a high standard that equips them as independent learners who have the information and 
Welsh Language skills to enable them to move forward. 
 
To provide an effective transition from immersion education to the local school, ensuring a high 
standard of experiences and support through the medium of  Welsh, that responds to the needs of 
learners and their families to enable them to succeed and thrive.” 

 
          

1.3  Who is responsible for this assessment?  

 

Debbie A W Jones, Education Corporate Services Manager 

 

 

1.4  When did you begin the assessment?   What version is this?  

Page 164



 

May 2021 

     

2)  Implementation 

 
2.1  Who are the partners that you will have to work with to carry out this 

assessment?  

 

 Gwynedd Language Centre staff 

 Teacher Union and Assistants' representatives 

 Gwynedd Primary and Secondary Head teachers 

 Schools Budget Forum 

 Union Forum 

 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 

 Language Committee 

 Learners 
 

 

2.2.  What steps have you taken to engage with people with equality 

characters? 

 

The Education Department has undertaken a period of engagement with key stakeholders on 

the new vision for the immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond. 

 

As part of this engagement, a meeting was held to present the new vision to the Teachers and 

Teaching Assistants Unions along with a special meeting with the language centres staff on 27 

May 2021, with an opportunity for staff to consider the vision and comment by 21 June 2021. 

 

As part of the engagement also, the new vision was presented to the Education and Economy 

Scrutiny Committee on 10 June 2021, along with the Language Committee on 22 June 2021 in 

order to receive elected members' views on the vision, together with an opportunity to 

scrutinize on it. 

 

As part of the engagement, the new vision was presented to the head teachers of all Gwynedd 

secondary schools on 16 June 2021, together with all Gwynedd primary school head teachers 

on 17 June 2021 for their comments. 

 

As part of the engagement, 2 focus groups were held with current learners of the immersion 

education system in our language centres on 22 June 2021 to find out their views as service 

users on the new vision. 

 

As part of the engagement, the new vision was presented to the Schools Budget Forum for 

consultation on the new funding regime for the immersion education system towards 2032 

and beyond. 
 

2.3  What was the result of the engagement?  

 

Following a period of engagement on the new vision for Gwynedd's immersion education system 

Page 165



towards 2032 and beyond, the following comments were received as part of the engagement process: 
 
Gwynedd Language Centre staff comments 
A presentation on the new vision was presented to the staff of Gwynedd Language Centres on 27 May 
2021, with an opportunity to submit comments by 21 June 2021. 
 
In response to the new vision, staff made the following comments: 

 We welcome the capital investment of £ 1.1m to ensure a first class learning environment and 
an increase in the number of immersion education sites. 

 The intention of appointing a head and deputy for the service was welcomed, which would 
lead to a much more effective and efficient service, as well as ensuring consistency of service. It 
will also be a means of ensuring a close partnership between the provision and the schools, by 
being able to respond positively and efficiently to the needs of the schools. However, it was 
noted that staffing each site with a teacher and a teaching assistant would be a cause for 
concern. 

 Concerns were noted about reducing the length of the primary immersion course from 12 
weeks to 8-10 weeks, as well as reducing the number of days from 5 days to 4 days a week, in 
terms of its effect on learners' linguistic progress. 

 Concern was expressed about the challenge of ensuring appropriate support for learners when 
attending school for 1 day each week, although staff agreed with the purpose of this 1 day of 
enabling learners to maintain contact with their local school, their peers and ensuring their 
well-being. 

 Although blended learning offers many possibilities, blended learning brings with it many 
challenges in terms of the technology itself, a suitable and practical space within the schools, 
setting a timetable, as well as inconsistency between learners. Blended learning is not the 
same as the experience of face-to-face learning, especially when practising spoken language 
and gesture. 

 Concern was expressed about the age range of the merger of primary and secondary learners 
of years 5-9. 

 The need for more detail on some elements of the vision was also noted, and that it would be 
beneficial for staff to receive early clarity on some of these issues. 

 

Comments by Gwynedd’ Head Teachers of Primary and Secondary schools 
A presentation on the new vision was given to Gwynedd’s secondary head teachers on 16 June 2021, 
and to primary head teachers on 17 June 2021.  
 
In response to the new vision, the head teachers submitted the following comments:  

 Recognized the challenge of striking the right balance between ensuring intensive immersion 
to enable learners to acquire the Welsh language as quickly as possible, as well as enabling 
newcomers to settle and remain in their schools and create new peers.  

 It was noted that there is an opportunity for Language Co-ordinators and Heads of Welsh 
Departments in the secondary schools to contribute their expertise in developing the detail for 
realizing the vision for the immersion education system towards 2032 and beyond.  

 The proposal to amalgamate primary and secondary learners from years 5-9 of the immersion 
sites was welcomed. 

 The primary head teachers welcomed the vision and investment, and in particular the intention 
to establish new immersion education sites in Tywyn and Bangor.  

 The proposal to co-fund the new system was supported, but the primary sector emphasized 
that this should not happen at the expense of resources in schools.  
 

Education and Scrutiny committee and Language Committee comments.  

Page 166



A report was presented to the Education and Scrutiny Committee on the new vision for the immersion 
education system towards 2032 and beyond on 10 June 2021, as well as the Language Committee on 
22 June 2021.   
 
The report presenting the new vision was accepted by members of the Scrutiny Committee and the 
Language Committee together with a request for the Cabinet Member for Education to consider the 
comments made by the committee members during the discussions, namely:  
 

 Recognition of the Language Centres success over the years in ensuring that learners acquire 

the Welsh language.  

 Agreed with the intention to strengthen accountability as part of the new vision.  

 Supported the intention to equip the school workforce to support learners to make further 

progress in building confidence and acquiring the Welsh language.  

 The proposal to establish an immersion education provision in Bangor was supported. 

 The Education Department was asked to provide more detail on the immersion education 

system when available.  

 There was a variety of views on the funding source of the immersion education system, with 

some members supportive of the intention that schools would contribute, thus increasing 

accountability and joint ownership of the system between the Education Department and the 

schools, but others expressed the wish that the Council corporately should finance the funding 

gap due to the fact that the Welsh language is one of the Council’s main priorities. 

The meeting concluded with a unanimous vote in favour of the new vision by the Education and 
Economy Scrutiny Committee and Language Committee, with a request to provide more detail on the 
immersion education system when available.  
 
Comments by Learners 

2 focus groups were held with current language centre learners on 22 June 2021. Representation from 

years 5 and 6 of Cefn Coch language centre and a group of secondary language centre learners 

contributed brilliantly in a session that discussed a series of questions in response to a presentation on 

the new vision for the Immersion Education System towards 2032 and beyond. 

Learners answered a series of questions asking their views on the proposal to invest and open new 

immersion sites, the new weekly timetable, the idea of putting primary and secondary language 

learners together, and what role does technology play in helping learners aqcuire the Welsh language. 

All 15 learners made a valuable contribution to the conversation, and it is important to note that their 

language ability is a credit to the current language centres. 

Agree or disagree with the new vision  

 Of all learners (primary and secondary), 8 learners indicated that they agreed with the vision. 5 
of the secondary indicated a neutral view, with only 1 disagreeing with the new vision. 

 One learner noted in particular that there were good elements to attending the immersion site 
for 4 days a week, then 1 day each week at the local school, but the idea of feeling 

Page 167



overwhelmed with the local school’ work on the 1 day was a cause of concern.  

 Another learner noted that technology can help someone to better learn a language, but that 
investing in hard resources such as books and games was still a good idea. 

Things that can contribute to helping Learners learn Welsh 

 One learner in the primary focus group noted the importance of his parents learning Welsh at 

the same time, which would be of great help to him. 

 Learners in the primary focus group commented that the idea of spending 4 days in the 

immersion education site, and one day at school was a 'great' idea. It would mean being able to 

continue learning Welsh and continue making friends at their local school. 

 One girl in the primary focus group noted her desire to see the length of a day at the 

immersion site extended. 

 Learners' comments at the secondary language centre focused slightly on the experiences 

during COVID and the lockdown periods. We received comments about poor WIFI connection, 

and unsuitable rooms being given to learners at their local schools when trying to join lessons 

on TEAMS. 

 However, we received comments about how good technological resources like Google 

Classroom are for homework and supporting language learning. 

 Technology allows learners who do not speak English to be able to communicate and be 

involved in lessons through apps like Google translate etc. 

 10 learners voted that including resources and technology as part of language learning is a 

good idea. 2 disagreed stating that they preferred hard resources, singing and acting 

techniques. 

Learners' views on opening new immersion sites in Bangor and Tywyn 

 Secondary learners traveling across the county to Eifionydd’ secondary language centre noted 

that opening new sites in Bangor and Tywyn was a good idea. 5 voted in favour, and 2 

indicated a neutral opinion. 

 A number of comments noted that opening new sites offers opportunities to reduce time spent 

travelling in taxis. A comment was also made stating that establishing new sites makes no 

difference to someone in Nefyn or Aberdaron who still have to travel a long distance. 

 In the primary focus group, this change was not one that was of great interest to the learners. 

3 of them stated that opening new immersion sites at the new locations was a good idea, 1 

remained neutral, while 3 disagreed. 

Offer a new weekly timetable to immersion education in Gwynedd 

 Enthusiastic comments were received on the proposal for a week-long timetable where 

Page 168



learners spend 1 day each week at their local school from the primary learners. 

 This would allow them to continue to make friends and learn the language at the same time. 

 However, one learner gave a very insightful comment: “We’re here for 8-9 weeks, if we go back 

1 day a week, that’s 8 or 9 days we’d lose learning Welsh”. 

 5 agreed with the new timetable, but 3 stated that they disagreed with the proposal. 

 In the secondary age group, there was general opposition to the proposal. This was reflected in 

their preference for stability after lockdown and the continual effects of COVID on the learners. 

Comments were made stating that it is important to learn the language properly before going 

back to the local school to continue with the rest of their studies and subjects. 

 Everyone understood that the new timetable was intended to give learners the opportunity to 

settle and make new friends, but a stable routine was more important to the secondary 

learners. 

Learners' views on sites that would include primary and secondary learners together 

 Secondary learners thought that primary learners were immature and having siblings on the 

same site would be problematic. 

 Having young learners would make it difficult for teachers to prepare for everyone. 

 The 7 members of the secondary focus group disagreed with the proposal. 

 In the primary focus group, 5 agreed with the proposal, 2 remained neutral and 1 disagreed. 

 The learners from the Tywyn and Bangor areas would not have to travel as far to Eifionydd’ 

secondary immersion site. 

 Siblings would be able to stay together if they preferred, although they could be separated 

during lesson time. 

 

 

 

2.4  What other information informed the way you operate?  

 

 

The main cause for change and the need for a new vision for Gwynedd's immersion education 
system can be summarized into the following areas, which are expanded further below: 

 Putting the needs of the learner at the centre 

 Updating and modernise the provision 

 Working in partnership 

 Opportunity to create a first class learning environment 

 New opportunities arising from COVID-19 

 Lessons learned from the Pilot Scheme implemented at the request of Cabinet. 
 

Page 169



Place the learner's needs at the centre 

 The need for the system to promote the achievement and welfare of Gwynedd newcomers to 
acquire the Welsh language while keeping in contact with their local school and peers at the 
same time. 

 The need for the system to be able to assist parents and carers to understand the value of 
Welsh-medium education to support their children. 

 
Modernise the provision and make it contemporary 

 The need for the system to respond to the needs of the learners and the curriculum.  

 The need to invest in the current infrastructure, which includes digital resources. 
 
Working in partnership 

 The need for the Education Department and schools to work in partnership and take joint 
ownership of the immersion education system.  

 The need for the immersion education system to provide guidance, support and resources to 
schools to enable them to support learners to make further progress in terms of their Welsh 
language confidence/skills. 

 
An opportunity to create a first-class learning environment 

 An opportunity to invest £1.1million of Welsh Government Welsh-medium education capital 
grant into the immersion education system, improving the learning environment and 
infrastructure. 

 
New opportunities as a result of COVID-19  

 Blended learning provision i.e. the Language Centres provided blended learning as a result of 
the numerous lockdowns, namely face-to-face teaching at school, live learning sessions via 
Teams, together with work on Google Classrooms. This was recognised as excellent practice by 
Estyn. 

 The schools are asking for immersion education expertise and resources to support the Welsh 
language to be disseminated across the system. 

 
Lessons learnt as a result of the Pilot Scheme 

 The pilot highlighted the need to consider the wellbeing of learners, and maintain contact with 
their peers; many find it difficult to fit back into their local school after a period at a centre. 

 The need to strengthen the relationship with schools to enable further increases in support for 
language development. 

 
The objectives underpinning the vision are detailed in Appendix 1, namely: 

 Teaching and Learning 

 Learning Environment 

 Curriculum 

 Support for Learners 

 Financial Resources 
 
In order to achieve the vision, purpose, aim and objectives, we hope to invest £ 1.1m of the Welsh 
Government's Welsh-medium education capital grant into our immersion education system in 
Gwynedd, to ensure a first-class learning environment, and state-of-the-art facilities for 21st century 
learners and educators. 
 
This capital investment will be a means of establishing 2 completely new immersion education sites in 
Gwynedd located in strategic areas of the county and areas of linguistic significance, namely Tywyn and 

Page 170



Bangor. It is also intended to improve the facilities at the Eifionydd immersion education site, which is 
again strategically located right in the middle of the county. These 3 immersion education sites will 
offer joint primary and secondary provision bridging years 5-9. 
 
We also intend to relocate the Dolgellau Language Centre to a larger site in order to offer the provision 
to more children, and the Dolgellau site along with Llangybi and Maesincla will provide immersion 
education for years 2-4 of the primary schools. 
 
In the new system, an immersion site will not continue on the Ysgol Cefn Coch site, however, new 
entrants in that area will be allocated to immersion education system sites in Tywyn, Dolgellau, 
Eifionydd or Llangybi, based on the site closest to the learners. 
 
As a result of the investment, 6 sites will offer provision for primary age learners and 3 sites will offer 
secondary aged learners with flexibility between sites according to demand. 

 
 

 
Detail the vision for the new immersion provision 
In the new system, the primary and secondary on-site immersion education provision would be 4 days 
a week, for a period of 8-10 weeks. This would ensure that the immersion provision can be fully 
maintained for the 3 school terms. 
 
Learners would attend their local school for 1 day each week, which would allow learners to continue 
contact with their local school, ensuring continuity of their Welsh immersion education there, and full 
access to the curriculum. 
 
For 1 day a week, when learners attend their local school, immersion education staff would be 
available to assist the learners in the schools. They would also be able to assist at the other immersion 
education sites, provide remote support to provide guidance to schools to support learners, as well as 
creating and providing resources in response to need in Welsh medium education and immersion 
education more generally. 
 
For the remaining period of each term where we see learners returned to their local schools, 

Primary site only 

Primary and secondary site 

Page 171



immersion education staff will implement a full program of blended learning, namely face to face 
teaching in school, live learning sessions through Teams; as well as distance learning through Google 
Classrooms to secure additional support for learners to help them make further progress in acquiring 
Welsh in school. 
 
 

 

2.5  Are there any gaps in our evidence that need to be gathered?  

 

We have held discussions and engaged on the new vision for the immersion education system 
towards 2032 and beyond. 
 
If Cabinet supports the new vision, the Education Department will undertake further work on 
the details of implementing the vision from September 2022 onwards. 
 

3)  Identifying the Impact  
 

3.1      What impact will the new Plan have on people with equality 

characteristics?  The Council must give due regard to the impact any 

changes will have on people with equality characteristics. 

 

 

Characteristics What type 

of impact? 

(delete those 

irrelevant) 

In what way? What is the evidence? 

 

Race (including 

nationality) 

Positive The new vision states that the new provision will 

increase the number of immersion sites available to 

learners, with more learners having access to immersion 

education closer to their local school than the existing 

provision. It is therefore anticipated that the outcome 

will be better and therefore no negative impact on non-

Welsh speaking latecomers from the rest of the UK    or 

other countries. 

The Welsh 

language 

 

Positive There is no change to the purpose and essence of the 

existing language centres as a result of the new vision for 

the immersion education system towards 2032 and 

beyond. 

The vision is an attempt to build on the solid foundations 

already in place. 

 

It is intended to increase the number of sites that will 

provide immersion education, which will be a means of 

ensuring that learners can attend the immersion 

provision that is closer to their home and local school. 

 

The new provision offers a new weekly timetable, which 

will mean that learners will attend the nearest immersion 

education site 4 days a week, spending 1 day at their 

Page 172



local school. 

This is an effort to ensure a better relationship between 

the immersion provision and the schools by co-owning 

the education and language acquisition of those learners 

who are new to Gwynedd. 

Disability  

 

Positive One of the principles of the new vision is to ensure that 

it does not impact on the availability of new entrant to 

the provision (i.e. that the same number or more 

learners access the service). It is therefore anticipated 

that the outcome for new entrants will be the same, 

whether or not they have a disability. 

 

A positive element of the new vision is the establishment 

of two new sites in Bangor and Tywyn, which will offer 

primary and secondary immersion education. In addition, 

the existing secondary language centre that is located in 

a cabin on the Ysgol Eifionydd site will move to a new 

facility on the Ysgol Eifionydd site. 

 

We plan to spend £ 1.1million of capital funding from the 

Welsh Government, which will enable us to upgrade and 

invest in our infrastructure. There will be opportunities 

to ensure that all learners, whatever their needs are 

considered when upgrading and investing in new 

buildings and resources. 
 

The opening of new Immersion Sites in Bangor and 

Tywyn for secondary and primary learners can have a 

positive impact on the hours learners travel to and from 

the provision on public and private transport. This would 

benefit all learners, those with and without a form of 

disability.  

Gender  

 

None 

Identified 
No impact on service users is anticipated. 
 
It was noted in a previous equality assessment when the 
language centres faced a restructuring process that all 
current language centre staff are women. The previous 
consultation suggested the need to restructure due to a 
budget shortfall, and therefore the previous consultation 
highlighted the potential for loss of specialist, well-paid 
jobs for women, including replacing those jobs with 
lower paid jobs. 
 
We are currently engaging and seeking a decision on the 
new vision for the immersion education provision, and if 
Cabinet decided to approve the new vision, this would 
enable the Education Department to add further detail in 
order to realise the vision by September 2022. 
 

Page 173



Despite the lack of detail at present, there is the 
potential for new jobs to be created with the opening of 
two additional language immersion sites in Bangor and 
Tywyn. 

Age Positive and 

negative 

It is anticipated that the outcome for new entrants will 

be the same or slightly different from what they are 

currently experiencing. We acknowledge that children 
and young people are the current service users of the 

language centres, and the proposed immersion education 

system, and this is the only feature mentioned by users. 

 

Having a new provision that increases the number of 

sites and the number of learners accessing a combination 

of primary and secondary immersion education co-

located on some of the sites will mean that learners 

travel less and will potentially be able to be grouped with 

learners of similar and / or different age range and 

linguistic ability. 

The new provision enables the service to be flexible to 

the needs of the service and learners as required. 

Having more sites offering secondary immersion 

education in Bangor and Tywyn would make it fairer for 

those of secondary school age, significantly reducing the 

travel time of those learners on transport. 

 

A potential strength of the new provision is the ability to 

be flexible by separating or co-locating sibling learners. 

Currently, siblings that do not get along are separated 

into other classes, but the establishment of two new 

secondary (and primary) sites provides the staff the 

opportunity to separate siblings depending on the 

situation. On the other hand, the new system can co-

locate the family on one site if learners do not wish to 

be separated for reasons such as shyness and confidence. 

 

Staff and learners during the consultation period noted 

that it is sometimes challenging to have siblings of 
different ages in the same class all day every day in a 

language centre. The lack of maturity of some primary 

learners is cited as a reason for the secondary learners 

not wanting to include on one site with the primary 

learners. 

 

Flexibility and more immersion sites within a reasonable 

traveling distance enable separation for the benefit of the 

individual learners if necessary, or vice versa. 

Sexual 

orientation 

None 

Identified 

No impact on service users predicted with this equality 

feature. 

As the new service will continue to follow the anti-

Page 174



bullying, equality, equal opportunities and any other 

relevant policies. 

Religion or 

belief (or lack of 

belief)  

None 

Identified 

No impact on service users predicted with this equality 

feature. 

As the new service will continue to follow the anti-

bullying, equality, equal opportunities and any other 

relevant policies. 

Gender 

reassignment 

 

 

None 

Identified 

No impact on service users predicted with this equality 

feature. 

As the new service will continue to follow the anti-

bullying, equality, equal opportunities and any other 

relevant policies. 

Pregnancy and 

maternity 

 

None 

Identified 

No impact on service users predicted with this equality 

feature. 

As the new service will continue to follow the anti-

bullying, equality, equal opportunities and any other 

relevant policies. 

Marriage and 

civil partnership 

None 

Identified 

No impact on service users predicted with this equality 

feature. 

As the new service will continue to follow the anti-

bullying, equality, equal opportunities and any other 

relevant policies. 
 

 

3.2  Does the policy or service affect their General Duties under the Equality 

Act 2010? The Council must pay attention to the way any change affects 

these duties. 

 

 

General Duties 

of the Equality 

Act 

 

Does it have 

an impact? 

(delete those 

irrelevant) 

In what way?  What is the evidence? 

Remove illegal 

discrimination, 

harassment 

and 

victimisation 

 

yes One of the principles of the new vision is to ensure that 

it does not affect the availability and entry to new 

entrant (i.e. that the same number or more learners can 

access the service). The new vision proposes increasing 

the number of sites. More learners would access the 

service, and would have the opportunity to acquire 

Welsh to enable them to assimilate to the bilingual 

society in Gwynedd, and to take full advantage of 

educational provision and experiences in line with the 

Education Departments’ Language Policy. 

Promoting 

equal 

opportunities 

yes The new vision sees more learners accessing the 

language service, and having the opportunity to acquire 

Welsh to enable them to assimilate to the bilingual 

society in Gwynedd, and to take full advantage of 

educational provision and experiences in accordance 

with the Education Departments’ Language Policy. 

Page 175



It was noted in the previous consultation on 

restructuring the language centres in Gwynedd that the 

loss of a specialist, well-paid job for women (in the 

previous context), replacing them with lower paying 

jobs have a negative impact on women. The new vision 

does not detail the staffing structure of the new system 

at this point. 

However, it can be assumed that opening two new sites 

in Tywyn and Bangor enables the opportunity to create 

new specialist jobs. In addition, the new vision would be 

an investment in strategically and linguistically challenging 

parts of the county. 

Encouraging 

good 

relationships 

yes One of the principles of the new vision is to ensure that 

it does not affect the availability and entry to new 

entrant (i.e. that the same number or more learners can 

access the service). Therefore, the change would not 

have an adverse effect, as there would still be equal 

opportunity for new entrants. The new vision would 

mean that more learners would access the service, and 

have the opportunity to acquire the Welsh language to 

enable them to assimilate into the bilingual society in 

Gwynedd, and take full advantage of the provision and 

educational experiences in accordance with the 

Education Departments’ Language Policy. Enabling the 

newcomers to acquire the Welsh language would 
ensure that they are able to foster good relationships 

with peers and the bilingual community in Gwynedd. 

 

The new vision suggests that learners spend 4 days a 

week at the immersion education site, followed by 1 day 

at their local school. This can have a very positive 

impact and their ability to continue to settle and 

become embedded in their local schools, while 

continuing to deepen their language acquisition skills in 

the immersion sites the rest of the week. 

The primary and secondary learners noted a difference 

of opinion on this new procedure, noting that returning 

to their secondary school for one day a week caused 

them to worry about the workload they would face 

when returning on a weekly basis. 

The concern was noted, but with the addition of detail 

to the provision in due course, these concerns could 

possibly be mitigated. 

 

 

4)  Analysing the results  

 

4.1  Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any 

of the equality characteristics or the General Duties and what is the reason for 

this?  

Page 176



 

We believe that the new vision for the Immersion Education System in Gwynedd towards 

2032 and beyond is likely to have a positive impact on any of the equality characteristics or the 

General Duty, given the availability of provision for the learners may be improving or staying 

the same. 

 

Considerable effort is being made to try to ensure better co-operation and joint ownership of 

Welsh education for those learners new to Gwynedd between the schools and the immersion 

education system. 

 

Our overriding principle is to put the welfare of learners at the centre of everything. And so 

investing and securing better resources that improve the experience of all learners, opening 

new sites and changing the weekly timetable of learning is an effort to improve the learning 

environment and the Welsh learning experience for the newcomers to Gwynedd, whatever 

their background, age, ability, gender, race and nationality. 

 

 

4.2  Is the Plan therefore likely to have a substantial, negative impact on any 

of the equality characteristics or General Duties and what is the reason 

for this?  

 

Setting a new vision for the Immersion Education System in Gwynedd towards 2032 and 

beyond is not likely to have a negative impact on any of the equality characteristics or the 

General Duty, due to the availability of the provision learners may be improving or staying the 

same. 

 

Our aim is to see learners settle, embed and acquire the Welsh language here in Gwynedd. 

Changing the service offers opportunities to continually improve opportunities to build 

meaningful relationships with peers and teachers, as the schools and the organization take 

ownership of learners wellbeing and education from the outset. 

 

4.3  What should be done?  

 

Select one of the following:  

 

Continue with the plan as it is robust 

 

Yes 

 

Adapt the plan to remove any barriers  

 

 

 

Suspend and abolish the plan as the detrimental impacts are too large 

 

 

 

Continue with the plan as any detrimental impact can be justified  

 

 

 

 

4.4  What steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts? 

 

As a result of engaging with staff and the unions, as well as engaging with a wide range of stakeholders, 
it was noted that there has been historical praise for the success of the language centres over recent 

Page 177



decades in ensuring that learners acquire the Welsh language. 
 
The new vision was supported by a unanimous vote in a meeting of the Education and Economy 
Scrutiny Committee and the Language Committee. It was agreed that the vision offers an opportunity 
to strengthen accountability and it complements the intention to equip the school workforce to 
support learners to make further progress in their schools during and beyond their time at the 
immersion education site. The Education Department has been asked to submit more information 
when it becomes available. 
There was also a variety of views on how to fund the new immersion education system, with some 
members supportive of the intention that schools would contribute. This would increase accountability 
and joint ownership of the provision between the Education Department and the schools. However, 
some also expressed their wish that the Council should corporately finance the funding gap due to the 
fact that the Welsh language is one of the Council's main priorities. 
 
In a series of stakeholder engagement meetings, we invited comments and views on the vision and 
possible solutions within the proposed change. 
The new vision seeks to rectify and build on the successes of the language centres as they are at 
present. 
 
By investing £1.1million of capital funding to establish new immersion education sites in locations such 
as Bangor and Tywyn, we anticipate reduced travel across the County, and hope to see better co-
operation throughout the school term between the new provision and the schools that together are 
key to supporting the newcomers to acquire the Welsh language successfully and confidently. 
 

 

4.5     If you do not take further action to remove or reduce negative impacts, 

explain why here.  

 

Not relative 

 

 

 

5)  Monitoring 

 

5.1     What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 

plan (action plan)? 

 

Through engagement with staff and the existing unions and learners of the provision, as well as 
stakeholder engagement, we are ready to listen and consider any comments and ideas put forward. At 
this point, our intention is to share the new vision with our users, and other partners involved with the 
Welsh language in Education and our communities. 
We have no evidence to prove or disprove the effects of the new vision on provision, and therefore we 
will put in place robust arrangements to communicate and monitor the impact of any change on the 
quality of existing language centre’ provision as a result of adopting and implementing the new vision. 
 
We will also regularly seek the views of members and service users, and adjust the impact assessment 
as necessary to reflect the views and any additional information received. 
 
We intend at the request of stakeholders to report on any additional detail in due course. 
 

6. The Welsh Language 

Page 178



 

6.1. How does your proposal ensure that you operate in accordance with the 
requirements of the Welsh Language Standards (Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011), 
to ensure that the Welsh language is not treated less favourably than the English, and that 
every opportunity to promote the Welsh language is taken (beyond providing bilingual 
services) and increase opportunities to use and learn the language in the community? 

 
6.2 What other measures or changes could you include to strengthen or change the policy / 
practice so as to have a positive impact on people's opportunities to use the Welsh language, and 
to reduce or prevent any detrimental impacts that the policy/practice could have on the Welsh 
language? 
 

  
 

This proposed new provision builds on past successes. Therefore, the new vision is intended to 
strengthen and invest in the Welsh language. 
 
The £ 1.1M investment allows modernisation of the service for the 21st Century – something that will 
improve the teaching environment and experience of acquiring the Welsh language for Gwynedd's 
newcomers. 
 

The vision proposes the opening of two new immersion sites in strategic parts of the County. The 
vision also includes upgrading the immersion provision located in Ysgol Eifionydd. 
 
By increasing the number of immersion sites and offering secondary education at more than one 
site, we believe that the new vision offers more newcomers the opportunity to receive immersion 
education that is closer and more connected to their local school. 
 
The new weekly timetable is deliberately offering better transition opportunities and transferring 
learners with their new Welsh from the immersion site to their local school. The purpose of this is 
to increase the opportunities for staff in the immersion sites and schools to take ownership and 
encourage the successful language acquisition journey of learners from the immersion site 
onwards towards their mainstream education. 

Page 179



 
 GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 
Report to the Cabinet 

 

 
 
1. DECISION SOUGHT 

 
Not to raise primary, special and all-through school meal price in September 
2021. 

 
2. REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED 

 
If the department do not raise the meal price in line with inflation from 
September 2021 it will create a deficit in the Education Department 2021/22 
budget of £22,890. Therefore, it’s appropriate to obtain the Cabinet’s formal 
confirmation that not raising the school meal price this year is a priority for 
the Council. 
 

3. INTRODUCTION 

 
The primary school catering service budget relies on generating income by 
selling primary school meals. There is a need for income generated from 
primary school meals to keep up the inflation of the catering service costs. 

 
Primary school meals income target has risen 1.16% in 2021-22 which would 
increase meal price from £2.50 to £2.53. In rounding up this would be £2.55 
(equivalent to 2%). 

 
However, when considering our relative position and priority we have in terms 
of reduding inequality, the Cabinet may wish to consider the price of school 
lunches in this context. 

Meeting Date: 6 July 2021 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams 

Contact Officer: Owen Owens 

Contact Number: 01286 679 169 

Item Title: Primary, Special and All-Through School Meal Price 
September 2021 

Page 182

Agenda Item 10



 
 

 

 

4. REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION 
 

When comparing Gwynedd’s primary, special and all-through school meal 
price of £2.50 with other Council’s in Wales (Appendix 1), 4 charge a higher 
price, 4 charge same price as Gwynedd and 13 charge a lower price. 
 

 
Increasing the meal price would mean increasing the price from £2.50 to 
£2.55. 

 
5. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

 

Meal price will be operational from September 2021. 
 

6. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION 
Statutory Officers opinion: 

  
i. Monitoring Officer:  

No observations to add in relation to propriety. 
 
  
ii. Head of Finance:  

I confirm that the financial figures in this report are fair estimates. With 
regard to funding the relevant budget gap in the Education Department, I 
confirm that in drawing up the Council’s budget for 2021/22, a general 
provision was set aside in a contingency budget that could be used for this 
purpose. 

 
 

Page 183



Page 184



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

01286 679868 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

Date: 6 July 2021 

Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for Children 
and Supporting Families  

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Dilwyn Morgan  

Contact Officer: Morwena Edwards, Corporate Director 

 

THE DECISION SOUGHT 
To accept and note the information in the report. 

 
THE REASON WHY A DECISION IS NEEDED 

 
In order to ensure effective performance management 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on developments in the fields 
within my remit as Cabinet Member for Children and Supporting Families. This includes 
outlining the latest developments to date in 2021-22 against the pledges within the 2018-
2023 Gwynedd Council Plan; issues and the progress of performance measures; and the 
latest on the savings and cuts schemes.  
 

1.2 I wish to remind you that all the matters have already been discussed and scrutinised in 
Performance Challenging meetings, which also included representatives from the Scrutiny 
Committee.  
 

1.3 The priority projects featured in the Council Plan are progressing, and are on track to 
deliver against our pledges, and their purpose. A few other matters of concern have been 
brought to our attention through performance challenging, and I outline these below. 

 

 

 

Page 185

Agenda Item 11

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


2 GWYNEDD COUNCIL PLAN PROJECTS 2018-2023 
 

2.1 Below, we note the progress that has been made to date against the Department's priority 
projects. These priorities address the department's main risks. In general, I feel that every 
project is currently moving in the right direction against the pledges that we have made 
in the Council Plan. 
 

2.2 A Strategy for Keeping Families Together 
I am pleased to note that the Safeguarding Children Effectively, a Ffordd Gwynedd strategy 
jointly between the Children and Education Department; and the development of the 
Strategy for Keeping Families Together, are all progressing as anticipated. I will return to 
the Cabinet soon to present that Strategy. 
 

2.3 Securing a local, appropriate specialist provision for children with complex needs 

Although the pandemic has delayed this transformation programme, I can note that the 

Department, jointly with the Health Board and Anglesey Council, has adapted and 

recommenced the project. The recruitment process for trialling a Multi-agency Team has 

progressed; and a training programme to support children with profound and complex 

needs has commenced since January, and brings together the workforce from education, 

social care and health.  

 

2.4 Ensure that families and children with autism have access to the support they need to 

thrive  

A project group has been established and it has completed a review of the current 

experiences of families with autistic children. The Group has created a draft Autism Plan, 

which shows what we need to do in response to the recommendations in the review. I will 

present this plan to the Cabinet soon, as elements of the plan seek to address the issue of 

raising awareness of autism and that it is everyone's business. One matter of concern in a 

field that I, with the support of the Corporate Director, will be escalating formally with the 

Health Board, is the waiting lists for Neuro-developmental assessments, and the impact 

of this on children and their families here in Gwynedd.    

 

2.5 Supporting People's Well-being 
The work of supporting the well-being of people over the past months has continued to 
focus on responding to the challenges and side-effects of the pandemic. Mainly, this work 
has continued around supporting the food poverty provision, establishing the Hwb Help 
pilot (Maesgeirchen) as a part of the North Wales recovery plan, and focusing on 
establishing arrangements for the work streams that have been prioritised by us as a 
Council. Some of those work streams are moving forward well, e.g. homelessness 
prevention, carers, and some of the other work streams need to be confirmed further. 
 
 

3.  PERFORMANCE AND MEASURES  
 

3.1  I wish to draw your attention to the following matters, which are unrelated to the Priority 
Projects, but that are being addressed by the department because they are affecting the 
performance of services and/or causing us concern. 

 

Page 186



3.2  Workforce Capacity - The Department is implementing temporary arrangements in order 
to deal with a shortage in the required number of social workers, by redeploying 
employees to the Social Work Teams. The department is also continuing to attempt to 
recruit social workers. The Council is competing with other counties for employees, in a 
context of higher salaries being paid in the other counties, a general shortage in the field, 
and the need for Welsh speakers. The caseloads of the current workforce are increasing, 
and a number of those cases are complex and require more time, attention and support. 
The risk surrounding the capacity of the existing workforce, if we are unable to respond to 
it, will affect our remaining ability to deliver the priority projects and the day-to-day work; 
as well as being detrimental to the health and well-being of the staff themselves. 

 
3.3  Failure in the information systems - We are concerned about the WCCIS system, which 

holds the department's records of cases and families. The issue is being discussed at a 
national level, jointly with other authorities, Welsh Government and the software 
companies; however, we are not confident at present that a robust solution is in place to 
safeguard that system or its flaws. 

 
3.4  In terms of the department's measures, I am generally happy with their performance. I 

wish to draw your attention to two in particular, which illustrate the department's story 
during the period in question in that report. 

 
3.5  The numbers contacting the Department for Information, Advice or Assistance increased 

to 522 in April and 575 in May, compared with 460 per month, in the same months last 
year. This may well be a reflection of the side effects of the pandemic and a sign of what 
is to come in terms of residents' need for support.  

3.6  It is also pleasing to be able to report so early in the year about the impact of our efforts 
to keep families together, which, as you know, is one of the department's priority projects. 
With 857 children open to the department on 31 May, 45% of them are living with their 
parents / family / friends. 

4  FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS 

4.1  The Cabinet has discussed the department's main savings scheme, the End to End Plan, in 
January     2021, when £1,149,000 of the target was deleted (£688,000 of the target up to 
2020/21 and a further £460,000 for 2021/22). However, the department is continuing to 
look to achieve the amended savings target by improving the efficiency of its work 
arrangements. 

4.2  At the end of the 2020/21 financial year, the Department received financial support to the 
tune of £1,261,000 to clear its overspend for the year, which was mainly in the out-of-
county placements. For 2021/22, as part of the bids system, the Department received 
£1,824,000 worth of permanent bids to meet the unavoidable pressure mainly on looked-
after children placements. Early forecasts this year suggest that the combination of 
additional resources together with deleting savings worth £1,149,000, has assisted with 
the Department's financial position and, therefore, based on the current situation, it is 
anticipated that it will be possible to stay within the budget 

5   Views of the Statutory Officers: 
 
i. The Monitoring Officer: “No observations to add in relation to propriety” 

Page 187



 

 

ii. Head of Finance:  “Part 4 of this performance report expands on the risks associated with the relevant 
savings plans.  Officers from the Finance Department have collaborated with the report’s author and I am 
satisfied that Part 4 of the report is a fair reflection of the situation.” 

 
a. Views of the Local Member: 

 
i. Not a local matter. 
 

b. Results of Any Consultation: 
 
i. None to note. 

 

 

Appendices 

Page 188



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

01286 679868 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

Date: 6 July 2021 

Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet member for Adults, Health 
and Well-being 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Dafydd Meurig 

Contact Officer: Aled Davies, Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department 

 
 

THE DECISION SOUGHT 
To accept and note the information in the report. 

 
THE REASON WHY A DECISION IS NEEDED 
In order to ensure effective performance management. 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has taken place in the 
areas within my remit as Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being. This includes 
outlining the latest developments against pledges within the 2018-2023 Gwynedd Council 
Plan; the progress of performance measures; and the latest on the savings and cuts 
schemes. 
 

1.2 I would like to remind you that all matters have already been the subject of discussions 
and have been scrutinised at the management team meetings of the Adults, Health and 
Well-being Department, which also included representation from the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

1.3 It is very early in the year 2021/22 as I present this report but I am very proud to note, 
particularly to consider the substantial challenges that have been and continue to face the 
department as a result of the crisis, that progress is already being done on the priority 
projects. The measures 'did we do what matters?' to our residents also bodes well for the 
year to come and I will monitor these measures as the department recovers and reshapes 
its services. They also suggest that the measures that the department take towards 
improving and transferring services are steps in the right direction and I look forward to 
update you further in my next report.  

Page 189

Agenda Item 12

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


 
2 GWYNEDD COUNCIL PLAN PROJECTS 2018-2023 

2.1  The vulnerability of the care sector has been of substantial concern to the department for 
some years and is a risk to our ability to maintain the services needed by the people of 
Gwynedd. Unfortunately, the Covid-19 crisis has added further pressure on the sector and 
has highlighted this risk even more. The greatest challenge that is currently facing us is the 
financial viability of the residential and nursing care sector and the domiciliary care sector 
and the impact of this on the quality of our care services. In addition, we have problems 
relating to the lack of nursing beds in the county and the lack of beds and support provision 
for individuals with dementia. Hand in hand with this, there is a need to modernise and 
adapt our buildings in order to be able to respond to the increasingly specialist needs 
amongst our residents. In addition to this all, attracting and retaining carers and other staff 
in the care field has been challenging for many years and this has also been highlighted 
during the crisis. 

2.2  In order to address these challenges, the department has three priority projects in the 
Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-23, namely: 

 Suitable and Sustainable Care Provision for the future - a programme to address the 

factors that could affect our ability to continue to provide appropriate care services 

for the people of Gwynedd. 

 Re-designing our Care Service - a programme to transform our health and care 

services jointly with the Health Board in order to respond to the county's care needs 

in the future. 

 The Workforce and Recruiting into the Care Field - a programme to address the 

challenges of attracting and retaining staff in the field in order to be able to cope with 

the increasing need that is likely to arise in the future.  

 

Please see below an update on these projects.  

2.3 A Suitable and Sustainable Care Provision for the future 

2.3.1  The department has started on the journey to try and gain a better understanding of the 
'actual cost of care', with the initial focus on the Residential and Nursing care field. A 
regional task group was established recently, and the local work that had been 
commenced before the Covid-19 crisis has now been able to recommence. I will provide 
an update on the progress in my next report. 

2.3.2  Discussions are under way in the Council to outline options and preliminary costs to 
proceed with the Penrhos Site project, and the department will move to hold further 
discussions with the local members. Work is also under way to prepare a detailed outline 
of plans, based on our assessment of need, with an emphasis on a flexible provision. All of 
this is happening in an attempt to address the lack of nursing beds in Pen Llŷn. The 
department is also considering the options to increase the number of dementia beds in 
our home in Bangor, and the work to upgrade our homes in Barmouth and Dolgellau 
continues. The department has almost completed an extension to our learning disabilities 
residential home in Pwllheli also, in order to make it easier for families to visit safely due 
to Covid-19. The current levels of demand suggest strongly that there is a need to change 
the mix in terms of the type of residential beds across the county. Specific attention will Page 190



be given to gathering data to obtain a clear picture of the need by means of the Population 
Needs Assessment, and this will lead to reviewing our investment programme in the 
Council's residential homes.  

2.3.3  We have also committed to strengthening our quality assurance services to secure 
sufficient support for care providers as they seek to maintain a quality service for 
residents. Unfortunately, 4 homes in the county have been given attention in relation to 
escalating concerns over the past months, which has meant that no new admissions can 
be allowed to those homes in the meantime. Of course, this places a strain on our services 
and on the ability to discharge individuals from hospital in a timely way and we need to 
be able to support our providers to avoid such situations. Preventative quality assurance 
support would be helpful for providers to manage care provision costs by maintaining 
standards and working more efficiently. The department will report on this situation to 
the Care Scrutiny Committee in September and work is progressing to prepare and submit 
a bid to increase the capacity of the Service. 

2.4 Re-designing our care services  

2.4.1  In order to empower the integrated teams (teams that include care staff and health staff), 
to achieve what matters for the adults of Gwynedd, a great deal of training has been 
provided. The purpose of the training is to assist to implement safeguarding procedures 
and place the person at the centre in doing so, and to provide advocacy services in order 
to strengthen the voice of the individual regarding their care journey. The teams also meet 
regularly and include domiciliary care providers at those meetings. This is key to ensure 
that different professions co-plan to make the best of the resources available locally, and 
identify opportunities to develop.  

2.4.2  The work of developing the new model of domiciliary care provision continues and now a 
number of the Council's domiciliary care teams have moved to work shift patterns, which 
offers better flexibility to the individuals who receive care and better stability for staff. 
Also, some external providers have continued to innovate by assisting members of the 
community resources team with tasks that are beyond the usual role of carers. Note below 
in part 3.2 the broader possible impact of this work programme on performance and other 
work programmes in the field.    

2.4.3  Permanent funding was also secured to establish a specialist manual handling service that 
will strengthen the work of the community resources teams. New jobs will be advertised 
within the next weeks and in the meantime, an additional occupational therapy resource 
is in place temporarily. 

2.4.4  In collaboration with the Health Board, the community mental health hub in Pwllheli has 
reopened at the beginning of June after it had to close because of the Covid-19 crisis. The 
service includes sharing information and referring individuals for support, as well as 
offering well-being activities such as walking, art groups, etc. The face-to-face services are 
by appointment only for the time being, to ensure the safety of the individuals, and the 
option of virtual support continues.   

2.4.5 Our ability to succeed to transform services depends on the joint-working relationship 
with our partners, and particularly the Health Board. Though we experience challenges 
when working together and delivering priorities, we are confident that we remain in 
agreement regarding the vision. It is encouraging to hear that the Health Board's new Chief 

Page 191



Executive is supportive of this direction, and I am eager to hold further discussions to see 
how we can strengthen the collaboration between us by placing a focus on changing 
culture and changing working methods in the interests of our residents. 

2.5 The workforce and recruitment to the care field 

2.5.1  The department has reviewed the arrangements of the recent recruitment campaign 
#GalwGofal and has found that it assisted to attract new applicants and workers to the 
field. Nevertheless, we still need to be able to attract many more and staff retention 
continues to be a challenge in some situations. However, early signs suggest that offering 
better terms and more regular work patterns assists to somewhat reduce the staff 
turnover levels. South Meirionnydd (and the Tywyn area specifically), was the first area 
where the staff worked shift patterns, and this has given better security to staff regarding 
their contracted hours and offers better work-life balance as they are able to plan their 
lives around their shifts. The situation in south Meirionnydd, as a result, is much more 
stable than it was and the department is in the process of also adopting these 
arrangements in other areas. The change has proven to be positive for the individual by 
ensuring consistency, and has improved the relationship between the carer and the 
individual receiving support. 

2.5.2  In response to gaps in specific specialisms, funding was attracted for 1 social work trainee 
post and two occupational therapy trainee posts. Interviews will be held during the 
coming weeks. 

2.5.3  Work has commenced to develop a programme of training and support, jointly with the 
Health Board, which will mean that all of the county's domiciliary care workers can assist 
people to take medication. This will reduce the pressure on other parts of the health and 
care system and will help to ensure that quality of life is improved as people get the correct 
medication at the correct time and safely.  

3.  PERFORMANCE  
 

3.1  The main measure of the Older People, Physical and Sensory Disabilities Service is 'Did 
we achieve what matters?' to the individual who is receiving our services. To date in 
2021/22, the data shows that the service has achieved what matters in 78% of the cases 
recorded against the measure, and that they managed to achieve what matters in part in 
19% of further cases. This is an improvement to date compared with the end-of-year 
figures for 2020/21 - namely 71% and 23% respectively. The reasons for failing to achieve 
what matters to the individual did not show any common trends and was mainly down to 
individual circumstances. When analysing the reasons why individuals have achieved what 
matters to them in full, the main reason is the social restrictions as a result of Covid e.g. 
not being able to go out, go to chapel, lack of family contact. There are also examples of 
individuals waiting for equipment and adaptations. The department, of course, will 
support these individuals to seek to improve their situation.  

 
3.2  We should take the opportunity in this report also to highlight and give a forewarning that 

the major changes afoot in the field, such as the work of developing a new domiciliary care 
model, is currently forcing us to prioritise our priorities. This is likely to lead to slippages 
in some work programmes, and, possibly, to a negative effect on performance over the 
next 6 to 9 months. We will strive to ensure that the change will not have a detrimental 

Page 192



impact on residents' ability to achieve what matters to them during this period, but at the 
same time, it is believed that we should be as open and realistic as possible regarding the 
impact of this substantial change that is under way. 

3.3  The Learning Disabilities Service uses the same measure, and to date in 2021/22, it shows 
that the service achieved what matters in 91% of the cases recorded against the measure, 
and that they have managed to achieve what matters in part in the other 9% of cases. This 
is an improvement to date compared with the end-of-year figures for 2020/21 - namely 
85% and 15% respectively. Of course, it must be acknowledged that what matters to a 
number of individuals is different at the moment, because of the impact of the Covid-19 
crisis and the restrictions on their personal circumstances. This needs to be borne in mind 
when recovering services and monitoring this measure in the future.  

 
3.4 The purpose of the Safeguarding Service is to safeguard individuals with support needs 

and who are at risk, or who suffer abuse. Since 1 April 2021, the service has received 81 
safeguarding enquiries, and 75 of them were successfully dealt with within the statutory 
timetable. Of those where it was decided that they were safeguarding cases, the risk was 
managed in 92% of them. There were three cases where the individual refused 
intervention, and one case where the risk is not managed. It appears that the risk is not 
managed when no clear outcome has been documented on the closure form. Normally, 
the practitioners will check this information but this has not been done yet due to work 
pressure and the high number of safeguarding reports. 

 
3.5  One of the challenges facing us as a result of the viability of the domiciliary care sector 

and the recruitment challenges that we have experienced for some years is the inability 
to meet all of the County's domiciliary care needs, and the subsequent impact of that on 
unpaid carers and more intensive services. At the end of March this year, 38 individuals 
who needed domiciliary care in Gwynedd were on the waiting list because it was not 
possible to meet their needs. This equated to 2.43% of the total domiciliary care hours 
that we commission. By the end of June, the number of individuals had reduced to 15, and 
the percentage of hours that could not be met, compared to all hours, had reduced to 
0.63%. This reduction is despite an increase of almost 2% in the demand for care in the 
same period. Of course, we want to see a situation where nobody has to be on a waiting 
list for care; however, this reduction is encouraging and is an early sign that our work to 
develop a new model for domiciliary care in Gwynedd is bearing fruit. Indeed, feedback 
from staff who have been involved in the pilot in the Tywyn area is encouraging and gives 
us faith that the new working arrangements, such as working shift patterns, is favourable 
to people. 

 
3.6  The department is also in the process of developing new measures as a result of all the 

work being done to integrate our services. Some of these will build on the above measures 
regarding whether we achieve what matters to individuals, with work being done to 
consider any further measures in order to strengthen our understanding of what matters 
and of our ability to achieve that. It is premature to present you with any data in relation 
to these new measures, but I hope to report on them in my next report in November. 

 
3.7  A high proportion of the Business Service's work continues to be dealing with aspects of 

the pandemic. Whether this was by redirecting staff, supporting providers with the testing 
arrangements or administrating extra financial assistance to the field. The core work of 
supporting front-line teams to fulfil their purpose continues, but concerns specifically 
about the national system used by social care staff from day to day should be highlighted. 

Page 193



We are experiencing risks to the system at a national level and this has caused operational 
problems at a local level in terms of data protection, as well as substantial obstacles to the 
effective implementation of front-line services. This stems from a lack of progress by the 
system suppliers to update them and maintain the system. These risks affect authorities 
across Wales and there are national and regional efforts underway to seek solutions. 
Consideration is being given at a local level also to mitigate the effect of any risks on the 
Council's services although capacity to do so is limited. 

 
 
4.  FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS 

4.1  The Department was seen to be underspending against the budget last year; however, it 
is currently too early in the year to be able to report on the projections for this year.  

4.2  The most challenging saving plans for the Department relate to managing the demand on 
our services, with the ability to deliver, subject to the success of the work of transforming 
our care and health services, jointly with the Health Board. The progress of this 
programme will be reported upon through the 'Re-design our Care Services' Improvement 
Priority. 

4.3  The Cabinet resolved on 26 January to re-profile some of the main saving plans in relation 
to this so that they are delivered in 2022/23. This enables the Department to ensure that 
a new Operational Model is being embedded within the teams. This model is based on 
Ffordd Gwynedd, and focuses on identifying and realising what matters to people, 
understanding the nature of the demand, identifying waste within the system and 
highlighting and acting on barriers. Another core part of the model is ensuring that we 
have measures that allow us to understand the relationship between our decisions and 
our practice, and the impact on costs within the system. The new measure framework for 
the Adults service is being developed, and plans are in progress to be established over the 
next months.  

4.4  We have experienced slippage recently against some of the Department’s other savings 
schemes and we will move during the coming weeks to revisit some of these plans, in 
order to see what can be achieved this year and where we need to consider alternative 
plans. 

 

5.          NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 
 
None to note. 

6.1 Views of the Statutory Officers: 

i. The Monitoring Officer: 

No observations to add in relation to propriety. 

 

ii. Head of Finance: 

Page 194



Part 4 of this performance report expands on the department’s financial risks and risks 
associated with the savings plans; I am satisfied that Part 4 of the report is a fair reflection of the 
situation. The Cabinet Member for Finance's report on the position of the 2021/22 revenue 
budget at the end of August will be presented to the Cabinet in October 2021. 

 
6.2 Views of the Local Member: 

 
6.2.1 Not a local matter. 

 
6.3 Results of Any Consultation: 

 
6.3.1 None to note. 

 

 

 

Page 195


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 JUNE 2021
	6 2020-21 ANNUAL REPORT, STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN 2020-2024
	Item 6 - EQUALITY-REPORT-20-21
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Staff Information
	Item 6 - Revised Equality Impact Assessment - Equality Plan

	7 EQUALITY AND INCLUSION POLICY
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - Equality and Inclusion Policy
	Item 7 - Appendix 2 - Equality Assesment

	8 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND ELECTIONS ACT (WALES) 2021
	Item 8 - Appendix
	Item 8 - Appendix Ch. equality impact assessment.v2

	9 IMMERSION EDUCATION SYSTEM TOWARDS 2032 AND BEYOND
	Item 9 - Appendix 1
	Item 9 - Appendix 2
	Item 9 - Equality Impact Assessment FINAL

	10 PRIMARY, SPECIAL AND ALL-THROUGH SCHOOL MEAL PRICES - SEPTEMBER 2021
	Item 10 - School Meal Prices

	11 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES
	12 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING

